Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council

Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid %Bute
COUNCIL

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604444
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk

Corporate Services
Director: Nigel Stewart

12 November 2003

NOTICE OF MEETING
A meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,

LOCHGILPHEAD on THURSDAY, 8 NOVEMBER 2001 at 3:00 PM, which you are requested to
attend.

Nigel Stewart
Director of Corporate Services

BUSINESS
1.  PRESENTATION BY AUDIT SCOTLAND
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

4. MINUTES
Audit Committee 26 July 2001 (PAGES 1 - 4)

5. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 5 - 8)

6. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2001/2002
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 9 - 36)

7. CODE OF AUDIT PRACTICE
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 37 - 48)

8. PROPRIETY AND AUDIT IN THE PUBLIC SERCTOR
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 49 - 52)

9. REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT: SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT -DR A
MIDWINTER
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 53 - 128)



10. AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2000/2001: MEMBER'S LETTER, AUDIT CERTIFICATE
AND CERTIFIED ACCOUNTS

Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 129 - 204)

11. PROGRESS REPORT ON EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO COUNCIL FROM
1999/2000 TO PRESENT

Report by Internal Audit Manager (PAGES 205 - 224)

12. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2001/2002
Report by Internal Audit Manager (PAGES 225 - 228)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Vincent Bradbury (Vice-Chairman) Councillor Alistair MacDougall
Councillor Gordon McKinven Councillor James McQueen

Graham Michie Councillor Len Scoullar
Councillor John Stirling (Chair)

Contact: Ruby Campbell Tel. No. 01546 604331



Page 1 Agenda Item 4

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

MINUTES of MEETING of the AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER,
KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on THURSDAY, 26 JULY, 2001

at 2.00 p.m.
Present: Councillor John Stirling (In the Chair)
Councillor Alistair MacDougall Mr Vincent Bradbury (Vice-Chair)
Councillor James McQueen Mr Graham Michie

Councillor Len Scoullar

Attending: Charles Reppke, Head of Democratic & Community Services
Stewart McGregor, Director of Finance
Ian Nisbet, Chief Internal Auditor
Dr Arthur Midwinter
Ranald Brown, PricewaterhouseCoopers

Apologies: Councillor Gordon McKinven

1. MINUTES

The Committee approved the minutes of the Audit Committee of 21 March 2001, as a
correct record.

2. (a) UNAUDITED 2000/2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
There was submitted report by the Director of Finance intimating that the unaudited

annual accounts had been lodged with the Controller of Audit by 30 June 2001 as
required by statute.

Decision
1.  To note the submission of the unaudited accounts within the statutory timescale.
2. To note with concern the very small surplus now retained.

3. To note the outturn position for the current year was under investigation by a
group of Members and Officers.

(Ref: Report by Director of Finance dated 19 June 2001, submitted)

(b) REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING

There was submitted report by the Head of Accounting setting out the current Revenue
Budget Monitoring process adopted by Argyll & Bute Council.

Decision
To note the terms of the report and to record the Committees concern that the
procedures outlined therein had failed to identify the over expenditure in Departmental

Budgets.

(Ref: Report by Head of Accounting dated 11 July 2001, submitted)



Page 2

(¢) IMPROVING BUDGET MONITORING

There was submitted report by the Head of Accounting highlighting that the Council
would require to make improvements to its arrangements for budget monitoring
following the over expenditure in Education and Transportation & Property Services in
2000/2001. It was noted that there was likely to be adverse comment by the external
auditors and that the Council should therefore take action now to achieve the
improvements in budget monitoring necessary to prevent a future overspend.

Decision
1. To note the terms of the report to the Management Team.

2. To suggest to the Director of Finance that he utilise the "traffic light" system for
reporting to members on budget monitoring.

3. That the Head of Accounting provide an update report to the next meeting.
(Ref: Report by Head of Accounting dated 26 June 2001, submitted)
ACCOUNTS COMMISSION OVERVIEW REPORT 1999/2000

There was submitted Overview Report by the Accounts Commission for Scotland which was
submitted to Members for information.

Decision

To note the terms of the report.

(Ref: Report by Accounts Commission dated 30 March 2001, submitted)
REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE

The Director of Finance reported that he had instructed a Best Value Review of the internal
audit service conducted by Professor Arthur Midwinter with a view to securing improvements
in the overall level of resources targeted at the internal audit process. The report submitted
by Professor Midwinter set out a range of actions which he recommended should be adopted
by the Council to improve the internal audit service within the Council and he highlighted to
members the significant parts of the report.

Decision
To recommend to the Council:

1 (a) That they increase the internal audit budget by £80,000 per annum to allow
improvements to be made recognising that this will reflect the high cost of using
private firms compared with direct provision in the short term. This sum to be
financed from loan charges savings generated by the Department of Finance
through debt rescheduling.



Page 3

(b) (i)  That the internal audit plan be reviewed, reducing the total number of core
audit days making provision for a value for money perspective in audit
activity and developing performance assessment and best value appraisal
work and

(ii)) that the Council should identify a key player who will develop the
managerial and Value for Money/Best Value roles within the service.

(o) That the Council negotiate a 3 year partnership agreement with an appropriate
external contractor to ensure continuity of provision meantime including

managing the function and some training in management/ Value for Money/Best
Value techniques.

(d) That the Council review the matter in 3 years time to assess whether partnership
or direct service delivery is the way ahead for the Council thereafter.

(e) That the Chief Internal Auditor should continue as at present to report to the
Director of Finance to maintain corporate identity but with the right to report
directly to the Chief Executive and the Audit Committee if there is any
disagreement with the Director of Finance.

(Ref: Report by Professor Arthur Midwinter, submitted)
FINAL REPORT ON 2000/2001 AUDIT PLAN

There was submitted amended report by the Internal Audit Manager detailing audits
performed by internal audit during 2000/2001.

Decision

To note the terms of the report.

(Ref: Report by Chief Internal Auditor dated 25 June 2001, submitted)

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2001/2002

There was submitted interim progress report on the audit work performed by internal audit
during the first quarter 2001/2002 with the intention of keeping Members up to date with
progress with the Audit Plan which they had previously approved.

Decision

To approve the annual audit plan for 2001/2002 and note the progress made so far.

(Ref: Report by Chief Internal Auditor dated 25 June 2001, submitted)

PROGRESS REPORT ON EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO COUNCIL FROM
1999/2000 TO PRESENT

There was submitted report by the Chief Internal Auditor in regard to the follow up reviews
conducted by internal audit to ensure that the recommendations contained in the
Pricewaterhousecooper’s final report to Members for 1999/2000 had been implemented. The
report also contained an appendix detailing reports received from Pricewaterhousecooper
since the 1999/2000 final report to Members.



Page 4

Decision

To note the terms of the report and the implementation of the report in regard to budgeting
had only been partially complied with.

(Ref: Report by Chief Internal Auditor dated 25 June 2001, submitted)

8.  ANTI FRAUD AND ANTI CORRUPTION POLICY
There was submitted report by the Director of Corporate & Legal Services which set down
recommended policies in regard to Anti Fraud and Anti Corruption Policy Documents which
were submitted to Members for their approval.
Decision
To approve the terms of the Anti Fraud and Anti Corruption Policies as submitted to the
Council and to request the Director of Corporate & Legal Services to circulate these to

Directors for implementation.

(Ref: Report by Director of Corporate and Legal Services, submitted)

Audit comm 26 july



Page S Agenda Item 5

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 8 NOVEMBER 2001

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN LOCAL GOYERNMENT

1 SUMMARY

The Charterad Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of
iocal Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) have issued a joint publication making
specific recommendations to local authorities on good corporate governance. The
publication has been endorsed by the Accounts Commission and the Convention of
Scottish Local Authorities. A copy of the statement is available for Members’

reference.

Three fundamental principles of Corporate Governance have been identified as-

»  Openness
» Integnity
e Accountability

CIPFA have built upon these three principles and redefined them to reflect the public
services context. For local authority purposes, the principle of openness has been
enhanced to emphasise the need to engage with their communities on an inclusive basis.
taking care to include the many distinct communities of place and of interest, including
those often referred to as “‘hard to reach” parts of the community. The principles have

been set out on Appendix 1.

The publication puts corporate governance into a framework. as follows:-

l. Community Focus

|_ocal authorities should work for and with their communities, e@xercise
leadership and undertake an ambassadorial role.

[

Service Delivery Arrangements

Local authorities should ensure that continuous improvement 1s sought.
agreed policies are implemented and decisions carried out.



Page 6

3. Structures & Processes

Local authorities should establish effective political and managerial
structures and processes to govern decision making and the exercise of
authority within the organisation.

4, Risk Management & Internal Control

Authorities need to establish and maintain a systematic strategy,
framework and processes for managing risk.

5 Standards of Conduct

Openness, integrity and accountability of individwals within a local

authority form the cornerstone of effective corporate governance. The

reputation of the authority depends on the standards of behaviour of .
everyone 1n it, whether members, employees or agents contracted to it.

In each of the five foregoing areas, corporate governance should be demonstrated by
arrangements which ensure that there is accountability, effectiveness, integrity and
openness and inclusivity in all matters.

CIPFA and SOLACE have published a detaited Guidance Note to assist Councils’ in
making their arrangements on corporate governance. The Chief Executive has
instructed the Director of Corporate and Legal Services to prepare a local code on
corporate governance to ensure that the Council may be able to include a statement in
thetr financial statements for the 2001/2002 financial vear to the effect that a review of
existing corporate governance arrangementis has been carried out and a local code of
corporate governance has been adopted.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Internal Audit should monitor arrangements and report back to the Audit Committee on .
the implementation of the local code of corporate governance in accordance with the
timescale of 31 March 2002 stipulated in the publication.

Stewart McGregor
Director of Finance
3 Qctober 2001

reports/Bnov zudcommeodeofauditpracticesmg,



Page 7

APPENDIX 1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRINCIPLES

Openness and inclusivity

Openness is required to ensure that stakeholders can have confidence in the decision-
making and management processes of local authorities, and in the approach of the
individuals within them. Being open through genuine consultation with stakeholders
and providing access to full, accurate and clear information leads to effective and
timely action and lends itself to necessary serutiny.  Openness also requires an
inclusive approach, which seeks to ensute that all stakeholders and potential
stakeholders have the opportunity to engage effectively with the decision-making
processes and actions of local authorities. 1t requires an outward focus and a
commitment to partnership working, It calls for innovative approaches to
consultation and to service provision.

Integrity

Integrity comprises both straightforward dealing and completeness. It is based upon
honesty, selflessness and objectivity, and high standards of propriety and probity in
the stewardship of public funds and management of an authority’s affairs. [tis
dependent on the effectiveness of the control framework and on the personal
standards and professionalism of the members and staff within the authornity. Tt 1s
reflected in the authority’s decision-making procedures, in its service delivery and in
the guality of its financial and performance reporting.

Accountability

Accountability is the process whereby local authorities, and the members and staff
within them, are responsible for their decisions and actions, inciuding their
stewardship of public funds and all aspects of performance, and submit themselves to
appropriate external scrutiny. Lt is achieved by all parties having a clear
understanding of those responsihilities, and having clearly defined roles through a
robust structure.

The concept of leadership overarches these three principles. The principles
described abeve can only be adhered to if leadership is exercised through:

» The local authority providing vision for its community and leading by
example in its decision-making and other processes and actions

» Members and managers conducting themsekves in accordance with high
standards of conduct.

reports/appl corpgovernance



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda Item 6

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
8 NOVEMBER 2001

FINANCE

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2001/2042

1 SUMMARY

At the meeting of the Audit Committee on 26 July 2001, consideration was given to
reports covering the Unaudited 2000/2001 Annual Accounts and Revenue Budget
Monitoring. Concern was expressed by the committee on the very small amount of
surplus now retained and an update was requested from the Head of Accounting to the
next committee meeting on Revenue Budget Monitoring.

The attached reports show the amount of detailed information preduced and circulated
to Directors and Spokespersons, covering year to date actual expenditure compared to
vear to date budget, a resulting variance and an updated projection of expenditure for
the vear compared to the approved annual budget, again with any projected variance.
Detailed explanations of variances are alse provided. [n addition, a copy of the
summary report presented to the Strategic Policy Committee on 6 September 2001, is

also attached.

The purpose of providing copies of this information to the Audit Committee is to allow
members of the Audit Committee to see the considerable amount of information
currently being provided to Directors, Spokespersons and the Straiegic Policy
Committee in connection with maonitoring of the revenue budget.

The Head of Accounting, Bruce West, will make a presentation to the Audit
Committee on the Revenue Budget Monttoring process, outlining any further work and
improvements to the monitoring exercise,

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

The committee note the Revenue Budget Monitoring process in place and in view of
the Counci!’s tight financial position, continue to receive reports from the Head of
Accounting on the effectiveness of the process.

Stewart McGregor
Director of Finance
9 October 2001

repons Enovaydicommrevbudmeon200 12002



Page 10

LUINRAG P3IR0U 0 - IHEPNE paa0kly w SHELEA RN 1Y - WOPNG w SIUEEA O1k
1 1 DFZ)- [ %ot SOt 0258~ e |34 HOH SN TaaNS N ENAE0

a o 17 Y (BEE"2P1) %0 ] (czv'ozl {£20'g2) SNINNA IO
BAIBSIN WHH LIOL) 1RJSUES]
w0 o 1552) fssz) %0 [} D [ BURTIUL X2 D0 [ELOHIPAY
Wl ] (66E"E] L %0 [} o a awrannb sy xey _E..f
OS0000 W) UdHnELay

%0 1} (E) IprZELs) Rip a {tza'ed) vregz] FIUEL|§ jBlue Ny @efiaiBty

(@] Tiesr BGARFT [T %9 EL P v Y74 aunypuadey 18 [FL

%0 D &Zr &Zr ik ar ] BY s2/Uadalg snjlng
%0 o BEL'2 o'z %0 D (ogv's) (o549} Wi nfpy Bulouee s jepden
%Z0F n o 0 ®E 23 l620'€) Lar'el Wng sy anuasdy Bulshoy Aeimelg
*D 0 @S S5 o g the'z BLE'Z SpuERg JUOf
%0 a 8z Fi-rd REI- 1) &6C HEE B0 B IALSG g ajeicdia]
S04 leve} 6152 3754 %S¢ 51} {9wa) teon} UGN B3 Of SADAIIG JRIua)
*03 tod EiZ [:-+4 %l 114 066"} IS8} saspoag poddngyenusg
% ) raL'es BLO'OZ %I g Zoo'E 1174 S2AADT UBILCIAUT B WL Ak 3G
i L340} irg'al SLL'S) Wb 21 252'F oEa'r saomsag Auadoly g pogsuesy
i (og} FLiacd 10032 %3 ne 6TV SEE'E Riom 1205 g Bujgnay
%0 lor) LF0'Z9 LT b [oau) =g 18 SPE'F} Lalexnp3
% So0Y WNooF Fooes E] ’
A d3umpEs wipng it Ak

C0ML0 Sun[ Jpopay

ABwng aan3sfqQ « 1I2UN0Y aing || Ay



WG paiefold - eprg peanuddy = soueses pajasosg [en)oy - jabpng = saueues giA

11

1:69°Z) £HE65 S50 [6TY] LPOED U028 %k {oat) 9e0'r oFz Fl USBINP Joj aImppuady g 16y ja]
0 0 %0 0 (E6L} {e6tL) %0 0 1] 0 1007 1snBny ) sauIwwion £30d 9Bajen s esodoid awleday
a a %0 {o1) i} oL %0 ] o )] ‘ S2u0W NS uadsun
0 6I5E L] 0 BIS'E BLS'E bpl- {54) SLO o002 Hodsuesj
o v %0 0 (2} (r2) %G - (eg) s G sadjalag poddng
{esva 0 %0 i sa's e %eg pee 19k 59 sjcayag
0 ir %0 0 ¥ i %64 - (g} ] ki SI9RIED
!
!
o LOF'L %0 o 0¥ L o'l %3 az 60E ESZ uolRINP Aunwwcy
|
v O 56 Yol o S6 c8 %261 4] £ {12 OO 25 1B WEL L 19430 UenEINp]
o 519 %0 ] SI8'E S19'€ 955~ {2v) (5o} 168 uoEanp3 (R1edg
0 $45'02 %0 1] vig'9Z 1962 %E- {e8t) 2il'e fririon uojjeanpg Aiepuoaag
) CEL'EE %0 0 TZL2E ZeL'ee %8 152 eal's £09's uoneanpy dewnd
¢ 8L %0 0 8L 8L Y bLE- SHE {e6) {e2¥} uanReINRP3 Asewilid-a4d
o (51 %0 0 1-1 L5¢ % 0L~ (a1 TH 6zz uopie|nboy 5 AGajeng aapnisg
000 %0003 % 25003 5000F . SH00F % $0007 so06¥  wo0od _ : -
AR ety winnng Jan PIURNA lafipng weno Fr7 S2UBLIEA jsBpag ey . )
ANMLIEA SOjAMLY Sfosd jenuLy dd 2 173 g4 a4s S giA : : S o
e HEOLLOQ TP Q3L 02004 NOUISOd e Ol awas ]
] 1)
20-107UNE PoLsag ‘ |allig]s

ABLY




Page 12

TJo | g

IFEL 10/B0VE0 T DNV 4T DLHEVA JNaT

® o 3
L€ £q pun [ sonrumuedds) g pg w
_ Mo 01 PANTUGRS | 68 PopIIIQNS L J0U PEY WHLLD SWERID ‘pasieaal aq of (05 Yampw | 2 ZR1Z 0000°EIZ
N AN} PUR PSSR 6 WAL kD] 1002 Q3L BE 18 PALIO0R pui ] sanmungioddcy mapy wog swoouy] 9w ZR1E0O00TIZ IN[(LE€2RY
STOOHIS GNV NOLIVOINaE AHYANODES NOILYJ2(1a3 XUV
TVIOL
AWVIWTEd Td4) 1N | 000°SHE
N llopd PUON BNUELIES, UoKEonp AR S200) 1V TIN| 6€E"FE
Fupoymow 138png
1N auop| Ay o wed se 2o00B matasy “BIUM JEMPIATPIT 1240 PIEA[BUR 2L poou AR 133pagi;  dxg 0000°0000°E 1T | bLL'pol
widny ¢ Ag Yangnday Binpang 14} suorsitudio Lmunjos Woy
I FUON payyoniar ¥ 9 12dpn{l | suonsxdide mremy 2outd or veavend Suym uolsioa(] 1eiseing)  dxg 1Z07 0060 11T ] so0'ze
safiny |£ 4q yorepndeg ‘Supiny 107 suolesieRio {repmycs wion stowesjdda
(I FUON pajgoudar ag o} pedpng|  Bumimayy “wsu1d W1 sssaod Sty uopsroi] Adaeng aropa| O 6107 0000°112 IINf £56'07
Buuoymoir Ay 090" 77 JIBP O] 2IUMLMA [RIMLARS 126
iy suoN; 0] sjyoud ya8png marmay| [[UER4Q SWEON e UT 3aUELEA PAOGE G IR ST4 [00Yog o] AN SLOZ M0 LIT, I (D6t TE
Bunomiwr 4y "N 6 L SIBp 0) AOLWLIEA ARISAPE JaU
[ Juon| 3 3yoad jaBpey matsay] ([aaq 2wcol; jweid W soumms 24008 208 D €79 fooyas adl  GXT FI0Z0000 11T WANY(DDE 5 5)
N TL AR T PSS
uaaq Apuasye sy (ELnol v D00 00 [ [T U1 51 {FIdY pus
N TuoN uop| ok ¢ panoe seroull sz o jdeay JURID oerny [ooRg s | 2w 97070000117 [14] D00'0F
S5 231030 153N pastany
uaid y8pna Jo peaye sydiaces Erge jo Sumn ], siaqumn{ 0] CLOT060DT [Z
wdny | ¢ &g pauonoe 100426 21 paypda o) 216jas paskzaas BuTdq Mo SRIRED) SWRIS| U] P[0T 0000 117
TN Juon g o) apyoxd 138pag papuetry | 78 I ETS 100Yd8 A4 pu ueld prm g praudofaaa(] 100ypg ang| N TZOT BN 1IT W] £51'6bT
NOIIVINAd ASVINTHA 384
TY.LOL 4955 INHoeo's1 1}
PN atah SUON SIUDLIBA, YSS FWO 1Y MN|(zsz97)
gy {1z Piabg 0y
N MoN| £ Ag pason 24 4) 128pngi| 188 Usaq B Sided vonewuuadns papuajus ag 1a8png Jo vyl dxg o000 E00K T H{6LT 0D
yEnony
1§ £q 13png afyoxks pur aung GE @ poad W pred 502 AoURMEY]
I PUON|  mi800 aditeanrsie edlsaa  Lgng sreaddyy apep 07 198png poljoud spozoxs aowmmst Auadosd|  dxE 0000 K0 00T 69k 69)
NOILY DAY UNY ADILVHIS HOJAHIS
¥ ¥ ¥
(puadssase
wipng saway duues | = anedau)
JLap W0 3 uIRY 4 o 40 PP wwnng FMELIB A
KIERuopy BOERY [0 jdedmy uu] vy FELEA 10) STOSEIY Jadpay panloag dLA
Ouggeanpy Juaniyaedag

T)0% dunp J8 52 3 0) 834 A 204

suopeuEidTy 2Iuepe s

durropwely 128puyg anuasay




Page 13

¥ Jo 7 aBed

Pl 1060/60 DNV 6T IXTHVA JrKI3

TN auon AvpUoods pue ARy U1 Se0URLEA JAUI) [TV IN|l£09)
“jsnimy | ssarfoly "fa¥pmg
PN auep | 439y Hyoud 153png majary JO PEIE 248 18P £) 6150} PN F0U2|[30xH F|00yo5 Arepuccag Putl] XJ apan £1T i) (£66'6¢)
1SNy [§ ssandeny BUTI{ O 1 S8 apEwW sjuawted ou
N auop [y29y7 aiasd yedpng manay g sod moyinany papjo.d 1p8png ‘5334 WPy sjooeg Arepuosag| 07 £ZF 0000 s ews €17 N LIE 8]
sHnpodsTI amias am Ay J 'dd) Ampuadxg 0] WMOp PIIRICHE A[n)
“Jaquumdag ur uwu_na.n_r 1155 asry S133png papung JRI3 (|8 100 OO0 00E T Sisor sako]dns
mataay "add) amypusdval o) suaueded Gaed pap soy porour aq o) sannboy Funmer) souyses)
Q) Umop stadpng papury s3] 10 19dpng auQy 53800 aadojdws Jof jalipng panoxo oy sreadde
SUII0[1E pUE SP¥MIIE [8.L00 aun[ Jo pus 9) ampphiadxs [Emos 2 asci1opy 10] atoqe asop|
o} S|EImo{ ‘5juamasou s SMNaEreA SR Fulye [ S[oolss [BUpIATpUI 0L pAIE20]|[@ 34 01 .
iLddiddd suoN|  19dpng Amseaas e AIEDY ]IS ke SIS0 10f ipng sis07) adedud sooyag ARpuoag| ¢ e e 0O axaae £17 {95606 E)
‘paimbo. 51 97E2i0 oF YA
WIOJJ JUEDIIA ST 125Uy
© WSTUBLDaL  sTnaws
PRpERo] R SMIvs 0} TN "sdutaes paigI0TIEIm 135]j0 0 s3uLsks o 1w 193png
A ddddd, BN | A IPEI U3 IAVY SHILIAIEA [oidn SimL OE o) pUeds [mIoy S90IATeg P saniddng Sj000eg AIUI]  ex of 0000 saes TIT EN|(8ST D)
S UET =T T )
Taxu{nd pastaa)
3 1A O pIpUBIR o M "20UBAPE U1 PO LD 133q)
N suan | 1edpng sup jo Busegd gm FAEE] S)03 BOMDS[O3 3L IV Uonde|ia) 2RI S|eoys ARULEE0 [Z9E 1000 wm a e TNE IN|(DI5'5$)
wjoal}
[BRPIATPLL 0] pareao) (@ uzag
iIN 0N | mou senf aleiyaf ) 15dpng Aumy O 18 5B SO0U3E 0 pajeos|e Joa Jedpng sueid| A% (BRI 00000LT IIN| £+809F
X D000 1T EIT
SjooE g pODO0ITE'EIT
TEIPIAIRUL C) PBIO] T Ladg dx3 G000 G0G0C LT
I'N AUCH] | MO ST BUGLYI S0 JaFpngg QUM (Of 1 $2 SHOOYTE 0] pAIEIEE 10U 158png stordop|  dXT GoM 000 TIT IIN{LEBS E6E)
ENERY |§ 19 pamIInal
4 {[la ssariold smypuadxa amppuadxa
piti athooul payedidinire PIE 2UIGI] u&&_u:cu 1ppoq 40j dn12E 3 0] JnE say JaEpng
Y auap 20 du 105 3q ) £33png! v dwoo JuasA Aq 10 g g sM, “puny saunmpoddgy man | 4% 7812 6000017 INJFL9'LE)
1AMy | pRAMBIASI 5q L
§527304 'S[O0IS [EMplatp ‘BJo0 [ENPLpin
I'N JUON| o PAEOYE 3q o) Jadpay 04 Pty $1500 [ETIR i Afjehues pRY 1Bdpeg aERD|  dng THIZO000EET 1IN sg'9s
WSy [§ Aq
annuwrdoud iom PIEEAAL U UM WA Yauq Snp S15pUa] mal (e X 6920000 ELT
N uon | pasey paiyexial a o) yEpng UL I K PAANPSYIS moll Jiop, Burumy 304 puy [ouoteN|  dxg 69120000712 N Z€L'a01
1ENEAY|
1£ &g 2dwiod 2q 0 fjosied
Jouetxaiiyn pue sdupoasun
1oufed 10§ speusal| "poposiL Buiaq se0| X3 (RIT0000EIT
1N Ay “yadpng Jo m%e&z Ieis aulog Huoum 51 Guiseyd redpog sjoeyrg Aumanuo) wap|  dxg [RIZ 0000712 nf ces've
: 0[243p
3q 0F Spaall $)807 [¢Njoe pue “AJFROUY PAJR[TILMAIIR 258 SI500 (#0136 J0G JOOLIS 8NP IALPUE
' 1dpng gyeu o ssaseud ¢ g ZE [T 0TI T T]le1ees)

AqQ piaY am s128png "sjoeis ‘ua Tl SIOJIMTISU] J0] 51800)




Page 14

oo € 3% TrSE 1GOED DAV 62 DCTIVA INCA
patyosdar yarepy o) wadny UL o) U3} Sty Ajjusnbaswes pue s2smen
I'N BUOR] U3y Mol sey adpng 1M i Tenawe) 34 WoyBnong Kjpevbe peseqd sz yaBpng|  au) 000D 0RO EFT N {reg'or)
NOILYOWId ALINNINOD
“TLOL TOOHJS
NYHL STHLO
NOLLYINaH Hx] oon‘ee
1N atoN uoN SN (904 1V ML 19410 UONBINPY SRAQ [[V N 000t
WMOX0E [ONU0T @ Ay Teny
N 3UON | ) PRUBJSURY ) ¢) fnKsLsel] A4 g2p 550 jo Juaaifed Uou soj uotseaosd pua read jo esmasy| AN [1FZ0MO 91T M| 000'TE
TOOHDS LV NYHL SIHLO NOILVINad
TYLOL TVIY S N looo'zE)
1N auoN o SRl eoneanpy (Biaadg 19M0 )Y IIN|(8Z6cH)
uodsueay, jooiag
DS 391AI38 01 pansajstran| ‘Hodsug) | [0035 ) pIdamgD 51800 (BRI UGTIRANpPL
M SON Uupd o smy g | (maadys i) palipo; podsimn spac uepeonpg wAds soy 1elpng | dxg 2057000 E T It 6LF'SE
‘paimbor 5 pasaar pie
‘speBpng [ooyss [rLxxds fo| sjeoyzs parrads s pue s iy smaddy 1a8paq 2y g Jo siseq 10 G
1INE MaMB) Jeazas Jo JWoogna Fupiwny | o) pamaiadl aq oy wlpngf 3ad jaRpng spooxe a[BI 1 wEpng Joouog [Moads spuepTed]  dxd 0000 1L RIZ M| sob'oe
|
sn2ny
1£ A9 2powaly ojul pepec] puB
(L J3d 58 SN (EnpATpUE “FUrEESIIN
il Suop| 30§ PEMILED 5q 0} SIFApLF] [nplapu o) pallmy duraq 5150y Jenoy eas) yiay m ppy eipeg | AXE o0z 0000w 2 N[ S6L'6IT
4% 0000 000k F1T
jenfny X7 0000 0507 71T
I£ 44 sjai) O)in ppeo] pue dxg popooo1e 1z
YW R B2 SHUN Fmps "SI Jenplaipat o) usept  dXg 0000 001 RIZ
([ Suan) 0 e 3 0) ERBpNg|  PANEN)(E USaq Jot v SIS poddns Fruapeu eate Joj si9gpng]| AN O000DOZE FIT UN|izI8'112)
"eminy | Sq paiaiditing “aepy by eoeyd
5 o SO0y yorepy| e SpaNmeD) IR0 Wodf puE 0 safreoal Ny "3y gg o) pouad
UN cN| @ 18 p{yesdos ag o jelpng]  sof payEpng sjounog RO o) sodyal J0) (0095 J0 Ameou)| U 000 KKK E1 I{on0°ss)
123PNq SIIP JT MBIA {[RIDAD ysndny [ Aq passaaaad}
Joued 59 palapisuod aq |pun suodu| o ¢} awooul Jo S501 000+ F PRI 2 30U AOU J[1AL
[IN]  Jo 5501 000°F13 jo 10edun 1jesas Jo uaunsnfpe yseaaso| garga Surpuny yueid nsaads 21 o0 ut panssan o F1 3 Jo swesty| U] G000 HKNY k12 DN {(oon'+1}
NOTLVOMTE TVIXids
V101
NED STOOHIS
{000°8ETY) 0L 000'06EF] W AUVANOIYS
RIata) sjooog pure (000'c6 [ F) Aepuocag * (000" EpET) Areunsd ‘LAVINIHA LIN|000'8ET)




Page 15

t 10 {534

TP 1v60/E0 DY 6T DCFUVA JNAH

TYLOL NOIIVONdd

006'01) (000°791)

TOOZHONT O
N =N Auon| JINIIALGS § 58 PIEME] POTLED 200Ul YIS jo uorpod juadse} 1vHANID (o0'0n) ¥iN
S0lALIg NOREINPY 0 1Y 204 [ee], 1IN} (apo's)
TvViOoL
LHOJSNYHL 1IN | {000'SR)
N Buop] 0 Se0imEIRA POASTRL], |00YIS 190 TV It i F] 7'08)
nadsuely jooyag
(T 2MAIIG 0) poLIajsT) 240q8 205 S[00yIR feredy W papnjoul s1
N auop 133q may swy 1RFpng | 1e8png “Lodswun spaoN Uohuanpy (eeadg Jaf 5500 [enyoe sepmjory|  dRg 00T RO0'OTT HNj(98L vt ) |ﬁ
LHOJSNYAL TO0HIE
TYLOL
AJES LHOddNS N {00 '88)
1N N SIMLIE A 6230 oddng BonenpT S0 v TIN{ B58°7
TenBny
[£ 4q pepueure jpo1ked
pue paj[uumof 3q o} 5150z
[y selny |¢ Ag peysnipe.
2q a1 ajyoud saBpng Jndny. "EIS03 3346104 Jo 2poostiy
1£ 4q pessa00ud aq o) spoa{  “syson 3ado)dirs swos Jo a8y Jo ayoxd w oy “dupuelsmo
I'N suon | #ifseal Jaindwa jo uma;max {003 0) S1E00 Fursea) indutes Jo adamyoay N WAISE]  0X3 FOZT G eTE NNjioso'ry
1Enany|
[£ Aq papusure Tupes foried|
[N suoy| e pardaad o a) jeinog POpOsI 5500 aako[dwry “saaiAlag uawdogsadyy|  dxy Z0TE 0000 DEL 1IN f{80895)
SAJIAFTS THOLINS
TY1OL
NOILY¥NAT
ALINONIWOD HN| 00097
undny [ 1B pamolass [
ssordar] wIAsAs yoed ojn
PApRO| PUR 3050 P HINC
104 J0) SIM funprAzpul 000°573
N BuUaN| o) pIjeInofes 39 0 s19pn | mojag WRIL S5 IR SIMTRL,, UOHENpH Anmunan) g |y 3] [C]A
SR £ I PAAalat aq [|im
ssarfal ushs yors oy
P2pRO[ pUB 3|20.0) pire YA
1og tof ) [enplaLpi “SUIRD),/ TN
[N UGN | 0] paiepan 3y o) S1PBRGE ENPIApU of pafp Fulag 5500 JETIAY “[243] 43I Ju Py wlng | X1 20000000 15T IiM] GO9'0EL




Page 16

winpng pajaeforg - Jlpng paaciddy = SONELEA pajoajold

2Ny - }ebpng = SoUBLEA (LA

DO0'FE 0.5'B10'GZ %0 (09) 99+ 050'G 925'050'52 %0 LGt'VET orl'GZL P BE6'PER T anuaady BUENOM RIS §63) iNiIpuadyy (EjoL
] 0 %0 o 0 ] HE- rerIe {zie'e20'e)  (acE'09t'e) snuasgy Juisnoy Lion2ig

000'vE 045'aL0'GT %e {og) £0r'0S0'5Z #25'050'52 %0E 1#9'GLE PLLGPO'E EEL'¥TY SANNAISS JIOM [B1005 ] Bursnop je16 )
0 ] %45 {55) (zou (rF} %0 ] 0 o ehujreg leuoinpny
(1] ] %0 iz o z 10 0 o 0 s8UON YNIS suadsun
0 a8y L6 %0 4y YUV LEE e A %EL 1GB'B ZIT'GL 5SZ'Ge SIS HAOM |€190S 2uiadg Jauig
0 DPE'FZ %0 o Ore'rE Ore're %¥ {or1'1) {oss'eTs 0Lr's2) 533G S, 13PUH0
o 0Z¥'60% % 0 02¥' 508 0zt'698 %EE L¥E'6r Z8z'Zel LPE'ZS SpaaN UileaH 1eju i 1M aanad

000'%E BOL'SLE'S %0 0 a01'60¥'s 801'60KC %t 82T 00 LOL'269 $L8'500 qesiq Buusea] Y 9/ dodg

000’08 400519 %0 0 So0'sre S00's49 %B2 66T FELOR 589’18 Anpaes|q A1osuag 10 jearsAyd 2 ypm ojdoag

{000 og) 185815 LE %0 0 LeF evs’lL LBF'ErE'LL %Z}- (#60'G51) ELE'LGE'L LO0°ESE'E ojdoag Aspig
0 SOP'LOS'F %0 0 S0¥'105'F S0P L0G'Y %41 I¥0'vIL £65°12L a¥5'200 e g uaagyd
Q 0gL'vOE %0 [+ 0EL'VOE 0EL'POE %t grE'ee ZFe LG8 FES'FS6 oM [BR0g « watienbay ¢ ABmeng sowaag
0 (evz'eLt) %0 o {evZ'eil) (evbZ'g21) % F{1] BLE'2C iLo'ee Buisnoy 1810
] oIS'6D %0 0 015'69 0l5'68 %G94 (9EL'41) (1901 656'9 SUOSI3g SSalawaH
0 CIELE %0 0 CLE' LK EIEF %LO o002 a8t Ll o'y Salg suosdag Buyjaneiy
o LSO'ERL'} %0 0 iSO0ERL" L50°E8E') %0Z01 50552 is89'2) {oez 0g) spjauag fupsnoy
o 0 %Gae o 0 o g rar'ie {zie'620'e)  (99R'091'E) anuasay BupsnoH Lolnels
G 0 %D ] a 0 %k 008 BZTLZ1 22#'9ZL Bujsnop - uopeinbay g ABalels aonag

50003  S000F ) 0007 50003 000F 80003 50003 | sou0i ‘

oL Papiodey SIUBLIRA BRI ey o eouaue  Meg- g
GOURKEA SNOARI pol El 20 GL-A - Oj-reag  -0l-ieag
e NOLL0C J¥NIIQIIDIIONG (OIELFETNT T TZT —

Zorh07 BUNT IpOUBY

¥I0pAA 181005 pue BuisnoH - Aewiung ann2aigo




N ‘BUON "AUON 11jauaq Jsurede puadsiapup) | ZOLEDOO0OLE TN ¥Ty'617F
[3unoy)
398png jo proye Jumurn uag 3sy
BN "JUON "GHON] Apuaznd jijaua prediaso jo 194033y |  TOEED00001E N 00T
S1IIaN3d
ONISNOH
TV.LOL VHH I'N 81 187
I'N BUON BUON SAEHEA VIH PWO IV TN 690°TES
*ATessadau
se s a1 oy Juruodal pue
N- spuausnipe yseda103 \Pim
B aspiaxa Bumopuow jadpng ‘sp1oa Y81y
(3] Apn{ a1 jo 32ed se pasapisuod jo vaxe Supoduo ue ospe s1 Aodiyoofeg
mmv I~ ag (1M ST, "§)S03 UTeLI0D 0} ‘sagiadoad proa Suonpaz
a ™ uay e} 9 PINO2 B} saInseaty JO ure i) Yim pamataas Sursq sy 357
o] osTe pue sduepres | Funres i ‘ucoun(] pue umoyaqdure)) s1apenbpeagy
ST} JO 133352 123k [[ny S 0y are seaxe uajqel 3y paalpng VEH
N BUON uaA13 SUTaq S1 UOTRISPISUNT) I} DAOQR PISEAIIE SARY SPIOA | GELI'ISSE'SEE iN 652'097-
suoned0
e- sareday 3
FOUBUSJTR
“VdH
1N AU BUCN ‘aep 0) pa[Jiq Jou Ing panide 4Dy 9L sann CEL TN ¥L601F
VIH
¥ ] (puadsiaac
123png saway uoIy jo pxedury uayeL BUELIEA = 2A0e3u}
XN U0 P 24 0], 40 WINE]L, UOIPDY DOUTLIE p O] SUOSEIY apo) 1afpa uwmnpno ¥ OJUBHEA
Arejauopy papalory ala

TIONMNOOD

O

[[ASIY

2ITAIBG NIOA [e10g pue SBuisnoy

100z aunf 1y sy 21e(J 0], Tea) 2y} 10]
suorjeuridxyg 3ULLIEA
Suriojuoly 198png anuaaay




‘pajediipine APUaling ST Swosun Bypny v
patalpng ut uoynpas ou yng heoduo Y31y, - swoy
aze suopenofaN quauraszde Jurieys [enuapisay
35020 uo sucrerjoSau Jaylany Jurpuad Apapig
BN "SUON BUON poq[eoued piead qijesy 0] aM0AL] | (Z0EFECTGEE N 91¥9zF-
ATd3aTd
TVIOL
SATAVA
F NTEATIHD HN LPOFITF
op
H SADUELIEA
%ﬂﬁu N auopN THUON saghuae,] pue uIpMyD PO Y L CO6CCF
! Ppeu
mu $hnaq jo ssacoid syl ur are sjusmadefd
= [EUOHIPPE ‘I2A3MOL] '}35 sem JP8pngq
a3 uaym paredidgue uey; pEswmade]d SIUaWIAdL]]
E Emhﬁ—m_ﬁu am_}.rm-w um.ﬂ_hw.-hﬂ-u =g @h.ﬂuﬁ—mfm”u
a1 yuasaxd 3y apgoid remnStio mp oy jsIEDadg
N BUON UG pazsipp sey sjuawaoeyd Jo uaged ayy | 0S6E00000SE N ve0'08F
SHITTAYA
%
NITIdTIHD
3 ¥ {puadsizav
128png sreay uoiay Jo redu] uane], oueLIes = DATIBRNI)
1XaN uo P93I 3 01 10 UdYEe] ULV JUNTIE A 10] SUDSEIY apoy R3pa NG 3 Mduepres
ATejauoi papaloig LIA

TINNOD |

oIl

[IASIV |

IITATG YIOM [E[20S pue Suisnoy

100Z un[ 1y sy 2je(] O, Teax 21} 10
suonteue]dxy asuerep
Surronuopy 198png anuassy




ysloig
‘paLmoul ammyipuadxa Jo asueape | Jo[1] EQUSWA(]
TN AUON BUON ur preog Rl Ay Aq apewr quawde] | G1ZE0000°0LE IN PI8'ceT
HI11V3dH
TV.LNHW
TV.LOL
aaiaysia
DNINAVIT TEN LLTALA s ]
: PN BUON 3UON seduelIe paqesi dunuea| IO v LOTVTY
. ‘31ep 0) 1vaA
m_u aup 10y uostredwon 198pnq o) [enoe AR
) PaIIOISIp sey sn pue Anf onn pade[ap aieny Aecy
D) @ I'N MON auoN 21am santed panp o) spuawded swmog TE9T wevs 09E 1IN 6¥5°'STI
o - "123JJ2 2e2A 1[Ny
13U 3] YsIqe)sa 0] ABMISpUn ST MaATAAI sanas)
v g5 aafo[dwa uo Suinwes ojep 22IN0saY
N UON SUON 0} 1E3A B UIDIJ PAjIJauaq Sl a0IALas ST, 0C9E wnss 09€ TN 0¥ TET
aaTavsia
ONINYVA]
T¥.LOL
ALITIEVSIA
TVOISAHd IN 667 FTF
IIN BUON BUON saouereA Amqesiq] [exsAyg Q0 Y iTN §90°93-
3 - T 5 (puadsiaao
123png sxeay uolay Jo pedu] uaye] IURLIEA = 2AlEdau)
13N U0 13T ag oF, 10 U] Uooy JIMIBLIEA Jh] SUGSEIY apo)) 1a8pa wnyng 3 adueLEA
Arepuopy papafoig QLA

TANAG)

SHIHE

[[ABIY

ADIAIDG HIOAL TRID0G pue Sulsnoy

100Z 2un{ ¥v sV 2je(Q 0], 183X 91} 104
swonjeue[dxy acuerre p
Sunrojiuoy 198png anuaasay




Page 20

wnyng pajrajoid - Jabpng pascuddy = esueuen pajaefol |enjawy » JaBpng = eIUENRA QLA
0 £PC DZ 1 (Y] LI 6L SiL'8L %E 621 6GL'F OEg v sadluag uowpodsuel) g Auedold Jeiel
0 o w0 0 :..VMV HV#WU. %0 0 0 D 4 ewsm.._.ﬂ__ gl dajuiial .Au__n_m u_mwu_w.:m“_.wmﬂﬂ_ﬂ._n_ H_.__wc._..a.mnnnm
0 0 HEE {ig) lag) (L2 %0 a 0 ] sBuarg (eucppy
0 0 %0 a 0 £0t %0 0 ] 0 saLof YNIS Juadsup
o o %0 0 0 0 %0 | 74 1] {v2) SaJABS prROY Huna|
] 0 %0 ] ] 0 %85 6% £:]1 ZL SA2IAISG JoRAUY
U 0 %0 0 0 0 %606~ (r+e) 4474 FL1 $80|0ag pojeley | Aladoly
0 o %0 0 0 0 %IEH og 09 (T} saaleg wodsuel] [Euiaul
0 -4 %0 o 95z 95E %G B &% zz VONA0I |EJSEOD
] 881} %0 [ 6L BBL'1 %2- 1513 BEL ¥61 Hodsuel) dpgng
- ¢ £88 % 0 [T ot %E 5 1) 478 Sea2 4 ABUDISEIIUO)
L P vz %0 D vz ¥29 %ot (6} a6 vEL sauiag
a Sl %0 0 LT 714 %08 1z (¥2) ) SPjaLHY § SIN0gey s
b] (g9) %0 0 (ae) (gg) "G &z (gs) (zg) Bupyeg
] St %0 0 Gl okl %T 1 28 381 o) Kyapes peoy ' Juawabeuew a)pel)
o LSE %0 0 196 156 %Sk ¥ Otk 58
0 622 %0 0 8ZT aze %6~ (ag} £8 BLI saapaag whisag
0 OLE'bH %0 ) OLE'¥) oLE'bL %9 T MWL'E 185’z specy
] 15¢ %0 0 152 252 %0 i gEg ¥t uatje|nfisy g AGojeng eajnag

T So0G3 %0607 % ¥0oO0¥ so00¥ - $000F % $G00F © S000¥ ugvm ; .
Afuf Wolq winpng Jup baLRBA Jabippg - winpro e LTV T ] wipng - ooy i
SOUBLIEA SNpJARL fou SO iy L ] aiA e Y—— %] Qi ‘.
A - T TRNaLeal-&ZIF K1 E T4 o] M NOWSOd 2LYQ OLAYIA

ZO-E0 2Unp potieg

saaia4ag Aladold pug uopelodsuel) - Alewwng aaposalgqo




Page 21

gjo198eg

9E 10 NOILVINVIIKH JINVIHYA S41

TSTianY
(£ ssatBord maIASY POpPLISDE
Jrosfud pue spos emoe aaouf
[IN suop| o) pemdard 2q o) [ewmoy "DIS FUAIRE SPR0Y WOL PAEIOEN 2 0) satmes geig]  dxF 10SE (000LS _ N LpTEE
SAMAHES NDISIA
TV.LGL SAVOoH IN| ao‘os
I suop sucH SROUBLIBA SPECY 210 Y IN]r16'F)
Aaoqu dXiF 1555 G0 0TS 01 PAPOD U3, 34BY PNOKS “JoLd
I'N AU0K PHEN00 MON | U1 om0 papodsiu wislsAs Bujsoo woy saBeg)) 51s0) waNdd| U] 1SS 0000GIS N |(090°T5)
Pa12aL00 MU "MO] 208
dmpoderpy Junoyuows jodpng| wesds Sunses wog (OGS Y SPOISILE OSTY N[ Of @ pRssesond
I anoN| A[nf jo wad sz inede mojasy oU 000" 06T JO 0T @ anp suatuded Ajuiepy swo) weng)|  dAXE 166570000015 IN| £0€°LLT
Juoymic pApng Aoy
Jie 1md se sy WanIpIe
1SBI0)/ UOHOB IAT]DALIOD
01 aald uoheisplsiod )
11 suon| pum patoyuaw ag o) nonisod)  Fumsed 1a8png Jo peaye ANUATD £1e00 podsmel ], S0 103PE | AT 6255 0D 0L 1] [Ty
gy
1 £ ssaudoid maney papuaum
[1014nd pime 51609 [EMY0E SA0U 0LS
I auoN 0} paredaid 3q o) [pusmor | aotams WS W 3q pinays YoTgw sisos [[orked atwos Jo Bwnpoosiy | dxg 10550000 015 I )issyes)
savoHd
TV.LOL HSS BN oow'rl
N suop G| SIOUELEA UGS S 1Y PEL'ST
PRI BI85,
AN 3o |pie paLIap! 2q ) sRIpOXSIEY ueyy 334fjed 515, Ismede padre usoq aney ss00 (Bmoe sweg | AN 6155 G000 008 BN |ar1es)
_ PIALIOD HISE,
[ SUON{PUE PIYNIPS 3G 0] EBUPCOSIY| ) SR 66, swiee padeys Usaq sawy Sisio (o aniog | dxg 6155 0000008 IN[ZIF' LY
NOLLY'TADTH ¥ ADALYHLS T0IAUTS)|
3 ¥ 3
{puadssarn
1P3pug saa g ausues | =aineday)
AN W0 JRYR LYW ], g 0} 10 L g ] winypnag JIUEBA
Asepuopy uoNYYy Jo Jauduey a3e [ uoIdYy J0UBLIB A, 10} SHOSWIY 138pan paaloag al1i

5l K adosq B uspepodiuely Juswpiedag

[O0T VN[ 33 58 (] 03 ABI K N} SO
suopeuB[dTy AIURLIE 4
Juuopuoly pipng Inuasey




Page 22

§jegdleg 9E9F IV6OVED NOILYINWIICT SONVINYA Sdl
L i
TV.LOL
SETALAHIY
¥ SHNOAUYH
‘SHAT (000°17)
N 2HON SIOULLIB A plaYITy 3 MOQRH ‘BT o0 TV VS6'T
o] 10FS O1ZEORS
Jupmaa 198png 38ty Wog dupumsine siwsuckeg| o] [opsonLLOS
[N Alof dump woisad copopy “Aesaoy pus uooun(] ‘amues) soj Apng mojaq swosul| M 10KS POLT NS {ZpRss)
[N STON| "2 SMOQRAY mpLAipe O] POTESO[R 51500 INq ABOUAD piay wipng|  dvq Lopniicors (bZL'CT)
" SUON | "2 SO [BRpIATpul o) peso](e Sison g Aenuso ppay i»8png|  dxd (ors 0000 0rs TIves
STINIHIY ONY SUNOTHVH 'Su I
TYLOL ONIYHYA 000°LT
N JuoN spoumeLes Bunpmg 0 Y 090z
Nied 193 S 1ed Ied [enpLAIpUT
Tt You3 ) PAIRI] I MOU leEpng [ papao SLioaul 1aq AlR4uos play ja3pngSunied leang GO] oy S84S5 D000 0ES (L1%'19)
‘Buuonmowr adgmyg £ng
ro bR 5% MAIAZY IBUEF AR
ISBORUAJS BOTOR SA1)3OII0D)
0} 2Md BORIOPISUCY
N PI¥ PIOILOE 3Y) 0] UDTIEG] 2y6p 01 198pmq 1o prage wosy Supyred 19BLE HO! O] TRES 0000'0ES 6FE9T
“Taqudag W uoipsod
aa1ay s3md Joo [enprarpn “A|[enuao ploy 1adpng g syred
N 0 338pnq Bunaoye ¢ Yoo | | sea [enprarpin o) poBamo 3ued seo Jo Snm] sy 1oty yBmgsuapry]  dvg BBESCTIF 0L ZIF1F
SNINUVA
T¥LOL DNLLHOIT W9
I oY sommem s SunysiT i [y (69E°1)
TN FUON] 00 0FF J0 Ay pua 18 Bumpemsng oy )] o) smowdeg swo) wang| &1 [es 0000116 6OL'Co
ONITHAT]
TVLOL NISTA {HH* 953
"N AN sooueLm A uBiead] O [Ty (FZH'ip)
“Bunoyuow edpng Lnr
{o 38 S8 MM JIUPUIILE
15BA2ID), BONOE AAT)Stion
Q) 3aid nopeIRpISUCD
BN PUR PRUGHUO 3G O] UONISOG| ATty u A12A00a (1L 4 910D 0} 193png usyy ssof §1s00 Jo sfleysay ] au 1852 0000046 (£Lg'0s)




Page 23

g Jo ¢ aleyg SE91 10/60ED NOLLVINVTIXH SINVIIVA SdL

Fwaogmows pEpNq Ajng
f._c ped s8 moraay] JuSwpaLm
WSUOO)/ UOHE DAYIELIOT
01 218 UoNEIapISUCD "S64 TF douBiIeA .
N SUON] U PRICIUOAI 2] 0] UOISOF| 3513api 18 0} 300U 15IRdE Yo oy sanssysasegpmy |30, yooig|  dxd [R9S D000 SIS IN] B6L'EE
PAMATAL ‘Paon{rl U3aq Sy Ja0| S8 M0 589] 01 30(] 'SO0'TEF
I'N auoN|  aq o soambat 1adpng 0T 128png mofaq AtaLms (Y1 o} suae] joox) sdemn weqoy) g {95006 SLS IN| 60T 0F
PaMAS] "PAINPAI UG S8 139 BB I0M S59f 0l ang] L CR'RET 12Epng
N UON] 9 a1 EaNRBR1 REpNG OT¢1|  mopaq Apuaimae o o1 siuswARg ¢ ysaic oFermn peaydpSuyoory|  dxd 1095 0000°S LS 1N] 000 LF
Pl "PAPNPRI USAQ S8 130Y) BB YI0M §53] D) A0(] CRE'GHT
i aucf  3q o1 saumbas pBpRg H7A|  1e8png smopq &uaima (yJc] o1 swswArg an( d8emn woouncl| AN 16550000 CLE BN 9v0'sy
1sndny | ¢ ssadoxd
MATATY "UBUnETPE jERI3I0]
ap pue Lodswel) [eusym
iN 200p U0 )33 JIEIRAQ BPIST0 Y 13PN PA3aA SIS0 SOUBIMSY] SIS0 Jeampuy| AN abGE OO0 §LS INJ(6EE0E)
JHOJENVUL TYNHALNI
TVIOL
NOILDALOYd
TYLSYOD TIN| o' of
3| oy 0N SIUMLEB A UOOXGI0L [NSEO]) UG [TV IN|(567)
IN Auap auoN| sdamoaw Bunteme seaifasd ot sjom Jo swrietfold s1s00 1000 | ¥ 15650000096 N | 6292 _
NOILYALOWA TVISVOD
TVI10L
LEOJSNVIL
MTHNS EN] (009N
Ll AMCK suop sAmUwA, UedsusL ), gng J9q10 [V INREre) -
(L AUoN 1aLi03 0 puanol 6530044 | 5058, Yitm sksoo jo uone3O|[ESHA ‘jqeal reyssy vodser] ogrd| Sl 905500007055 it 89LTH
N i 3 WAL 0F [BHAO] s53001g D0ES, Him SIS0 10 Boneod|usiig R Hodsuea] aipgag|  9u1 SOCS 000005 N )iesT'eL)
JHOASNYHEL NTand
TYLOL STITa¥ad N | (00*s¢)
N AUOp| auoN S3OWBLIEA AL U [V IENJ FLLED
S5O0
A113 7 anp/Ave Jo Junoyuow "Bl JO SpUIBLISL
BuciBugy saqusdsg 10§ BursoyEow [rgosso arnbal [jis pus jaasaad 18 papdiomm
Buump saruay |BnpLapur o) | wep say3ng AMs.] a0 AeISE UM PRDIDOSSE SIS0 ‘SALLAY [onpraTpm
N suon| 198png Jo uonpooe Je yoer]| o pedeyo amupuadsa 1ng SQjeausa Py 1sBpng Aus [ empziers]] At Sr s 0000 FSS I TS




Page 24

_ ¢ Joy oBeg . SEQL 1D NOILVINVIIXT FONVIIVA SdL
A 0T SAINGGRT [STO0G o PaAIEST
I'N SUON O PINES] SBM STI0AUL Y 124 10U pUm 804 18 pansdon suLosU] ‘Blemusy-psqm) £gy] U] €105 0000 FLS PN FGF EFT)
N auoN "PHOM JO 30UTAPE Ul poniooos sjuaurdeg 38pug [rsusau] (Y|  dX pT0S 0000 €S {IN{ 592'P9T
SUIOAL] poajaddxg
1 stiep]] P oy wipng yoaday ga0qe amypuadia {q jesn wedyioy £3v) W STOSOO00 LS BRYO RS
AMPPUSIXS pajoda
[N 3UOK 10221 0] yallpnq d[geidey MO2q AW A S0 WY £8V]  dNT ST0C 0000 £15 [IN] iB0'SPL
SIDTAWAS (TVOU ANNHL
TVYLOL
JIVHINGD NN 0O0'68
T AtioN A0 EIELE A SIIATE 10BAUO ) JATI0) |V IN{(LOB'LT)
Hucymwow Ay “SUOTINPa]
Jo ped sv paminal g [ FUIDS LA SATRISD 1803 |[8 0] SWIOOUT UT 3SB3L0M! [BISUAE)|  DUF gy s d4es | §S IN| sv£'901
Joqudag
ssafosd Mty -anusd 1500
N auoy| auo o) spEnjoe/sKEpng 3400y " D000, PUF 95U 1560 STL O Papod sruipuadio pung | dvit 008S 0000 185 | (sas°ne)
Rquisydag
seaidord matay dnuao s00
N o | 50 0) §[ENOe/ERAPNY dacky OGS, PUR 23190 1500 S1Y) 0 papos aryipusdsa mpung| A 0000 0000 189 N[ 8P9°0E
STOTANES IDVHINGD
TVIOL
ALNId0Ud nNj{ooo'rrz)
N QUON HIUN SI0UTLIB A AUSd0 ] B0 [TV IN[(oOr's T3
aaquuaidag Sjaea
molaay ‘ssadord vy |jepoys
Jaa0dal 0 stondo pie josdun LAR0IT
I'N SuoN|  mad |y Jo WOLBIURRY|  euny pua 1 Swooin pSelpng Jo Alaacaod opur) moou] sneisg | AT pORS ON0008S NI £68°07)
‘sasaLaxa B onuowt jadpng
amny U1 passasse 1900 JEak _ WU JBUCHIppE &g
1y P8 PAIOIAONT 34 [Jta | 1954a PINOYS K1502 [BE0HIPPE Inq puadsians sjqissod & oq Amw sy |
N suopf  auwoul pm sisoc Swodug|  128peq paaoxs spp 01 ss0]) w994 swRpnse) U AUadarg|0 1 161 T08S sens 08 W6y 2T
awp "MPascd Ml [0 WNBESS LR
N uoN|  andn mou 539] jo oBreyooy| Bugpuad saaf umap jo aBreyaaz m Ava(t wooungg udisa(] Anadorg| o Zo8S E1ZE ORS DN |(9€H86 )
aEp PIMPA00ID MU Jo Widtlizoude Jupuad
[ suof]  opdn smou sag) joadmgoay | s0of udisap jo afmgaa w deja] peandiiByao] whsaq Auadosg|  ouy zogsoct posgs NP cR)
STHANIS ALUAJOUd
TVEQL
JHOJSNYHL
TYNHALNI N} vo0‘og
N Suoy | SROUTLIEA HOASERLL, [DULRATL 12900 ||y (31 (144!
“Junojuom jedpng Aoy
10 170d SB MIASY JUALAPILLIR
lsazaLo) HONDE FALIIL09
0} 3a18 UONEIBEIEUGD SHLOTY I0TRLINA HEIAPE
I'N SUDN | DB PRI0)UOW 3y O} BOYISG] 132 0} amnpuady]] jsumie go jop SANSESASERMG P joois| 2T (895 0000°SLS ONfas'ps)




Page 25

§log adeg

9697 16IVED NOILVINVIIXH SONVRIVA SdL

STIANAS ALNTJ0Hd ¥ DAOdSNVHL|{000'FE1) | poifit
EJUUDIUOD
N SUON 3uaN WNIG 18014 0) sButnes [BUONPPY pojeoofjoum Jo sotmpeg | TYHANTD W e VN
TO0T/LO0T O
N auoy suo | uSLALGS B SW PIRAKY] PILLED SIOUE YRS Jo uoniod juadsu)) TYHANTD oou'ee1)  JviN
waopaag Lpadorg p uoppmdodsuva ], JaiQ Jy sod [EI0L IN| 000°61
TY1OL
SaVOY MNANL | 000'rT
N quop SUON SIOMELE A, SPeay] FMLL IR0 [TV IR MOGE L)
‘SYIoM fO
I auoN 20UBAPR W peA1ooad suauiied o) solrjay predmi-waipui] zev| ol 61050000 kLS | CE8'6E




wRyno paafold - Jabipng pascsddy = 80URLIEA PejOBl0Id jenjoy - RBpNg « BIUBLIBA QLA

(rz)) #8261l % i- (GEZ) ¥2'61 616’02 ULZE cLg 1ea'E BLET 5AAIIG JaLLUoAUT 7 juaudoiaasg ey
3] 0 %0 (L1} Q bk %0 0 0 ] SAUBUI TS Wwadsup
o ) %0 0 0 0 %0 Iy 0 kL [e8Q Mmap
] £ZZ'L %0 0 €zz'l £22Z'l %el F3 Eve Lo wsuno | g Juaiudo|aasg] oiwounag
[¥] ra %0 0 g oy 4 o%ET £7 1ol ¥ joJjue] m:m_..___:m R IOSUag u._.._m.En_o_m)mn_
~
Q 055 %0 0 999 859 %al al L& 7] suB|d Loimelg
O
w Lol |
o 1] SBE'V %0 0 GHE'Y GEE'Y %9 ] 9eg £82 Juadojasag ansie
i
dW) POl o8- {FzL) rra's gal'l % (o) GIE 0zt uol0aald dngng
0 Z¥6'0l %o 0 Zr6'0L Z¥6'0) %Y 612 £18'4 560'1 s02)Aag Ajjuowy
0 z6 %0 0 Z8 P4 %gL- {rz) ZEt 951 ulwpy g ucheinbay ‘Afejoilg srieg
0003 $000F % 50007 .S000F $000F . % S0003 . . S000F
ARLS WO wingno JBA asueues | talpng WARRO B aauelren 1abpng
| SOUBMEA  SAOMAR . a1 TP 7, S~
e R LA C TN L0 NOLLSOJ JLYCLOL SN

Z0-10 suAr poLiad

S82[AI9S juawuolAUg pue Juauidojana( - Alewwng aansolqo

| HANTOD
ONHES
A1y




Page 27

zJo | 3Beq

oSkl 10/80/1f NOILYINYTIIXT FINVIIVATVNIL S3Q

“poisnipe 34 01 PAjL0Ld "SANNUOY) WLSIU] YIESSOE], |RIAC2E) 109
N AUON; auen 9 puoley 4o oy suondunsse :3png jo souespe wuawded] 00000000 0FF N (+95°ET)
WSHHNOL %2 INTNJO TIATE HNWONODT
TV.LOL L
NIWJOTIARA
JUNSIAT IN{ 8L8°CS
N FHON auoN soouRUE A, 1uswdoaAa(] ANSRNT HIO IV IEN| £26°%
na pred UOOINGT - SUY
¥l FUON U0 A|[ny 124 you pue pua Jeak 18 parudse sjueid Juswdogasp 2isi]|  GOLEOO0COLY UN| SPO'FL
o pred|  jemusn amdn
N WON aucn|  Aping o4 pou pus pua Jead (e panidok SIUELT WId0PAD 20513 000N see DLP IN| 01€°Z€
ANTNJOTIATA HRISTAT
"T00Z/1 00T Submp|  NOLLOYELOH
I'N Buop UK SAMEEIT 2AMNEDA21d YInow) pUe 100] 0o paunsul ainppuadxy srandlsocrzn ¥IN
NOLLJZLOHI OV14i1d
SAINIANIS
ALINIWY IIN| LE9BIL
1IN SUON auoN SIOUELIEA, SIIATIE ALY SO IV 3LV
sy Jof pnpyas]  (esodsiy arse
IR ETN AuoN | Aou 15 10ER0o7) udy 2auaLINeY O WENUDD F4d pawnsse _Epng] 0000 eues £CT M| 660 Loy
snEny 0] judy waod) )pequed|siapecT pug uodg
I'N SUCN auop T34 01 13%s padejap wary SHE [I0N0)) 0} FUdIe U] (00D xens ISP | 615708
"DO0'T LT JO 37%P 01 SWOOUT [EUDTIPPY
R0y AWy ss008 POMAlAal ol $PIdU 51500 podsuen
Jo ayoid pue uonesofje ay . "LOSUEL] S20LAI3S ARRURY UH  DOHIMIO) 31584
PN BUON auop]|aagmas[a spuadsiepun juaredde Aq w5 B puadsiore uamdde sSIgLl 0000 gexs 1SH IN] ZEs'+0
‘pled ag oy s I3d
N Aoy QUON  3ARY YAIGM | (T YIBJ | £ T SE 51500 AUB[NSUOD Lid JO IBIMOIY | QOSH0000'05K IN{ 101211
SHMAHIS ALINIWY
¥ ¥ ¥
(puadsiaro
ipng saeay auguey | = aapedau)
Yizh Ut 3¥ajy aye | 3 0) 40 oD wimng AUBLIL A
AJE)IUOIA uo)j3y Jo pedu] He ], uniay AIUBLIE A 10] SUOSEIY Jadpay paafoag (LA

SINALIG JHHUUOIAUY PUb JuAdojaagg Juaum.edaE

10{7 20N )8 SB 3)e(] 0] 183 X 3|y 104
suopenEdxy auBY A
Suponuopy papng anuassy




wnIng pejoafold - 186png paaoiddy = sUBLEA pR)Iaj0l

[emay - jJeBpng = edurep QLA

0 {22} %0 (08} 14 962 %e 6E 066'L 1G6'L 83|85 poddng (gjo )
o ] 0 %0 it} o 1} %8 61 o¥e sa)lAoy Woddng
(Q\
n%q E {2 %0 0 (2} {2) %S 8t iv ABojouyoa) uoneLLIcU|
@
al
0 (8) %0 (08} () £L e L gov S83MIBG |BI2UELLY
0 (g} %0 0 Bez ¢Tord %l- A{ge) [H sagineg (eban g ajeiodio]
0 {1 Y0 0 (r) (v %0 | 281 [aUUDSI9 - BANIBNT 24T
' §0003 50003 % $0003 50003 so003 | ¥ 50003
Adddf HI0LL NG JBA SOUBLIOA - jolpng wayno 24 1abpng
DUBLIEA snojdlg fosd pasafoid - [enuuy ddy paydefosd aiA oLy
AMOLLOQ YN QIL9IC0N NOIISOJ JLVAOLUVIA

20-10”eunr poyad

S90IAdag Hoddng |eljua) - Alewlwns aaRoalqo




[Jo| +3eg

Y191 10/80/20 LSO 58 saoueiiep |pIunf

20

Do

0 095'6€
[N N *‘SaMIBLIEA RAI2G Hoddng pnua) P 000'LZ
'g150d JurdeA WOI)
N IIN{ Bwsue s3uraes 0) anp AWy “A3ojonipa ], voneuLIoju] - §§ 6tS LE
'8901A19% S1eaodio]) Aq opewt
,u_ SISBq JE[NI2I U0 $3210AL]| U3 JOU JAkY $28mS0 4 pur Junurlg o) sedreysay fewsauy
\ I'N ssaz01d 01 3901A195 G1i0dio]) SE SOUPLIBA DSIJADY *$3JA43G [eda] 3 Nesodio)) - §S (6L6YT)
¥ uondy Jo pedu] UINE], 34 03 JO WIYB], uondy 200418 A I0) SUOSERY 3 3
3@3— s1eay UCHRA { dUBIBA
JXaN u0 )23 wmnRQ ari
paraforg

s3{auag 1oddng [enua)) ;juaunaedagqg

T00T 2unf v Se 3Je(] 0) I8IX Ay} J0]
suopjeuedxy duvpIe A
Binaoyuop 198png anuaady




wnyng pajaalold - 1aBpny paaciddy = eauepes parrsiong

lenyay - JeBpng = souees LA

30 }E G EI()L110)

[ fa® ¥0L'Z %01 (z¥Z) BI5'Z 1917 G2 £9l [F)] {z08]
i
o 0 %0 {z¥2) Q {2 %0 ] 0 0
Gy (0LE) %0 ] and 801 %EQ Z6 SEiL ¥
] ] %0 0 51 51 %4 0 £ z
i) or %0 0 oy or %2 ¥ 9 FA
o 0 121 %0 1] Pl FiL %366 | £5 £ (15)
(90)
O & 6c %0 0 68 56 %BE- e} ! §
(@)}
©
al 0 ele] %0 ] g9 99 %8 {g) Zh al
0 91z %0 0 gl g %45} ZZ ¥l (2
o zag %0 0 208 zog %Z1 04 0g 0l
1] 106} %0 0 105'L LOS'L %1 {$06)
Al tOs4 . WIRNG JEA aditerrep yebpng . HANNo A BouBLaN jebpng
souepsp  snopaid aid /L —— LN
NOLLSOJ JLY] OL YA

aligng a8y} 0) S8dIAIRS [elUY - AleWWING 2ANRY3(Q0

Z0-10" eunf popag




1Jo ¢ a9e4

(€9l L/BO/LG 418D SS sadurley ((ouang

] 0 L5951
IIN N 1IN "Saauelies LS PBRG 000'¥1
‘paroidde are s1oaf0id se reak ui Jare| .
Jeadde jm amypuadys [BmoY 134 se puads [enjoe S| I
££E'EC 9MMSAOL 11 (P80 ANANDY PUE GpL'|§ WIWUIIA0H
128png [eaoT SuIsiwapo 05O AABIY W sFuiseyd p8png s
IN|  yns spemoe yojewr Jpim s3msey puawy| 01 anp §1 0VeLEA J[JRINOAR] 2y |, *SAOIUEFRISI - JLSD 70€'Z6
-t "1eoA sn01421d woly presmio] 1qdnolg SIns
QW panungod gulaq sasueqeq 1pa30 UIMOYS Sjenide 9P O
mu IIN I'N [IN| 1834 se 20UELIEA SIGRINOAR,] "SaApef)iuf ajetadio]y - 418D §6E'ES
a) e
3 oy jo yedury uaye], 2q 0) I0 UINE], U0YIY DULE A JO] SUOSBIY 3 3
12dpng sieax _ AUBIBA | IIUBHEBA
1XaN vo 123q wnpno LA
famjauopy . paaafoag

N NP 0) SAALRS [ENUI)) Judnr).redag]

00T 2unf je se ajeqq 63 IBIX ) o
suoneusjdxy dueaE A
Suri0)1uo]A] 193pNgY INUIAIY




Page 32



Page 33

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE
FINANCE 6 SEPTYTEMBER 2001

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING — 30 JUNE 2001

1 SUMMARY

1.1 This report gives details of the first budget monitoring exercise for 2001/2002. A
small surplus of less than 0.5% of projected expenditure is forecast. This
provides a cushion against any future expenditure pressures.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1  Straiegic Policy Committes note the budget monitoring report.

2.2 Strategic Policy Committee instruct directors to ensure expenditure is contained
within budget.

3 DETAIL

3.1 The first budget monitoring exercise for 2001/2002 has been finalised. This
exercise was completed as at 30 June 2001. The attached table summarises the
overall financial position.

3.2 The undemoted adjustments have been made to the budget as per the budget
hook. These represent allocation of ring fenced funding approved as
supplementary estimates, revised presentation of budget figures for McCrone and
additional savings to fund residual Special Islands Needs Allowance
commitments. The table reflects the decisions taken at the Strategic Policy
Commitiee of 16 August with regard to savings by Education and Transportation
and Property Services.

£
Ring Fenced Funding - Modernising Gov Fund 416,000
Supporting People 34,000
Young Scot 244 000
694,000
Revised presentation of McCrone — move income to Aggregate 2,857,000
External Finance
Additional savings re Special Islands Needs Allowance (500,000)
commitments
Repayment proposals agreed for Education and Transportation (737,000}
and Property Services
2,314,000
Budget book net expenditure —cash requirements 144,345,000

Budget monitoring report — net expenditure 146,659,000



33

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

Page 34

All of the above have also been reflected in projected outturn except the
unidentified portion of additional savings for Housing and Sccial Work and
Transportation and Praperty Services. The projected outtum also reflects the
commitment for Special Islands Needs Allowance of £468,000. Finally virement
of savings in loan charges to central support services of £80,000 to finance
development of internal audit has also been included, This was approved at
Council on 9™ August 2001.

The departments where projected expenditure exceeds annual budget other than
the residential commitments for special islands needs allowance of £468,000 are;

Development and Environment Services £124,000 — Foot and Mouth expenditure
not budgeted,

Housing and Social Work £58,000 — Unidentified portion of additional savings

Transportation and Property Services - £31,000 — Unidentified portion of
additional savings.

The net position per the budget monitoring report is a projected surplus for the
vear of £559,(00. Further adjustments for the unidentified portion of additional
savings for Housing and Social Work and Transpertation and Property Services
of £58,000 and £31,000 would increase the surpius to £648,000. This can be
reconciled to budget as follows:

£

Surplus per budget 2,000
Repayments by Education and 737,000
Transportation and Property Services
Additional savings 300,000
Special Islands Needs Allowance
commitments {468,000)
Foot and Mouth expenditure (124.000)

647,000

The net position is a small surplus of £559,000. This represents less than 0.5% of
the projected outturn expenditure of £147,339,000. It provides a small cushion
against future expenditure pressures which may arise during the year. It shonld
also be bomne in mind that this surplus is dependent upon achievement of
Education and Transport and Property repayment proposals and other
departments additional savings. Although these have been accepted and
projected these are not guaranteed,

Progress is being made with improvements to budget monitoring. The current
position in respect of Housing and Social Work, Development and Environment
Services, Central Support Services and Central Services to the public is that a
reasonable level of confidence can be expressed in the information in the budget
monitoring report.



Page 35

3.8  The project team have started work within Education. At present it is too early to
comment on the quality of the budget monitoring position. A start has also been
made 1n respect of Transportation and Property Services. This has however been
hindered by the resignation of the Project Manager and difficulties in sourcing a
replacement on an interim basis. Again it is too early to comment on the quality
of the budget monitoring position. In the case of both departments additional
variances have been highlighted to the departments for explanation.  Acceptable
explanations have been received to these further queries. Arising from this the
departments are arranging to reallocate some budgets, reprofile some budgets
and recode actual expenditure. Until these adjustments are made and the
resulting improvements in ¢ost centre budget monitoring materialise a statement
on the quality of budget monitoring for these departments cannot be given.

Bruce West

Head of Accounting

29 Aupusi 2001

report/1 7augbwrevbudmonSPC



Page 36

LI BROHEL - 800G Baoddy o S0y piReiad oy - 3afpne] = SILELEA LA

S

i 1B QFZE (.4 #%. S0EL Hie- 45)] QaiE 3 ¥ 8M1unskilE3g

[V L] iper Fn) iBegzr) %0 0 lezg'sz) (£26'07) CNIONRE Y101
BaSEY Y H WON HSuEl]
%o o lgg7i 12 ] % 0 0 q KE ) 8307 [2UOR

%0 ] 85E"pE} LT Tl %0 ] a ] wawaimnbey el R0
LA IG Wosy Uouhiuiua)

%0 [\ (ev2'g1e) {rbz'Tie) %0 0 l£zo'ez) {gze ge) LU £ Wi n] Syehalthy

&) [T [ BEC'LPL %9 SOT E IFOTE, LRT Anppuadxg Jen v L

%0 o BZ¥ (5 Tl¥ oy 5] o saipgatary snjding

%o i LT 9e8'L %0 o {oo1's) osrs WS nipy Bursiiouid [Exdey

RZO¥ q a a Rk 1] (640'v) (1817} Wby anuansy Bupsnoy Aomels

0 o 654°¢ 854 H ®a 5 EHE'Z BEGE spalag lunf

%0 o 7852 ZB5C %HEL- [fa3) BT 9Lt 4100 oyenew e g Heedie)

w0p- ztz) 6L L'z %52 2] ] (208} 2|1 GNd @tk 0 BOAISE EUURD

%0 {oat ¥4 BT -4 8 0685’} 1563 ! 5 MOing RAva)

b~ lsted LB BHO'0Z %Iz i ZED'E 1 SAAALAG JUBUUD A o S S OaAR]

%k tpesl HO'6) SLIGh %E B2k =4 oeg'y sepatag Apsdol ] g podsue |

Sl Le] 1 200'6Z %9 tee Sy SGH'E S0 16305 g Bursnopy

%o (i) 2K0°Z8 ey - {ag1) 80K} SPEPL ojjenpg

% R - 0007 % o3 0007

oA SN - dadprig uRynG ”A ouees wbprig
et e SO iy Oty peioelacs ] QA OGA Ak
|EEE’ HOLLSOZ JLea QL s |

T0-L07RURF POLBY

AIBWHIING SA1)9940 - |Iounon ajng |IABNy



Page 37 Agenda Item 7

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 8 NOVEMBER 2001

CODE OF AUDIT PRACTICE

1 SUMMARY

A revised Code has been issued by Audit Scotland. It sets out the way in which an
auditor appointed by the Auditor General or the Accounts Commission should carry out
functions under the Public Finance and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000 or the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973, It therefore covers the audit to be carried out by our
new external auditors Audit Scotland.

In conjunction with the Code, Audit Scotland have alse published a statement of
responsibilities of auditors and of audited bodies. A copy of the statement 1s attached.
The statement makes reference to the audited body having a responsibility to establish
proper corporate governance arrangements, manage its affairs to secure econemic,
efficient and effective use of resources, maintain accounting records, prepare financial
statements, safeguard assets, and take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities. In the Cede, the section on Corporate Governance
arrangements, refers to audited bodies usually involving their Audit Committee in
maonitoring the arrangements.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

A report by Internal Audit be submitted to the Audit Committee on an annual basis,
reporting on the Council’s compliance with the responsibilities of the Council detailed
in the Statement of Responsibilities of auditors and of audited bodies.

Stewart McGregor
Director of Finance
B Qctober 2001

reports/8novauditcommeodeofauditpractice



Page 38



Page 39 @-\UUII SCUITLAND

Statement of responsibilities of

auditors and of audited bodies




Contents

Introduction
Respansibilities
financial staternents

Corporate governance
arrangements

Performance management
Special powers and duties
Grant claims

Reparting the audit

Ad hoc requests for the
auditors views

Public private partnerships/
private finance initiative

Audit Scotland

Audit Scatiand is a statutory body set upin Apnl 2000, under the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2600. It provides services 1o both the Auditor General
{or Scotland and the Accounts Commission. Together they ensure that the Scottish
Executive ahd public seclor bodies in Scotland are held to account for the proper,
efficient and effective use of public funds.

Auditor General for Scotland

The Auditor General for Scotland is the Parliament’s watchdog Tor ensuring propriely
and value for money in the spending of public funds.

He is responsibile for investigating whether public spending bodies achieve the hest
possible value for money and adhere 1o the highest standards of financial
management.

He is independent and not subject 1o the control of any member of the Scottish
Executive or the Parliament,

The Auditor General is responsible Tor securing the audit of the Scottish Executive
and mast other public sector bodies except local authorities and fire and police
boards.

The fellowing bodies fall within the remit of the Auditor Generai:
& cdepariments of the Scottish Executive eg the Department of Heafth
executive agencies eg the Frison Service, Historic Scotland
NHS boards and trusts
further education colleges
water authorities
WDPBs and others eg Scotish Enterprise.

The Accounts Commission

The Accounts Commission is a statutory, independent body, which through the audit
process, assists local authorities in Scotland to achieve the highest standards of
financial stewardship and the economic, efficient and effective use of their resources.
The Commission has tive main responsibilities:
4 securing the external audit
s following up issues of concern identified through the audit, to ensure satisfactory
resolutions
reviewing the management arrangements which audited bodies have in place to
achieve value for money
carrying out national value for money studies 1o improve economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in local government
issuing an annual direction to local authorities which sets out the range of
parfermance information which they are required to publish.

The Commission secures the audit of 32 councils and 34 joint boards {induding
police and fire services). Local authorities spend over £9 billion of public funds a year.




Statement of responsibilities of
auditors and of audited bodies

Introduction

L

-

Ile Aodior General Tor Scotfand Canditor General ) and the Accoents
Coertssion for scotland Ve Aceounts Comntssion” 1 ace respansible for
appoiiting auditors and determining their ternws of sppomunent. s well as
o appreving the Code af Audit Practice 7the Code™ which sets out the
fraumewark within which auditors are ta carrv out their functions, Awli
Sevtland 1w a stiatulory hud_\‘ that prm’idc.\ services te the Andior General
ard
suditors anrechmeal manters and monitrs their perfornance through .

e Aceeunts Commision and provides guidatoe and support o
quidlity controf process.

The prurpaese of this statwment s dasist the auditer and andited bodies by

smnrising where o the contes: of the wsoad condact of the awdit = the

exponsibilitios of e auditor begin and ond, and what is to be cxpected of

e astbieed pedy e cortann areas,

The responsibibities of the auditor are derived from staaze Dpemdpally the
Pelaiie Finance amd Accountability Dscotfandy Ace 2000 and the Lol
Governneent cheothond s Act 1973 as imterpreted by the Code, Noething i
this statement s anterded 1o limin or extend those responaibilites. In

sarticular, dudited bodics should note that, becawse the audivors

andependence of the audited Body st not be prejudiced. it mel the
auditor’s rede to oot an a fnancial or fegal adviser or consudant s the audited

By,

[ additiesn o the framowork foe the gt and ather swork comaumed o the
Codde, Audst scotlaond iy sssue guidanee 6 T e Hnme o dsset i

sudizor e the apphceation of the Code,

Uhe auditer may wish o reler to s siatement ioeudiz plans, ihe annual

Qb ePOrT, TRnage Il Pt wed other o,

Responsibilities

wondited body s respormable S the conduoet of pubbic pusimess s the

Fenddling oF pubbic mones and, s such, s ulhy acconnteble for the condua
vtk Business onacvordanee with the e and proper standards, ensoring
that puitic mongy s sateguarded and properly accounied Torand used
coonornicalle, erficientheand cfteciivels Ciiven thes accoansability e the
aullac tor the comdact of pablic basimess aod stewandslop of feods ooder s
contral the siedited hody therefore Bas o respemisibility 1o estanhsh proper

COFPORATY GOVSTITICY GERANEeNTeNTE, MAnase its Al [ sucury econemic.

eritcient amd oflective wse of resources, muintin avcounting records, propare

Sl stcirents, safeguard wssels, anad Like veasenalle steps Tor the

sreveritien and detoction of fraod aed ather srrcaolaries.

s e audd ior's responsibilicy 1o foras an Irdependent and aived ive view
o the discharge by the audired body 68t stewardship responsibizities, Tnoao
doong, e aadsor iy wish o el sepresontaiions Sy maeageiment,

ol oradle asnd nweriting, o smporta e,



8.

Page 42

The following paragraphs summarise the responsibilities of the audited body
and auditor in relation to each of the principal functions of the auditor
described in the Cede.

Financial statements

9.

10,

It is the responsibility of the audited body and its management to:

B act within the law and ensure the regularity of transactions by putting in
place systems of internal contrel to ensure that financial transactions are in
accordance with the appropriate zuthority

® maintain proper accounting records

B prepare {inancial statements timeously which (depending on the financial
reporting framework) give a true and fair view or present fairly the
financial position of the body and its expenditure and income.

The auditor is required to audit the financial statements in accordance with
Staternents of Auditing Standards and to give an opinion:

8 whether, as appropriate, they give a true and fair view or present fairly the
financial position of the audited body and its expenditure and income for
the period in question

® whether they have been prepared in accordance with relevant legislation
and applicable accounting standards

m except for local government badies, on the regularity of the expenditure
and receipts.

The financial statements should be prepared by the audited body in
accordance with the timetable prescribed by statute or required by
appropriate sponsoring departments or bodies, for example, the Scottish
Executive Health Department in the case of NHS bodies. The financial
statements submitted for audit by the audited body should be prepared in
accordance with all appropriate regulatery requiremenis and be supported
by appropriate accounting records and werking papers prepared to an
acceptable professional standard.

An auditor appointed by the Auditor General is responsible for ensuring that
the audit is completed in a timely manner which enables the Auditor General
and the Scorttish Ministers to comply with their duties under Sections 22{(4)
and (5), Public Finanice and Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000, An auditor
appointed by the Accounts Comimission should complete the audit by the
date specified by the Commission.

The auditor takes reasonable steps to remain apprised of significant financial
transactions or events that are unusual or of guestionable reguldarity. The
auditor has a responsibility to review and, where appropriate, repart on the
audited body's corporate governance arrangements as they relate to the
regularity of transactions which might have material financial consequences,
The auditor will obtaia reasonable assurance that there is compliance with
the starutory and ather requirements applicable to the financial statements
of the audited body, and that material requirements for accounting
presentation and disciosure have been met. Where there are secondary
financial statements, such as those for trust funds and the commaon good in

Ctatmmont of crcmcocibilitine of 2 adidtors 2nd of 2oditad hadine



Page 43

the case of Jocal government bodies, the auditor assesses whether regulations
or trust deed requirements have heen complied with to the extent that non-
compliance might cause a material misstaterment in the financial statements
of the audited body when viewed as a whole.

The auditor will examine selected transactions and balances on a test basis
and assess the significant estimates and judgements made by the audired
body and its management in preparing the financial statements,

Corporate governance arrangements

15.

The audited body has a responsibility to put in place arrangements for the
conduct of its affairs, ensure the legaiity of activities and transactions and to
monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements in practice.

Internal control

16.

Iy,

To ensure the proper conduct of its business, the audited body hasa
responsihility to develop and implement systerns of internal control,
including systems of financial, operational and compliance centrols and risk
management znd, for most bodies, at least annually 1o conduct a review of
the effectiveness of the body’s systems of internal control and report publicly
that it has done so.

The auditor has a respounsibility to review and, where appropriate, report any
findings on the audited body’s review aof its systems of internal control. It is
the responsibility of the audited body to undertake a proper assessment of
the risks facing the audited body and to implement systerns and procedures
to address those risks. The anditor is not responsible for reviewing the
effectiveness of the audited body's procedures.

In relation to financial systems relevant to the financial statements the
auditor will evaluate those systems and related controls, Other systems will
be considered in accardance with the responsibilities set out in the Code, In
practice the auditor will not examine every financial activity or accounting
pracedure. The auditor will rely on the results of the evaluation of the
andited body's systems, supplemented, as negessary, by appropriate tests of
control or detail. Whilst the auditor aims to identify any major weaknesses in
a system under review, the auditor's work should not be relied upon (o
identify all weaknesses that may exist.

As part of the organisation’s control framework, it is the responsibility of the
audiled body W secure effective internal audit arrangements and to ensure
that, commensurate with the assessment of risks facing the body, internal
andit work is properly planned, comtrolied, performed and reviewed, The
working assumption used to estimate the indicative fee for the audit is that
internal audit work 15 undertaken upon which the auditor can place reliance
in accordance with Statement of Auditing Standards 5040.

Prevention and detection of fraud and frrequliarities

20.

[t is the responsibility of the audited body to estzblish arrangements to
prevent and detect fraud and irregularity. It therefore needs to put in place
proper arrangements for:

» developing, promating and monitoring compliance with standing orders
and financial instructions

w developing and implementing strategies to prevent and detect frand and
irregularity; and

Statement of resoansibilities of auditors and of audited bodies



Page 44

® receiving and investigating allegations of breaches of proper standards of
finarncial conduct or fraud or irregularity.

21, The auditor plans his approach to this aspect of the Code in accordance with
professional guidance. However, the auditor does riot perform detailed tests
of transactions to the extent that would be necessary to disclose all unlawful
or irregular transactions or events that may have occurred, or might occur,
and the audit process should not be relied upon to disclose such matters.
The work of the auditar should not be raken as a substitute for the audited
body obtaining approprnate legal advice,

22, The auditor has & responsibility to review and, where appropriate, report eny
findings an the audited body's arrangements in relation to the prevention
and detection of fraud or error. The auditar’s work does not remove the
possibility that fraud or irregularities have occurred and remained
undetected. It is not the auditor’s function to prevent fraud or irregularity,
although the auditor will be alert to the potential for such acts and will act
with no undue delay if such instances come to light,

Sstandards of conduct; integrity and openness

23. 1t is the responsibility of the audited body te ensure that its affairs are
managed in accordance with proper standards of conduct. It therefore needs
10 put in place proper arrangements for:

B implementing and monitoring compliance with appropriate guidance on
standards of conduct

m expressing and promoling appropriate values and standards across the
body

® developing, premoting and monitering comnpliance with standing orders.
and financial instructions.

24. The auditor has a responsibility to review and, where appropriate, report on
the audited body’s corporate governance arrangements as they relate to
standards of conduct and arrangements in relation to the prevention and
detection of corruption,

Financial position
25. 1t is the responsibility of the andited body to conduct its affairs and to put in

place proper arrangements to ensure that its financial position is soundly
based having regard to:

®» such financial menitoring and reporting arrangements as may be specified

8 compliance with statutory financial requirements and achievement of
financial targets

1 levels of balances and reserves; and

2 the impact of planned future palicies and known or foreseeable future
developments on the body’s financial position.

26. The auditor has a responsibility (o review and, where appropriate, report any

findings on 1he audited body's arrangements as they relate to the financial
position of the audited body. While it 15 Hkely that the auditer will focus an

Conbnmimak nf wncmamsikillaia: ok o adidaus cmad nf ~aditad bedine



Page 45

the arrangements made by the audited body in relation to, say, budgetary
controd and financiel reporting, it is not the auditar’s responsibility to
consider in detail the audited body’s corperate strategy, financial plans,
projections or budgets. Accardingly, the auditor is unlikely to identify any
deficiencies that these may contain.

Performance management

Arrangements for securing value for money

27, Itis the responsibility of the audited body to ensure that suitable
arrangements are in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
the use of its resources, and that they are working effectively, These will
inciude procedures for planning, appraisal, authorisation and contral,
accountability and evaluation of the use of resources, and to ensure that
performance targets and required outcomes are met and achieved.

28. The auditor discharges the responsibility to consider the audited body's
arrangements for securing value for money by reviewing and, where
appropriare, examining evidence that is relevant to aspects of those
arrangements. The auditor’s planning process in relation to this will have
regard to an assessment of audit risks and significance, evidence from other
aspects of the avdit or previous audit work, the work of other auditors where
appropriate, and any guidance issued by Audit Scotland.

Use of resources

29. Where appropriate in relation to participation in value for money studies
regarding an aspect of the audited body's services or functions, the audiror
undertakes the necessary fieldwork and reports in accordance with guidance
from Audit Scotland.

30. The auditor's consideration of aspects of the audited body’s performance
management is not a consultancy or advisory exercise. It is carried out with a
different resource input and relies on information from menagement,

31. While consideration of performance management provides an independent
assessment of the audited body’s arrangements far securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources, it cannot be relied on 10
have identified every weakness or every opportunity for improvement.
Before deciding whether to place reliance on conclusions and
recommendations from a performance audit, the audited body should
cansider them in the broader business, commercial, or ather relevant
context,

Best vaiue performance management and planning

32. Guidance issued by the Scottish Ministers about Best Value requires local
government bodies to develop a performance management and planning
framewark which establishes clear standards and targets for all of the body's
activities, identifying where and how improvements can be made, and
reporting on performance,

33, The auditor’s responsibility within the overall framework of value for money
work is o provide an independent, external report on the audited body's
progress in implementing appropriate frameworks, identifying good practice
for wider dissemination and aréas of concern and ensuring that services are
plantung for improvement. The auditor discharges the responsibility in
accordance with guidance from Audit Scotland.

Tiotmrmant nf rentnancikiliriar AF anditare 2as A anAcrad Readias



o

Page 46

tocal autharity performance indicators

34. The Local Government Act 1952 requires the Accounts Commussion to
specify information which local authorities must publish zbout their
performance. The auditor’s duty is to be satisfied that the audited body has
made the necessary arrangements for collecting, recording and publishing
performance information.

ek
wm

The auditor discharges this duty by appraising the audited body's
arrangements, testing the completeness and appropriateness of the
arrangements and considering whether statutory reporting requirements
have been met.

Special powers and duties

36. Under Section 22{3), Public Finance and Accountability (Scorland) Act 2000,
the auditor must send the financial statements and the auditor’s report 1o the
Auditar General, who may prepare a report. Whilst the decision to prepare a
subsequent report and the centent of that report are the responsibility of the
Auditor General, the auditor must keep the provision in mind and should
bring to the atiention of Audit Scotland any matter which may give rise 1o
such a report at the carliest opportunity.

37. The auditor of a local autherity has a duty to repart to the Controller of
Audit on any matters in respect of which there may require to be an exercise
of the Controller of Audit’s statutory reporting powers under Section 102,
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973,

Grant claims

318, The responsibility for ensuring the preparation, accuracy, completeness and
rimeous submission ¢f any grant claims and returns lies with the audited
hody, The Scottish Ministers, sponsoring bodies or athers may require
independent examinzation as a condition of their acceptance of claims or
returns and in advance of any reimbursement being made. Audir Scotland
will advise the auditor of claims or returns which have been approved for
examination by the auditor and ne others should be accepted without the
prior approval of Audit Scotland.

39. In conjunction with the audited body, the auditor is required to identify
those "approved” claims likely 1o be prepared and submitted by the audited
body and to assess, agree and incorporate the time required for such work in
the audit plan. When required, such information should be made available to
Audit Scotland.

4¢.  The auditor shonld have regard to any grant notes and other guidance issued
by Audit Scetland in relation to such claims and returns.

Reporting the audit
41. It is anticipated that the auditor will provide such epinions and reports as
required by the fetter of appointment and the Code,

42, ‘when considering the action to be taken on outputs from the audit process,
the audited body should bear in mind the nature and scepe of the auditor’s
work and the responsibilities of the auditor as set out in the Code and
expluined in this statement. Matters raised in reports will be drawn from
those that came to the auditor’s attention during the audit. The audit cannot
and should nor be relied upon to detect all weakness, errors or opportunities

statement of responsibilities of auditors and of audited bodies



43,

Ad
14,

Page 47

for improvement in the body's arrangements that might exist. The audited
body showld assess conclusions and recommendations in audit outputs for
their wider implications before agreeing to the action plan to be included
with the auditor’s managemens or other report.

Although reports may be addressed to the members or managers of the
audited body, they are prepared for the sole use of the audited body, the
Auditor General, Controller of Audit, Accounts Cemmission or Audit
Scotland. Auditors appeinted by the Auditor General should also recognise
that most accounts will be {aid before the Scottish Farliament and
accordingiy the Parliament will also be an addressee of the audit opintan.
Certificates and reports to grant paying agencies are prepared for the sole use
of those agencies or for any agency having statutory rights of access to them.
The auditer does not undertake responsibilities to members, directers or
managers in their individual eapacities or to third parties.

ho¢ requests for the auditor's views

There may be occasions when the audited body will seck the views of the
auditor on the regularity, accounting treatment or performance management
implications of 2 transaction or proposed course of action before embarking
upon it. in such cases the auditer will be as helpful as possible, but the
auditor is precluded frem giving a definitive view in any case because:

& the auditor’s independence must not be prejudiced by being involved in
the decision- making of the audited body

m the auditor is not 2 financial or legal adviser to the audited body; and

m the auditor mav not act in any way that might fetter the ability to report on
the matter, or to exercise the powers conferred by statute on the auditor,
the Auditor General, Contraller of Audit, the Accounts Commission or
Audit Scotland.

In response to such requests, the auditor can only be expected to offer an
indication as to whether anything in the information available to them at the
time of forming a view is likely to cause the auditor to consider repurting on
the matter. Any response from the auditor to such a request should not be
taken by the audited body as suggesting that the proposed transaction or
course of action will be exempt from challenge in future, whether by the
auditor or others entitled to raise objection to it. It is the respansibility of the
audited body and its managernent to decide whether to embark on any
transaction or course of action.

Public private partnerships/private finance initiative

46,

47,

An audited body considering a project under a public private partnership or
the PFI should appoint its own financial and legal advisers. It is for the
audited body to 1ake such advice as they consider appropriate before
proceeding with any such project.

while any public private partnership or PFI development will require to be
considered by the auditor as part of the responsibilities under the Code,
indicative fecs for the audit specified by Audit Scotland do not specifically
provide fur the auditor requiring o undertake audit work in relation to a
public private partnership or PFI project. Where it is apparent that such
audit work will require to be undertaken, Audit Scotiand will consider a
request [rom the auditor to enter discussions with the audited body over fees.

Sratement of responsibilities of autitors and of audited badies



Page 48

48. If the auditor were asked for views on a proposed course of action this would
be regarded as an ad hoc request for the auditor’s view within the context
outlined in the paragraphs above.

Statement Of responsibilities of auditors and of audited bodies



Page 49 Agenda Item 8

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 8 NOVEMBER 2001

PROPRIETY AND AUDIT IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR

1 SUMMARY

A paper on Propriety and Audit in the Public Sector, has recently been issued by the
Public Audit Forum, a body established in 1998 by the then four national audit
agencies: The National Audit Office (NAQO), the Northem Ireland Audit Office
(NTAQ), the Audit Commission for Local Authorities and the National Health Service
in England and Wales, and the Accounts Commission for Scotland.

The purpose of this paper is 10 provide management and auditors with an understanding
of propriefy in the public sector and the implications for its audit. It covers the
tollowing issues:

¢ The concept of propriety, drawing on parliament’s expectations;
e Failures of propriety;

o Safeguards against failures of propriety;

e Audit approach to propriety

The definttion of propriety is given in the paper as follows -

- Propriefy is concerned with the way in which public business should be
conducted There are a number of different interpretations of this concept.
Dictionary definitions refer variously to “appropriateness”, "rightness”
“correctness in behaviour or morals ", “conformity with convention in conduct "
In the context of public administration, the Nolan commiitee has defined
prapriefy as encompassing:

“not only financial rectitude, bwl a sense of the values and behaviour
appropriate to the public sector”



Page 50

Similarly, the Public Accounts Commitiee has used phrases such as "the
standards of public conduct” and “care for the honest handiing of public money”
and “iraditional public sector values”.  Public sector auditors are especially
concerned with the financial aspects of propriety, i.e. the proper conduct of
affairs that have financial implicarions. This is embodied in ihe definition of
propriety sef out in Government Accounting: “Propriety is the requirement that
expenditure and receipls should be dealt with in gecordance with Parliament's
intentions and the principles of Parliameniary control, including the conventions
agreed with Parliament.”

Propriety is concerned with standards of conduct, behaviour and, in particular,
fairness, integrity and the maintenance of a responsible attitude to public office. The
concept of propriety is different, although not unrelated to other concepts of behaviour,
both positive and negative. Other relevant concepts, are put forward in the paper, as
being related to propriety, as follows:

i) Accountability

i) Regularity, or legality
i) Property

i) Value for Money

V) Fraud

vi) Corruption

vil)  Governance

viliy  Internal Control

Internal Audit has its own part to play in the scrutiny function. Apart ffom its role as a
component in the internal control environment, it can act as a body’s own conseience
on matters of propriety. The Auditing Practices Board internal andit guideline sets out
the importance of internal audit’s freedom of access and reporting to all senior
management and the board. This provides a crucial mechanism for challenging the
actions of senior officers and members. Internal audit’s focus on risk and internal
controls and detailed knowledge of its client body places it in a powerful position to
detect issues of propriety. Close liaison with a body’s internal audit is therefore likely
to greatly help external auditors undertaking a review of propriety o achieve a thorough
understanding of the business.

The Chief Executive has forwarded the paper on propriety to the Director of Corporate
and Legal Services for his attention and action as appropriate.



Page 51

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Audit Committee note the publication of the paper and the remit given to
the Director of Corporate and Legal Services to recognise and act on as
appropriate.

2.2 The Audit Committee note that the paper 1s intended as guidance to public

sector managers and to provide clarification on the type of work that auditors
of public sector bodies may undertake in the area of propriety.

2.3 Internal audit recognise the contribution that they can make in the arca of
propriety by being aware of the paper and liaising with external audit in any
review of propriety cartied out by them.

Stewart MeGregor
Director of Finance

9 October 2001
reports/8novanditcommproprietyandauditintheopublicsector



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53 Agenda Iltem 9

ARGYLLE AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 8 NOYEMBER 240)

REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT: SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT - DR A MIDWINTER

1. SUMMARY

Dr Midwinter has issued his supplementary report following the Accounts Commission
report on Internal Audit “A Job Worth Doing — Raising the Standard of Internal Audit in
Scottish C'ouncils” - copies of these reports are attached.

‘The Accounts Commission report places Argyll and Bute in band 4 (the lowest band in
terms of non-compliance with the Code of Practice on Internal Audit). Dr Midwinter
points out that this is not a situation the Council can accept, but the report is already dated
as the Council has already taken action on several of the issues. He makes reference to six
critical factors (on page 8 of the report) and points out that the establishment of the Audit
Committee and the impiementation of his report enhances the Council’s position with
regard to terms of reference/objectives; independence; resourcing; and accountability
arrangements.

The formation of a partnership arrangement on the delivery of internal audit services. as
approved by the full Council is intended to move the internal audit service forward quickly
including compliance with the Code of Practice on Internal Audit.  F is planned to
commence the partnership arrangement in January 2002, following a tendering exercise.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Audit Committee note that the Accounts Commission report highlights key
weaknesses in the arrangements for internal audit in Argyll and Bute and note alse
that progress has already been made in tackling these weaknesses by implementing
Dr Midwinter’s recommendations including the move towards forming a partnership

arrangement.

2.2 The Audit Committee monitor the pesition to ensure that ebjectives are being
achieved,

23 The supplementary report prepared by Dr Midwinter be submitted to the Accounts

Commission together with the minute of this committee meeting, to demoenstrate the
Council’s commitment and response to the report.

Stewart McGregor
Directer of Finance
8 October 2001

reports/8nevsmgaudcommittee Drv idwinter



Page 54



Page 55

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL
Best Value Review of Internal Audit: A Supplementary Report

Purpose

1. The Accounts Commission study of internal audit arrangements has
now been published, and the purpose of this supplementary report is

to advise the council regarding its implications for Argyll and Bute.
Summary

2, The Report — A Job Worth Doing — Raising the Standard of Internal
Audit in Scottish Councils — assesses the extent to which councils
comply with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in local
government. It concludes that !l councils need to take action to
improve internal audit, both in terms of compliance with the Code of
Practice, and to meet new challenges such as Best Value. In
particular, where the room for improvement is significant (as in the
case of Argyll and Bute) they advocate a fundamental appraisal of

options, including market testing,

3. The methodology is based on interview fieldwork, and whilst some
statistical data is presented, the judgements made are essentially
qualitative. They confirm my own conclusions regarding structure,
resources and workload, and raise others regarding audit practice.
The auditors use 97 tests, and summarise their findings into 13

statements of good practice, and six critical factors for success.



Page 56

Councils were grouped in four bands, and Argyll and Bute placed in
Band 4 — Councils that generally do not comply with the code
(scoring less than 48%). Argyll and Bute Council is assessed to be

below standard in eleven of the fifteen tests.

Observations

4, Obviously, this is not a situation the Council can accept, but the report
is already dated, as the Council has already taken action on several of

the issues through my own report. These are set out below;

5. The report confirms my own judgemenis over resourcing and
workload, and the need for effective internal audit as part of sound
arrangements for financial administration. Whilst the report shows
the council as having the seventh highest ratio of internal audit staff to
council employees, (Exhibit 5, p 17) it also confirms that the staff are

less qualified than the norm (p 18) and lack specialist IT and VFM
skills,

6. Tt also shows that Argyll and Bute has the fourth largest workload in
terms of days planned for systems and regularity audit (Exhibit 13,
p 31), providing a combination of less qualified staff, overambition in
workload, and lack of involvement in non-infernal control tasks such

as Best Value Reviews, VFM; consultancy, and risk management.

7. The plus points are that the council has ensured the independent status

of Internal Audit; has clear reporting arrangements; and the Chief



10.

11.

Page 57

Internal Auditor promotes and maintain professional standards. 1
would disagree with the reports judgement that Internal Audit has the
necessary organisational status to perform effectively. In my
experience the Chief Internal Auditor has, and that implementation of
my recommendations will enhance the status of the service as a

whole.

Looking at the six critical factors {p 8) the establishment of the
Internal Audit Committee and the implementation of my report will
enhance the Council’s position with regard to terms of
reference/objectives; independence; resourcing; and accountability

arrangements.

The two crucial factors where improvement is necessary are in Audit
Planning and Management; (Factor 3) and Monitoring (Factor 4),
The new partnership agreement must specifically address the
weaknesses in planning, risk assessment;  monitoring and
implementation; and performance management; and must provide
the necessary management and analytical skills and enhance staff

training and development.

It is for the Audit Committee through Internal Audit to develop a
mechanism with the Council whereby corporate lessons are learnt, and

implementation of recommendations achieved.

The Council should be clear that this report uses a Code of Practice to

stimulate improvements, not attack failure. The purpose of such



12.

Page 58

standard setting is to take practice forward, and professionals do not
set standards which are already met. In commissioning my report,
the Director of Finance has shown that he is not complacent, but keen
to make positive progress. The Accounts Commission will welcome
this, and I would advise the Council to pass this report to them for

information .

The final point to make is the confirmation in the report that the role
of Internal Audit is expected to change to support “corporate
governance and performance” through active participation in Best
Value Work where expertise in systems can assist. Internal Audit is
also expected to ‘challenge the status quo’ and ‘support continuous
improvement’. A word of caution is necessary here. Argyll and
Bute is a small council with limited resources. In my view, in the
short-run it would be better for Internal Audit to be involved in
corporate BV/VFM exercises than carrying these out directly.
Moreover, the Audit Committee needs to reach a view and make
recommendations to the Council on Accounts Commission VFM
Studies on an independent basis. My understanding is that responses
to such reports are handled departmentally at the moment. It would
be sound practice to have an audit view on such reports in tetms of
efficiency, VFM and wider corporate lessons for the Council and the
Committee needs to consider how this will be achieved. (i.e. through

the partnership agreement, the Director of Finance ete).



Page 59

Conclusion

13.  The Accounts Commission report highlights key weaknesses m the
arrangements for internal audit in Argyll and Bute. The Council has
already made significant progress in tackling these, and further
improvements in audit practice will result from the new partnership
agreement. The position needs to be closely monitored to ensure

objectives are being achieved.

28.8.01 Professor Arthur Midwinter



Page 60



Page 61

‘\-\—\-.’\...'I‘IJ LS WA R A T B R I B B W B |

PERFORMANCE AUDIT

A job worth doing

Raising the standard of internal audit in Scottish councils

PREPARED BY AUDIT SCOTLAND AUGUST 2001




Contents
Key points
Executive sLummary
. Introduction
. The internal audit service

. Assessment of internal audit
perfarmance

. Securing Best Value internal
aurdit services

Appendices

The Accounts Commission

The Acceunts Commission is 3 Statutory, indegendent body, which through the audit
process, assists local authorities in Scotland to achieve the highest standards of
financial stewardship and the econormic, efficient and effective use of their
resources, The Commission has five main responsibilitias:
B securing the external audit
= following up issues of concern identified through the audit, 10 ensure satisfactory
resolutions
reviewing the managernent arrangements wiich audited bodies have in place to
achieve value for money
carrying out national value for maney studies to improve economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in local government
issuing an annual direction to focal authorities which sets out the range of
perfarmance information which they are required to pubbish. )

The Cormmission secures the audit of 32 eouncils and 34 joint boards (ncluding
palice and fire services). Local authorities spend over £9 hillion of public funds a year

Audit Scotland

Audit Seotland is & statutory body set up in April 2000, under the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotlandy Act 2000. it provides services to hoth the Auditor General
far Scotland and the Accounts Commission, Together they ensure that the scottish
Executive and public sector bodies in Scotland are held 1o account for the proper,
efficient and eifective use of public funds.

Audit Scotland prepares reports for local government on behalf of the Accounts
Commission.

The Commission welcomes comments and enguiries about its reports. Comments on
this report sheuld be directed to John Linceln, Martin Christie or Douglas Black, in
Perfarmance Audit, Audit Scotland.

Acknowledgements

We would like to thank the study's Advisory Group, comprising a range of experts
fram counciis and other bodies. The Graup provided valuable advice and acted as a
useful sounding board for the study team. Thanks also to the panel of external
auditors who assisted us during the course of the study and in undertaking the peer
review of coundils’ assessments,

The Accounts Commission takes sole responsibility for the contents of this report




Page 63

Key points

The study assessed the level of councils’ compliance with the

CIPFA Cade of Practice for internal Audit in Local Government ...

.. when assessed against the CIPFA Code, we found that there is room for
improvement in all counciis, but some performed significantly better
than others.

.. Combhairle nan Eilean Siar, East Ayrshire, East Renfrewshire and West
Lothian almest fully complied with the Code.

.. Argyll & Bute, East Dunbartonshire, Inverclyde and Shetland complied
with fewer than half of the standards in the Code,

. .. almost two thirds of councils (20) complied with more than 70% of the

standards in the Code.

Councils invest £9.3 miflion a year in internal audit services,
emp!oymg 265 staff ..
. there is considerable variation in the number of internal zudit staff
employed among councils of similar size,

. every Scottish council has its own internal audit service resourced by in-
house staff. This contrasts with the NHS where consoriia of in-house staff
provide internal andit services to eight health board areas. The private
secter provides internal audit services in the remaining seven health board
dTeas.

Features most commonly found in the better performing councils,

which were usually absent in the poorer perfarming coundils,

included ...

.. the presence of an audit committee, or equivalent, to hold internal audit
to account and ensure agreed audit recommendations are implemented,

. ... the use of comprehensive risk assessment to determine the council’s

imernal control priorities and the work of internal audit.

.. a richer skill-mix, which may be reflected in above-average unit staff costs,
but not necessarily higher 1otal audii cosis,

.. annual reporting by the chief internal auditor giving an overall assessment
of internal controls.

All councils need to take action to improve ...

. effective internal audit sections can ook forward 1o the challenges and
opportuenities presented by the greater use of audit committees, the
proposals to introduce internal control statements, the growth in
e-commerce, and Best Value,

.. all councils should use this report, and their local external audit reports,
to achieve full compliance with the Code.

.. where the room for improvernent is significant, there is a strong case
for councils undertaking a fundamental appraisal of options for securing
effective internal audit provision, including testing what the market mighy
provide.

. external auditors will be manitoring council improvernent acticns.

A job warth deing 1



2

A job worth doing

Page 64

Executive summary

Background

The Accounts Commission aims to ensure that all councils achieve the

highesz standards of financial stewardship, governance and public

accountahility. However, {n recent vears, there have been a number of

instances where external auditors of councils have reported weaknesses in

internal audit. The Comrmission requested Aadit Scotland to carry out this

national study to:

®  establisk a clear picture of the performance of internal audit services in
* all councils in Scotland

m  provide benchmarking data to support continuons improvement,

Council performance was assessed against the standards set by the CIPFA
Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Gevernment.

Local authorities’ investment in internal audit services

Every Scottish council has its own internal audit service resourced by in-
house staff (with Combhairle nan Eilean Siar having a partnership agreement
with a private sector firm 1o provide quality control). This contrasts with the
NHS where consortia of in-house staff provide internal audit services to eight
health board areas. The private sector provides internal audit services in the
remaining seven health board areas,

The total amount invested in internal audit in all 32 Scottish councils is

£9.3 million — about (.1% of aggregate council expenditure. There are 300
full-time equivalent (FTE) established pasts of which 265 were filled at the
date ¢f the study. Ten councils also provide internal andit services to other
pubtic bodies, for exampie, local police, fire and other joint boards. This work
accounts for between 2-5% of total internal audit staff time in the councils
concerned, There is considerable variation in the number of internal audit
staff employed among councils of similar size.

What internal audit does

Internal audit is an “independent appraisal function established by the
management of an organisation for the review of the internal control system
as a service to the organisarion. It objectively examines, evaluates and reports
on the adequacy of internal control as a contribution to the proper, economic
efficient and effective use of resources™,

All internal audit sections undertake broadiy similar rypes of work, This
involves reviewing and testing the intetnal controls of key finanaal and non-
financial systems, investigating any frauds or irregularities and, in somme
councils, specialist computer audit and contzact audit work (Exhibit 1).



Page 65

| Exhibit 1: Internal audit workload

More than three-guarters of internal audit time is spent on internal controd tasks.

Non-audit
tasks 5 i Breakdown of internal
; trategic and
N : 2% annual pranning contral tasks
oh-interna
coniral M Fraudfcorruphen
tasks Lomputer — eTRjuIries
15% audit | 17 %

Tl

Cantract audit
; 4%
Cther internal

i) nzrso;i:asks Systems and

regularity
audit
6%

Internal cantrol
tasks
TR

I Spurce: Locai audt returns !

How we assessed councils

The approach and methodology was developed in consultation with the
study advisory group, the Scottish Local Authorities Chief Internal Auditors’
Group, and a panel of external auditors. It involved identifying critical
success factors for internal audit and establishing a framework of issucs to be
used in assessing the level ef council compliance with the CIPFA Code.

Six critical factors were identified (Exhibit 23, with these being supported by

15 statements of good practice and 97 tests on individual council processes
and outcomes (Exhibit 3).

| Exhibit 2: Critical success factors

The study identified six critical success factors for internal audit,

1. Setting clear and properly focused objectives for internal audit
Maintaining internal audit independence

Pianning and contrelling the work of imternal audit
Resourcing the internal audit work programme

Having effective reporting and follow-up arrangements

A A

Holding internal audit to account for its performance

Saurce; Audr Seatland

A job warth doing



4

A job wearth doing

Page 66

Exhibit 3: Structure of the assessment

Fifteen statements of good practice and 97 tests on coundif processes and Gutcomes
support the six critical success factors.

Six Fifteen Ninety-seven
critical success statements of tests on individual
factars good practice council processes
- and outcomes
eqg, Having effective eg, Internal audit
regorting and has clear reporting eg, Internal audit
follow-up arrangements that produces clear,
arrangements. provide concise and
management with constructive written
an cpirdon on the reports.
sdequacy of

internal control.

I— Source: Audit Scotla nﬂ

External auditors conducted their independent assessinents in February
2001, based on interviews and evidence gathered from each council’s chief
executive, director of finance and chief internal auditor. Client surveys of
managers in education, housing, and social work services were also
undertaken to obtain their assessroent of internal audit performance in their
service area.

How councils performed

The study found that there is room for improvement in internal audit in all
couxcils, but some councils perform significantly better than others

(Exhibit 4}, Councils are grouped according to their assessed level of
compliance with the Code and iisted in alphabetical order within the four
performance bands. The better performing councils terd to perform well
across the board, whereas councils in the lowest band of performance tend to
perform poerly in most areas.

No councii complied comnpietely with the Code, but four councils -
Combhairle nan Eilean Siar, East Ayrshire, East Renfrewshire and West
Lothian were found to comply most fully {(over 85% compliance). The
counncils with the lowest level of compliance with the Code were

Argyll & Bute, East Dunbartonshire, Inverclvde and Shetland {below 50%
compliance). Twenty councils complied with more than 70% of the
standards in the Code,



Page 67

| Exhibit 4. Extent of council compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice

All councils need 1o improve their compliance with the Code. Coundils inbands 3 and 4 have the most to do.

Level of council compliance with the Code

Least Most
A0 S0% G0% 70% 80% 90% 100%
T f t t 1 1 —
Continuous improvement
Band 1
Band 2
Band 3
Band 5 - . st et e i <
Band 4 Barnt 2 Band 2 Band 1
39% - 48% 54% - 67% 72%-81% 85% - 90%
Councils that generally Coundils that partiatly comply Coundits that Coundils that most fully
dao not comply with the with the Code generally comply comply with the Code
Code with the Code
Argyli & Bute Clackrmannanshire Aberdeen City Comharle nan Eilean Siar
East Dunbartonshire Falkirk Aberdeenshire East Ayrshire
Inverclyde Midlothian Angus £ast Renfrewshire

Shetland Islands

Morth Ayrshire
Worth Lanarkshire
Qrkney tslands East Lothian
South Ayrehire Edinburgh, City of
West Dunbartanshire Fife
Glasgow City
Highland
foray
Perth & Kinross
Renfrewvishire
Scottish Borders
South Lanarkshire
Stirling

Dumiries & Galloway
Dundee City

Mote: Councils are hsted 10 alphabetical order within eacn pedarmance band.

West Lothian

Spurce: Apdit Scotlend l

A jon worth daing



& job worth deing

Page 68

The support and commitment of councillors, senior management,
particularly the director of finance and chief execurive, are key factors in
developing an effective internal audit service. Some features most commaonly
found in the better performing councils, which were usually absent in the
poorer performing councils, included:

The presence of an audit committee, or equivalent, to hold internal
audit to account and (o ensure agreed audit recommendations are
implermented.

The use of comprehensive risk assessment to determine the council’s
internal contral priorities and the work of internal audit.

A richer skill-mix. which may be reflecied in above-average unit staff
costs, but not necessarily higher total audit cests. There is a significant
correlation between the assessment score and the cost per audit day
(r' =0.49).

Annual reporting by the chief internal auditor giving an overatl
assessiment of internal controls.

The assessments highlighted a number of areas where improvement actions
are required in a significant number of councils. For example:

In 15 councils, the line-management arrangements for chief internal
auditors did not comply with the Code (je, their line manager was ata
lower organisational fevel than the responsible finance officer). In these
councils, there is a risk that the status and independence of the chiel
internal anditor may be compromised.

In ters councils, internal audir did not maintain open channels af
communication with members.

16 councils did not have defined control objectives for all major systems.
11 councils did not have an adequate anti-fraud and corruption strategy.
Internzl audit time spent on systemns and internal control was more than
10% under-budger in 14 councils.

18 internal audit services did not use the results of {ollow-up work to
update their risk assessment.

In ten councils, the chief internal auditor did not co-ordinate and
review the training and development requirements of their staff. In 13
councils, there was no induction programme for new staff.

In pine councils, there was scope for chief internal auditors to further
develop their use of performance indicators to measure the performance
of their service.

The assessinents also highlighted a number of areas of good practice. For
example:

Over 90% of service managers surveyed felt that internal audit
recommensations were concise, clear and constructive,

Service managers were generally satisfied with the time taken by internal
audit to submit its draft and final reports.

Internal audit generally had good working relationships with their
external auditors, inspectorates and other review agencies.

Standards of professional and ethical behaviour of internal audit staff
were high across ali councils.

Five councils had independent accreditation {eg, [SO 9000 or 9002),
which can assist in ensuring that the appropriate standards are in place,

Opportunities for the future

All internal audit services need to embrace a cultare of continuous
1mprovement, adopting proven best practice from other public sector and
private sector organisations. Best Value and other initiatives are
fundamentally changing the way councils work and this presents



Page 69

opportunitics as well as challenges for internal audit services. These include:

m  The introduction of audit committees and revised council structures.
Sixteen councils now have audit committees {or equivalent}.

m  The changing role of internal audit. Internal audit is emerging from irs
rraditional ‘policing’ role to developing a more proactive corporate role.
This changing role demands broader competencies than those of
traditional audit services.

m  Expansion in the use of ICT. The growing use of ¢-commerce and
electronic signatures is placing greater demnands on councils for expert
skills in computer audit.

®  Getting impraved value from council resources. There is an opportunity
for internal audit to develop new and improved ways of working to
enable it to manage its resources more effectively.

m  The likely introduction of internal (financial) control statements {1CS).
These have been successfully introduced in other parts of the public
and private sectors as a means of providing assurance to shareholders or
stakeholders on the adequacy of internal controls within the organisation.
The CIPFA LASAAC Joint Committee is actively considering the
introduction of 1CS to local government accounts,

However, in order to be able and well placed to meet these challenges
councils need to ensure that internal audit is undertaking its core work
effectively.

Challenging councils to improve

All councils have individual reports from their external auditor, assessing
their level of compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice. These show that
some have a lot to do in raising their standards to those reflected in the Code.
Each council is expected to implement the agteed recommendations
contained in their external auditor’s report.

‘Where the zoom for improvement is significant {particularly those councils
falling within performance band 4), substantial progress is needed in a short
space of time. There is a strong case for these councils testing current
provision against what the market might provide. This would involve laoking
at options that would provide a high-quality service that ensures that the
counctl’s control objectives are met, at acceptable cost. These options would
include:

®  buying in specialist skills, for example, computer audit expertise

B entering into consortia arrangements with other couneils

m  partnership arrangements with the private sector

®  externalising service provision.

Irrespective of who provides the service, the critical factors that underpin a

Best Value internal audit service remain the same, All councils should be

looking 1o develop sound internal conirol arrangements where:

®  councillors are demonstrably committed to supporting the need for a
sound internal contrel environment, inciuding internal audit

® senior managers are demonstrably communitted to maintaining effective
internal controls and implementing sound internal audit arrangements

w  chief internal auditors demonstrably provide an excellent internal audit
SETVICE.

Exhibit 5 provides a checkdist that highlights the key messages for an effective
internal andit service. It should help councillors, chief executives, senior
managers and chief internal auditors to ensure that their council has these
arrangements in place. External auditors will be monitoring progress.

A job worth doing



Page 70

Exhibit 5: Achieving a Best Value internal audit service - a checklist for councitlors, chief executives, senior managers
| anhd chief internal auditors
[

Crittcal factors Key enabling faciors

1. Setting clear and properly B s the council commitied 1o establishing an effective internal
focused objectives for internal audit service?
atidit

= Doss internal audit have clear terms of reference agread by

senior management and communicated these across the
romeil?

= [Does internal audit have a good understanding of the risks
tacing the caundil, developed in consultation with all service

managers?
< Ensuring that internal audd is B Does internal audit have direct access 1o coundillors, the chief
independent executive and the director of finance?

®  Does internal audit have (and is it seen tc have) independence
from operational procedures?

®  [oes internal audit have the right of final edit in submitting

eports?
3 Making sure the work of internal a  Doesinternal audits planned wark support the corporate
audit is properly planned objectives of the council?

®  Does internal audit ensure that all planned work reflects the
results from s systematic assessment of the council's nsks?

= Doesinternal audit plan a sufficient contingency to
accommodate unforeseen work, enabling it to complete its
planned work within time-scale?

4 Making sure internal audit is = Does senior management ensure that internaf audit has the
adequately resourced resgurces required to meet the internal controf needs of the
council?

= Daes the counal recruit and train suitably skilled internal
audit staff?

B Mas senior management given authority to the chief internal
auditor to arcess specialist skills to tackle complex areas?

5. Emsuring that internal audit ®  [oes internal audit report weaknesses in internal control for
findings are reporied and action by management?
folfowed up

= [oes senior management systernatically encourage all
managers to implement report recommendations within
agreed time-scales?

= Does internal audit repart any faillure by management 16
implement agreed recommendations?

= Uoes internal audit provide an annual report, providing an
overall viewr an the saundness of the council's internal control

svstemns?
6 Ensuring that mternal awdiit is B Does the council have an audit committee or equivalent to
held to account for its - approve internaf audit work plans?
performance - reviews internal audit's output and performance and

ensure that it completes its programme of work?
act as a conduit for receiving audit reports and call
service manadqers to account?

= Does internal audit prepare annual perfarmance plans, setting
out its achisvements and targets?

= Does internal audit maintain an effective performance
management framework ta continuously revisw and imprave
its performance?




Page 71

1. Introduction

Why look at internal audit?

Scodand's councils are required to have in place arrangements for ensuring

propriety, regularity and value for money in their stewardship of public

funds®. It is the responsibility of management to ensure that adequate

internal controls’ are in place to;

W ensure sound Corporate governance

B ensure that their council's resources are applied in the manner and on
the activities intended

B prevent, detect and deter fraud and impropriety

® epsure the most economic, efficient and effective use of resources.

Internal audit supports management in maintaining sound corporate
governance and internal controls. It does this by independently examining
and evaluating conncil systems, and reporting any inadequacies in internal
control for action by management.

The Accounts Commission aims to ensure that all councils achieve the

highest standards of financial stewardship, governance and public

accountability. However, in recent years, there have been a number of

instances where external auditors of councils have reported weaknesses in

internal audit. The Commission requested Audit Scotiand to carry out this

national study 1o

& establish a clear picture of the performance of internal audit services in
all councils in Scotland

®  provide benchmarking data to support continuous improvement.

There have beer: a aumber of developments in recent years to strengrhen
corperate governance and internal control in both public and private sectors.
These devetlopments have had a significant impact on the way an internal
audit function should operate.

In the private sector’, these include the Cadbury report, which set out a code
of best practice for corporate governance in listed companies, including the
role of audit committees and internal audit. More recently, the Turnbull
report set out guidance for directors on internal control to meet the listing
rules of the stock exchange, including the need for internal audit and the
requirement for the board to produce a statement on internal contral.

In the public sector, examples include the introduction of internal financial

contral assurance staterments and andit committees in the NHS, and the

adoption of audit committee principles by an increasing number of councils .
in Scotland.

There are & number of recent initiatives in local government that will aiso

have an impact on councils’ arrangements for internal audit including:

s The Leadership Advisory Panel {LAP), which reported to Ministers in
June 2001 making recommendations for councils’ scrutiny arrangements
and how they account for their performance. These will have
implications for scrutiny and audit committees and the reporting
arrangements for internal audit.

A job worth doing 9



Page 72

8  The joint report by CIPEA and SOLACE published in june 2001, which
sets out a framework for corporate governance in local authorities,
ncluding:

B a systematic strategy for risk management and internal control
® the publication of an annual report presenting an objective,
understandable account and assessment of the council's:
~ activities and achievernents
- financial position and performance.

Other developments that present significant challenges for internal audit in
the public sector include the modernising government agenda and electronic
service delivery. The implications of these for audit have been considered in
reports” published by the Public Audit Forum®.

Al of these factors will have an impact on councils' arrangetmnents for
internal audit and the skills that internal auditors will need to provide an
effective audit service.

This report provides a national overview. It assesses current council
perfotinance and makes reconunendations that will assist all councils to
develop excellent internal andit services in the future. Details of the specific
steps that need to be taken by individual councils are contained in their local
external audit reports and action plans,

Study objectives and methodology
The aim of this study is to help councils to achieve Best Value from their
internal audit arrangements, There are three main objectives:

1. 1o assess the extent to which councils’ internal audit services meet the
standards of good practice set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for
Internal Audit in Local Government”

2. to promaote best practice in internal audit and encourage councils to
fully compty with the Code

3. to make recornmendations that will help all councils develop a Best Value
internal audir service.

The approach and methodology was developed in consultation with the
study advisory group (Appendix 1}, the Scottish Local Authorities Chief
Internal Auditers’ Group, and a panel of external auditors. It involved
identifying critical success factors for internal audit services and establishing
a framework of issues to be used in assessing the level of council compliance
with the CIPFA Code,

Six critical success factors were identifted {Exhibit 13, supported by 15

statements of good practice and 97 tests on individual council processes and
ouicomes { Exhibit 2).

10 A Joh worth doing



Page 73

| Exhibit t: Critical success factors

The study dentified six critical success factars for internal audst.

1. Setting clear and properly focused cbjectives for internal audit

L L

Naimtaining internal audit independence
Planning and controlling the work of internal audit

Resourcing the internal audit work programme

Hawving effective reporting and follow-up arrangements

Holding internal audit to account for its perfarmance

Source: Audit Seotland l

j Exhibit 2: Structure of the assessment

.

Fifteen statements of good practice and 97 tests on council processes and outcomes

support the six critical success factors,

Six Fifteen
critical success statements of
factors good practice
e, Having effective eq, Internal audit
reparting and has clear reporting
follow-up arrangements that
arrangements. provide

management with
an gpinign on the
acequacy of
internal control.

Ninety-seven
tests on individual
coundil processes

and outcomes

eq, internal audit
produces clear,
concise and
CONStructive written
repaorts.

Source: Audit Seatland I

A job worth daing

11



Page 74

Exhibit 3 sets out the relationship berween the six critical success factors and
the 15 statements of good practice.

| Exhibit 3; The critical success factors and their linked statements of good practice

Counails” internal audit services were assessed against these statements of good practice.

Critical success factors Statements of good practice

1 Internal auckt has agreed terms of referance,
Setting clear and 2 The respective roies of management and internal
properly focused audit in maintaining internzl control are clearly
objectives for internal defined and communicated.
audit ‘ )
3 Internal audit has a clear role in relation to fraud
4, Internal audit has sufficient organisational status
Maintaining internal to be abie 1o undertake its work effectively.
audit independence L ) -
5. Internal audit is free of operationai responsibilitias
that could compromise its independence.
£ Internal audit bases its work on a comprehensive
risk. assessment.
7 Internal audit operales within a structured planning
Planning and framewark.
controlling the work ‘ ‘ o
of internal audit A Imernal audit has effective relationships with
coeundil members, council managers, external
audit, nspectorates and other agencies.
9. internal audit properly manages, controls and
records its work
10. Internal audit iz adequately staffed and resourced
Resoutcing the internal .
audit work programme 11. Internal audit staff are suitably trained and
developed.
12. Internal audit has clear reporting arrangements
that pravide management with an opinion on the
Having effective adequacy of internal cortrols,
reporting and follow- ) ‘
up arrangements 13. Interna sudit follows-up recommendations to
ensurz action is taken.
14. internal audit has a performance management
framework that ensures continuols review of its
Holding internal audit performance.
ta account for its ] . o
perfarmance 15. The chief nternal auditer promotes and maintains

professional standards i internal audit

Source. Audit scotland I

A job worth doing



Page 75

External auditors used this performance framework to conduct their

independent assessments, These were based on:

®  interviews and evidence gathered from each council’s chief executive,
director of fimance and chief internal auditor

B surveys of the heads of education, housing and social work services in all
councils to abtain their assessment of internal audit performance in their
service areas

B benchmarking information callected on each council's internal audit
service, including an analysis of staffing numbess, expenditure and
workload.

Dretails of the assessment and scoring methodology are given in Appendix 2,
and the results are given in Appendices 3 and 4. In addition, the study team
alse visited a number of councils and interviewed councillors who were
members of audit committees.

Structure of the report
The report is in four sections.

Section 2 — describes the role and the requirement for internal audit in
councils. It also leoks at the tevel of resources Scoattish councils invest in
internal audit,

Section 3 — summarises the results of the external audit assessments. It
highlights specific areas where there is scope for councils to improve internal
andit performance and makes recommendations for making the necessary
improvements.

Section 4 — describes the main challenges facing councils in providing Best
Value internal audit services. It summarises the key actions that councils
need o take to ensure that their internal audit services are fit to meet the
challenges facing them. An action checklist comprising the key messages is
included for use by councillors, chief executives, senior managers and chief
internal auditors.

Appendices:

membership of the study advisery group (Appendix 1)

assessment and scoring methodology {Appendix 2)

results of external andit assessments for each coundil { Appendix 3)
scores for each of the 97 tests (Appendix 4)

client survey findings {Appendix 5)

views of chief executives and directors of finance (Appendix 6)
nozes.

A job worth daing

13



14

A job worth doing

Page 76

2. The internal audit service

Why have internal audit?
Internal audit provides z valuable service to councils by helping themn to

implement cost-effective and efficient systems of internal control, and by
providing senior management and merntbers with assurance that internal
control systems are operating effectively.

Effective internal audit is not only essential fer sound corporate governance,
it can also add value, for example, by both assisting the council to obtain
Best Value from its resources and by providing advice v service managers

and staff.

In Scottand, as in England and Wales, legislation provides that authorities:
“shall make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial
affairs...”. However, in respect of securing ¢ffective internal audir, the position
is different. In England and Wales, specific provision is contained it
legislation { The Accounts and Audit Regulations 1995 (51 1996/590)},
whereas in Scotiand, effective internal audit is commended as good practice
in a Scottish Office Circular {Exhibit 4). The combination of the Local
Government (Scotland} Act and the Circular has the effect of ensuring that
all councils in Scotland make appropriate arrangements for internal audit.
The importance of internal audit would be reinforced by making it a
statutory requirement.

Exhibit 4: The requirement for internal audit in roundils in Scotland, and in

England and Wales

The legislative requirements for internal audit differ north and south of the border.

Requirement for
proper administration
of financial affairs

Reguirement for
internal zudit in
councils

England and Wales

Section 151 of the Local
Government Act 1972,
requires that authorities:

“shzll make arrangements for
the proper administration of
their financia) aHairs and shall
secure that one of their officers
has responsitility for the
administration of those atairs.”

The Accounts and Audit
Reguiations 1996 (511595/590)
reguire that a:

“relevant body shall maintain
an adequate and effective
systern of internal audit of
1heir accounting records and
control systems ”

Scotland

Section 95 of the Local
Goverament (Scotland Act
1973 speifies that every jocal
authority:

"shall make arrangements for
the proper adiministration of
their financial affairs and shall
secure that the proper officer
has responsibility for thase
affairs.”

Scottish Office Circular 5/85
states:

“atfective internal audit cover is
regarded 25 a matter of good
practice.”

Source: CIPFA Code of Pratice for Internal Audit in Local Sovernmaent |




Page 77

The complementary roles of internal and external audit
Internal andir and external audit have different but complementary roles.

Internal audit is ‘an independent appraisal function established by the
management of an organisation for the review of the internal control systerm
as a service to the organisation. It objectively examines, evaluates and reports
on the adequacy of internal control as a contribution to the proper,
economic, efficient and effective use of resources™.

The role of external audit is to undertake an independent appraisal of the

discharge by management of its stewardship responsibilities, to enable the

external auditor to assess and report on whether those responsibilities have

been reasonably discharged. This involves:

B reviewing and testing the effectiveness of the internal ¢ontrols in place

B reviewing the council's arrangements for securing economic, efficient
and effective use of its resources

®  providing an opinion on the council's financial statements.

External anditors review the work undertaken by internal audit as part of
their review of the council's internal control framework. They look to rely on
internal control reviews undertzken by internal audit, to make the most
efficient use of the combined audit resource. It is therefore important that
there are good channels of communication between external and internal
audit.

An effective internal audit can contribute significantly to reducing the work
of external audit. Audit Scotland provides a flexdble arrangement for external
auditors to agree appropriate audit fees with councils, taking into account
the standard of corporate governance, including the quality and coverage of
the work undertaken by internal audit. In future, public bodies with good
internal control procedures will be expected to negotiate lower fees,

The role and organisational framework for internal audit
Within each council, there are a number of key stakeholders who have an
important role in ensuring that their council benefits from an effective
internal audis service: :

® the chief executive wha looks to internal audit to provide objective
assurance on the effectiveness of the council's risk management and
internal centrol framework, and to assist the council to achieve the
highest standards of corporate governance and {inancial stewardship.

B the Section 95 officer, normally the director of finance who is
responsible for ensuring that the counal:

- has arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs

— has put in place effective arrangements for the internal audit of its
systems of internal control.

B the chief internal anditor who is responsible for ensuring that internal
audit makes a significant and positive contribution to the council by, for
example:

— providing advice on the management of risk, especially on issues
surrounding the design, implementation and operation of systems of
internal control

~ enhancing efficient and effective risk and control management by
recommending controls to avoid operational losses

— providing advice to all parts of the councit on good risk identification
and internal control procedures.

A jab waorth doing



16

A job worth daing

Page 78

®  service managers who are responsible for ensuring thar effective internal
controls are in place in their service, who contribute to the council’s risk
assessment processes and who, drawing on the advice of internal andit,
design and operate systems to minimise the risks to which the council is
exposed.

®  the chair of the audit committee (or equivalent group) who is concerned
to ensure that the council receives objective agsurance as to the adequacy
and effectiveness of its risk management and internal control framework.
An increasing number of councils are introducing audit committees. This
is looked at in detail in Section 3.

All chief internal auditors require operational independence in order to be
seen to exetcise their own professional judgement. Free access to each of
these key stakeholders is therefore essential ii: enabling chief internal
auditers to fulfil their role effectively. Auditing standards, for example, those
of the Institute of Internal Auditors, reinforce the requirement of the chief
internal auditor to have direct access to the chief executive and the chair of
the audit committee {or equivalent).

Resourcing the internal audit service

Every Scottish council has its own internal audit service resourced by in-
house staff. {Comhairle nan Eilean Siar has a partnership arrangement with
the private sector. It has three in-house staff, headed by a qualified
accountant, with the quality assurance role being provided by a private

firm.) This contrasts with the NHS where consortia of in-house staff provide
internal audit services o eight health board areas. The private sector
provides internal audit services in the remaining seven heaith board areas.

The otal amount invested in internal audit in all 32 Scottish councils is
£8.3 million — about 0.1% of aggregate council expenditure”’. There are 300
full-time equivaient {FTE) established posts of which 265 were filled, at the
date of the study. Ten councils also provide internal audit services to other
public bodies, for exampile, local police, fire and other joint boards. This
work accounts for between 2-5% of total internal audit staff time in the
councits concerned.

The Institute of Public Finance (IPF) has recently benchmarked the level of
investment in internal audit, north and south of the border (£ invested per
£m council spend). It identified that, on average, unitary councils in England
and Wales spend some 40% more on internal andit than councils in
Scotland, with more days being invested at broadly comparable daily rates.

The size of internal audit services varies significantly between councils,
ranging from 24 FTE in Glasgow to 1.3 FTE in Orkney (Exhibit 5).
Economies of scale may apply in the larger councils, but there is wide
variation in the propertion of internal audit staff employed by broadly
comparabie councils.



| Exhibit 5: The number of internal audit staff (FTE per 10,000 council FTE employees}

Page 79

There is wide variation in the proportion of internal audit staft employed by broadiy comparable councils.

o

Glasgow iy
Edinburegh, City of
Fife

Merth Lanarkshire
South Lanarkshire
Aberdesn City
Highland
Aberdeenshire
Dundee Ciiy
Renfrewshire

Vyest Lathian
Dumfnes & Gallowey
Fatkirk

Marth Ayrshire

South Ayrshire

E34t Ayrshite

West Dunbartonshire
Perth & Kinrss

East Dunbartonshire

Angus

Argyll & Bute

" Scouish Borders
Inverclyde

£ast Lothan
Stirling

Midlctrian

Maray

East Renfrevshire
Shetiand Bhands
Clackmannanshirg
Comhairle nan Eilean Siar

Crkney Islands

hote: Councils are fisted in arter of the number of gisl councl emplovees in post at the time of the study,

Internal audit staff {(FTE per 10,000 council employees)

15 20

internaf audit
staff {FTE)

4.0

181

215

200

70

1o

116

10.0

6.0

1.8

6.0

5.0

6.0

6.7

8.0

56

25

449

60

a5

ER(]

55

55

5.0

5.0

38

4.0

50

30

35

20

Tota: counal
emplgyaes (FTE)

0 N5
15,481
15,138
13,187
12.24%
8917
8,516
7911
7415
7135
5.725
5485
5,457
5,113
4929
4,892
4,755
4,620
4,223
4,176
4,030
4,00
3,857
3332
3,305
3,252
3,172
3074
2,00
1872
1,588

1.332

Source: bocal audit returns and Joint Staffing Wateh (March 2001) |

A job worth doing

17



Page 80

Some of these variations are caused by differences in organisational
arrangements between councits. For exarnple, some internal audit serviges
pravide services in addition to mainstream audit {eg, in Angus Council the
internal audit section employs dedicated value for money staff). Conversely,
other counctls {eg, East Ayrshire, Glasgow City and South Lanarkshire}, have
dedicated units ouwtwith inteznal ardit that review aspects of internal control
in specialist areas such as contract audit. However, the overall number of
such staff is low.

Exhibit 6 highlights the variation in the number of internal audit staff
employed by councils having broadly similar circumstances.

Exhibit & The number of internal audit statf vs. the total number of
| toundl employees

There is a high degree of correlation (=095} between the number of internal audit staff
and the number of council employees, although there is considerable varigtion in the
rumber of internal audit siaff among coungils of similar size

30

25

20 -

Number of isernal audit sta¥f (FTE)
&

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35
Total council employees {1,000 FTE)

|_ Soufee: togal audit relurns, Joint Staf Watch, (IMarch 2001 ]

Exhibit 7 shows the gqualifications helé by internal audit staff across

Scotland. Over 60% of internal audit staff either already hold a professional

acconntancy qualification or are studving towards one:

m  34% hold a Consubtative Committee of Accountancy Bodies (CCAB)
qualification

®  11% have a relevant auditing qualification, eg, membership of the
Institute of Internal Auditors (11A)

W 8% are actively pursuing an accountancy qualification.

In addition, a small proportion of staff (5%) have other refevant

qualifications in areas such as management and information technology.
The remaining one third comprises unquaiified and clerical staff.

18 A job worth daing



Page 81

SUWdndad 1IpHe (e nes

Sannp

SRS s3Nbuz
waabeugw ysey uoRdnIod/pnes

DU |PUILY IINRES AIUBYNSUO D HPNE DEAUOT) Buruue o |enuuy

Bununooe ppuRLY 2o AQUOLL JOy ANIEA ’ Npne JEINaWe D Sutuued 2163en5
Jpne Auenba
SUQ|IEY IPUCI3) Jusg SMAIADL N ER, 1536 puUe swalsis TUBLLISSASTE HSIY
sysEL Buyuuee
JOdIUCD [ewiau {enuue pue NGa1ens
S35 |OIUOD
5)SR1 MPMe-uoN |EUIBIUI-UON SYSEL 1O

"SY5E] JO AJaleA BPIM € Ul PBADALE 30 LR 1IDRE [BLI1L|

upne [eulsul Aq usyeUspun }OA jo sadiy syl g Hglyxg |

"“j10m NPNE 1PENUOD pue [pne 1ndwos 35ads ‘spoumas

Awros U “pure sanrenfaln 10 spuer {ue SurieSsAAlT SIUIISAS [EIIUBUL- UL
PUE [EIIUEUY A3Y JO S[ODUOD [eussiul Ay Surmatazl pue Sursa) ssajoaut siy ],
10M [0LIUOZ FRUIUS JO S3dA) TR[TUENS A]pRoIq e1Iapun [{e £atj] 'SadAIS

NPNE [BUIBIUT Aq GaRLISPUN iom Jo s2dA) 23 SosuELums g 1qrgxy
S30p UPNE JEUIIUI IBYAA

I SUINJ31 JIPNE |BIOT [aZdnos,

%5
SUCHIEMjEEnD
JURAD|AL Jaylo

Yail :
uanesyent Jpne HELS PaLRN))

1UeAl[as 13LU]o
“HeIs pRylEnd

%k
HELS (€330
pue padyenbun

9hTE .
peis payyenb gz | %81
S H suuue:}iuwb
T [ Bui®3as alanoe

Mol paylEnbun

“uonEsEAl By B SeL 141 UPnE JEURIUT 1O DU Y

HE15 Wphe euiaiul BUowe suoedend o Iy |

I8



20

A job worth doing

Page 82

Exhibit 9 shows that internal control tasks account for 78% of total time.
This is made up of systems and regularity audit” (69% of internal control
tasks), fraud"” and corruption” wark {17%), computer audit (7%}, contract
audit {4%) and other internal control tasks (3%).

Overall, strategic and annual planning of internal audit work takes about 5%
of total available time. About 15% of andit time is spent on non-internal
control tasks (je, value for money work, consuftancy and advice) — areas of
work where internal audit is able t make a valuzble contribution, but which
may also be undertaken by staff outside internal audit.

A small proportion (2%) of internal audit staff time is spent on non-audit
tasks that may compromise the independence of internal audit
(eg, preparation of bank reconciliations). This type of work is looked at in

more detail in Section 3.

| Exhibit 9: Internal audit workioad

More than three-guarters of internal audit time is spent on internal control tasks.

Non-audit

133:;5 Strategic and
annual planning
MNaon-internal Bon
conirod
tasks
15%

tmrernal cantral
iasks
78%

Breakdown of internal
control tasks

Fraudfearruption

Campyter — enguiries
audit 17%
7%

- Contract audit
4%

Onher :nternal

:ont}roqlﬁlasks Systerrs and
regularity
audit
E9%

Source: Logal audh returns 1




Page 83

3. Assessment of internal audit
performance

introduction

The assessment framework was developed from the CIPFA Code of Practice.

CIPFA updated its Code in October 2000 to reflect the following changes in

accepted good practice in recent years:

B work and audit planning should be based on comprehensive risk
assessment

B the head of internal andit should provide an overall assessment and
produce an annual report containing a view of the internal control
systert.

External auditors finalised their assessments only three to four months after
the publication of the revised Code, sa councils may not have had time to
put arrangements in place to comply fully with the revised Code in these
areas.

Where improvement actions are identified, responsibility for implementing
these does not rest solely with chief internal auditors. It will require palitical
leadership from the council and the support of the chiel executive, director
of finance and service managers.

Councils have received feedback on their assessments and a number of
councils have already introduced changes to improve their internal audit
SeTVICE,

Overall assessment of council performance

There is room for improvement in internal audit in alt councils, but some
perform significantly better than others (Exhibit 10). Councils are grouped
according to their assessed level af compliance with the Code and listed in
alphabetical order within the four performance bands. The methodology
used ta derive the performance bands s included at Appendix 2.

No council complied fully with the Code but four councils — Combairle nan
Eilean Siar, East Ayrshire, East Renfrewshire and West Lothian cermnplied with

over 85% of standards in the code.

The councils with the lowest level of compliance with the Code (less than
504%) were Argyll & Bute, East Dunbartonshire, Inverclvde and Shetland.

Twenty councils (those in bands 1 and 2) complied with more than 70% of
the Code.

A job warth doing 21



Page 84

| Exhibit 10: Extent of council compliance with the OIPFA Code of Practice

3
All councils need to improve their compliance with the Code. Councils in bands 3 and 4 have the maost o do.
Level of council compliance with the Code

Least Most

A0% 5(% 50% 0% 9% 100%

= — + —— f |
Continugus improvement
Band 1
Band 2
Band 3
Banc 4 - - i - o

Band 4 Bant! 3 Band 2 Band 1

39% - 48% B4% - 67% T2% « B1% B5% - 90%

Councils that generally Councils that partially comply Coundls that Councis that most fully

do not comply with the with the Code generally comply comply with the Code

Code with the Code

Argylf & Bute Clackmannanshire Aberdeen City Comhairle nan Eilean Siar

East Dunbartanshire Falkirk Aberdeenshire East Ayrshire

Irverclyde Midlothian Angus East Renfrewshire

Shetland Islands North Ayrshira Dumnfries & Galloway West Lothian

Nerth Lanarkshire Dundee City

Qriney Islands
South Ayrshire
West Dunbartonshire

Nate: Councils are Jisted in alphabetical order wathm each perfarmance band,

East Lathian
Edinburgh, City of
Fte

Glasgow City
Highlang

Moray

Perth & Kinross
Renfrewshire
Scotnsh Borders
South Lanarkshire
Stirling

Source: Audit Scotland |

22 A job werth daing



Page 85

Exhibit 11 shows the average council scores for each of the 15 statements,

within each performance band, These results show that councils in:

®  band 1 perform well across the board (averaging over three out of four
for each statement)

®  band 2 perform reasonably well for most statemenns

band 3 have substantial room for improvernent for most statements

8 band 4 have substantial room for smprovement across all statements
{averaging less than three for each statement).

The support and commitment of councillors, senior management,

parlicularly the director of finance and chief executive, are key factors in

developing an effective internal audit service. Some features most commonly

found in the better performing councils, which were usnally absent in the

poorer performing councils, included:

®  the presence of an audit commitiee, or equivalent, to hold internal audi
t¢ account and to ensure agreed recommendations are imptemented

®  the use of comprehensive risk assessment to determine the council's
internal cantrol priorittes and the work of internal audit

®  aricher skill-mix, which may be reflected in above-average unit staff
costs, but not necessarily higher total audit costs. There is a significant
cotrelation between the assessment score and the cost per audit day
(r*=1049)

®  annual reporting by the chief internal auditor giving an overall
assessment of internal controls,

The remainder of this section is structured around the six critical success
factors. It explores the main strengths found, identifies areas for further
improvement and makes recommendations that, in mest cases, applvto a
number of councils. Specific details of the improvement actions needing to
be taken by individual councils can be found in their external auditor's local
repart and action plans.

Appendix 3 contains a summary of cach council's performance for cach of
the 13 statements. Appendix 4 contains 2 summary of the assessment scores
for each of the 97 rests,

A, job worth doing

23



Page 86

Exhibit 11: Average assessment scores for each statement of good practice for councils in
| each performance band

The betrer performing councils tend to perform well across the board, whereas councils in the lowest bang of
performance tend 1o perform poorly in most areas.

24

Band 1 4
[Four councils)

Scare

Al 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9

Statement

Band 2 4
{16 coungdils}

1011 12 13 14 15

E]
[
g
vy

2z

1

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
Statement
Band 3 4

{Erght councils)

al 1 2 3 4 5 8 7

8 9

Starement

Band 4 4
(Faur couneilsh

Scare
Lt

n

framework.

Internal audit has effective relationships with coungii members,
counel managers, extgrnal audit, mspeciorates and other
AQETICIEs,

1017 12 12 14 18

Al1 2 3 4 5 a8 7 8 9 10 1112 13 14 15
Statement
Key
Internal audit has agreed terms of reference 9 Internal audt praparly manages, cantrols and records ity
The respective reles of management and internal audit in wark
maintaining internal centrol are clearly defined and i¢ Internal audit is adequately staffed and resounted
communicated. 11. Internal qudt staff are suitably trained and developed.
Internal audit has a clear role in relation 1o fraud, 12 intarnal sudit has clear reperting arrangements that provide
loternal aught has sufficient organisational status 1o be able management with an cpimon on the adequacy of internal
to underake its work effectively. comtrols,
ternal audit is free of operational responsibilities that could 13, internal audit Tollow-up their recommendations 16 ensure
campromise its independence. action is taken.
internal audit bases its work on a comprehensive risk 14. Internal audit has a performance management framework
BEAASITRML, that ensures continuous review of 115 petformance
Internal audit pperates within a structured pianmng 15. The chief internal auditor promotas and maintains protessional

standards. in internal apdit,

Saure; Audit Smﬂanﬂ




Mo Qualiied  {ualified Yes
ne [

Frurteen Internal audit services do not have a charter
o1 mission statemant 10 communicate theit rales
and responsibilities across the coundil

Page 87

Critical factor 1 - Setting clear and properly focused
objectives

Agreed terms of reference, that are widely communicated across the council, help
to ensure that the role and chjectives of internal audit are made clear to both
internal audit and its clients,

Where properly designed rerms of reference are not in place there is a risk that
staff may not be clear about their roles and responsibilities and management
may not be clear about their role in maintaining effective internal contrals.

Communicating intarnal audit roles and responsibilities

Terms of reference cover areas such as the airns and objectives of internal
audit, the scope and remit of their work, and rights of access. Senior
management and members should formaily agree terms of veference. It is
important that the role and objectives of internal audit are understood
across the council, and the Code recommends that a charter or mission
staternent is a good way of achieving this,

In many councils, internal audit terns of reference are set out briefly in
council Standing Orders and Financial Regulations rather than as a separate,
formally approved, document, as recemmended by the Code. Overall, nine
councils do not have separate written terms of reference.

The Code sets out the key areas that should be covered by internal aundit's

terms of reference, However:

B in 13 counciks, the terms of reference do not take account of the council's
corpuorate aims and abjectives

B in 15 councils, the terms of reference do not make it clear that internal
audit should not be seen as a substitute for internal control.

In addition, fourteen internal audit services do not have a charter or mission
statement to communicate their roles and responsibilities across the council.

The client manager survey revealed an example of the consequences of this —
whilst over 90% of service managers feel they have adequate information on
the role of internal audit, over half of them see its main role as detecting
fraud, revealing a misconception of the role of internal audit.

Recommendations

Internal audit should have terms of refarence, which comply with the CIPFA
Cod'e of Practice for mternal audit. They should be formally agreed between
senior managernent, the chief internal auditor ano the reievant committes of
the council

The terms of reference should be communicated thraughout the coundl via a
myssion stalemertt or audit charter

A Job worth doing

25



May Quallied Qualited ey
na VES

Spreers counails did not have definert contra’
ohyectwes tos all mapor systans

Yes

Mo Quaified  Quaiified
no pEg

Elever countils did not have an adequate anti-fraud
and corruprion sIrategy.

6 A job worth doing

Page 88

Clarifying the respective roles of management and internal audit

in maintaining internal contral

It is management's responsibility to:

®  set control objectives {eg, creditors system conirols should exist to ensure
that valid anrd titnely payments are made)

& establish and maintain an adequate system of internal control (eg, by
division of responsibilities) for 2ll major systems.

The role of internal audit is 4o assess the extent to which individual controls

contribute to the averall contral system and to advise management on

selling up, or changing, systems of internal control. However:

m 16 councils did not have defined control objectives for 2ll major systems

® in nine councils, internal audit was not adequately consulted about
changes to internal control systems.

Overall, only two conncils almost fully complied with the Code. There is
significant scoape for improvement in 24 councils.

Good practice example: East Ayrshire Council

The council's internal audit section has service level agreements with all
depariments. These include agreed terms of reference and set out the
respective roles of management and internal audit in maintaining internal
control.

Recarmmendations
Managers should establish and maintain an adequate system of internal controf
and should define control objectives for alf major sysrems.

Internal audit should be consulted when systems, and their conirols, are being
designed or reviewed.

Frocedures in relation to fraud

It is important that the council has a strategy for dealing with fraud and
corruption together with a fraud response plan, which sets out the
procedures La be followed in the event of a suspected fraud. These
procedures should be clearly communicated to all staff. Faiiure 1o do this can
result in fraud remaining wndetected or being inadequately investigated.

Eleven councils did pot have an adequate anti-fraud and corruption strategy.,
and ten did not have a fraud response plan. Ten councils had not updated
their frand strategy since council reorganisation in 1996.

Fallowing the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998, councils should have a
whistle-blowing policy, or cenfidential reporting procedure for staff.
However, 11 councils cither did not have a policy in place or had not
communicated their policy to staff.

Good practice example: Angus Council

The council has a fraud and corruption strategy, including whistle-blowing
policies for officers and for third pariies. These, together with fraud and
defaleation guidelines included within the financial regulations, clearly state
how the council will deal with any disclosures. The policy has been
disseminated to all council staff,



Page 89

Recommendations
All councils should have:

8 an anti-fraud and corruption strategy, which sets out management’s
responsibilities for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iflegal
acts and inciudlas a framework for involving fnternal audit in fraud
mveshigation and prosecuhion

N 3 fraud response plan, sefting out the roles and responsiifities of staif,
management and internal audit in relation to fraud.

The roles of stafl, management and internal audit in deafing with fraud should
be clearly defined and communicated.

Follawing the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998, councils should have a
whistle-Blowing policy. or confidentisl reporting procedure for staff.

A job waorth deing 27



28

4] 3
Mg Qualified Gualifred Yes
ng yEs

Amest &l chief mternal auditors cansider that they
have durert acress o Members, the chiet exscutive
and the directar of finance

A job worth doing

Page 90

Critical factor 2 - Maintaining internal audit independence

Internal audir should be seen to be independent in exercising judgernent,
reparting epinion and presenting recommendations. To achieve this, internal
audit needs 1o be free of operarional tasks and to have sufficient arganisational
starus ta enable it to properly perform its duties. In CIPFA's view the chief
internal auditor should not repert ar o lower organisational level than the
respousible finance officer.

Alack of independence will compromise the werk of internal audit and may
lead to audit findings not being fully reported or impiemented. The position of
internal audit within the council’s structure can affect its authoriry and
independence.

Line-management arrangements for chief internal auditars
Chief internal auditors must be able to report their findings in their own
name without fear or favour, and their line managers should not influence
their reports. Although it is for each council 10 decide where the chief
iniernal aucitor fits into its management structure, the associated status
must ¢nsure that internal audit can function independently. The CHPFA
statement on the role of the fir:nce director in local government states:

“the responsibility for ensuring effective internal audiz should be that of a senior
director who is gt the heart of the corporate management of the authority. This
widely held professional view means, in practice. that internal audit should
report on a line or contract management basis to ¢ither the head of the paid
service (the chief executive) or finance director.”

This statement is also reflected in the CIPEA Code of Practice for Internal
Audit in Local Government.

Omne wav of measuring a chief internal auditor's status is to examine the
number of managers between the chief internal auditor and the council’s
chief executive (ie, the number of management tiers}. Exhibit 12 shows that
15 chief internal auditors report to a level below the director of finance (or
equivalent) — arrangements that do not comply with the Code.

Where the chief internal auditor's line manager is lower than the director of
finance (or equivalent}, there is a risk that the status and independence of
the chief internal auditor may be compromised.

These problems can be alleviated if chief internal auditors have direct access
to council Members, the chief executive and the director of finance.
Importantly, almaost all chief internal anditors consider that they have such
rights of access.



Page 91

| Exhibit 12: Line-management arrangemsznts for chief internal auditors

Fifteen councils do nat comply with the CiPFA Code.

Chief internal auditor's Management tier Number of councs

line manager
| Chief executive 0 ? o
| Director of finance | 12
Directar of corporatem ! 1 - 3

services {or equivalent)

Head of accounting ' 2 13
tor equivalent)

! Finance manager 3 z
{or equivalent)

| Sowrce’ Local audit retures I

Recommendations
Councils should review:

®  rhe line-management arrarigements of the chief internal auditor to ensure
that they rainfarce his/hier independence and status within the counci

B the reporting hines of internal audit o ensure they reinforce the
independence of internal audit within the coundil. For exampfs, the
reporting ines to the chief executive and refevant member committees,
should be both visible and active.

A job worth deing 20



3

N Duslifiea  Qualified Yes
(1] =3

Fourtean inrernal awdit services i not use a formal
PrEHEsS [0 A55Ess MisKs,

30 4 job worth doing

Page 92

Operational independence

Internal auditors should not have operational responsibilities ontside audit.
This means that, if internal audit were not involved, the operational process
would continue unaffected. Overaltl, the time spent on such tasks represents
only 2% of internal audit work across all councils, varying among councils
from 0-5% of audit time, Five internal audit services were assessed 1o be
invalved in tasks that could affect their independence.

Recommendation

{nternial audit involvernent in nam-audit work showld be kept to an absolute
minimurn. Where it is unavoidable, the chief intemnal auditor should take steps
to ensure internal audit’s independence is not compromised

Critical factor 3 — Planning and controlling the work of
internal audit

A structured framework of strategic, anmual and individual project plans helps
iriternal audit to consuls with members and semior managers and ensure that
the work programmne is properly focused on the council's needs. Internal audit
resaurces need to be priovitised fo areas of greatest risk to evsure that its
resources are used effectively,

Good worksng relationships with external auditors and inspectorares help
develop an imtegrated approach to audit, enabling the overall burden of audir
and inspection 1o be mirninised.

Internal audit needs good working papers to be able to present findings and
make recommendations thar can be supported by robust eviderice.

Risk assessment

A structured risk management methodology is required to properly
prioritise and plan internal audir work. It should cover both financial and
operational systems and should be regularly reviewed, particularly in period
of rapid organisational change.

o

However, the study found that:

m 14 internal audit services did not use a formal process to assess risks

® 12 did not regularly review their risk assessments

m  a quarter of the service managers who responded to the client survey
were not consulted on the key risks in their area

®  over 20% of chief executives felt that internal andit plans were not based
on an analysis of the risks facing the council

®  overall, 12 councils almost fully complied with the Code. However, there
is significant scope for improvement in 16 councils.

Exhibit 13 shows the planned budgets for systems and regularity audit. The
data suggests economies of scale in the larger councils. However, the
variation in the time spent by internal audit in some camparable councils
may be a consequence of them not properly identifying the level af input
required.



Page 93

Exhibit 13: Days planned for systems and regularity audit, per £m of total
| council revenue expenditure

There are significant variations between Droadly comparable councils

Days pfanned per £m of council revenue expenditure
8 9 10

o
—_
r
W
F =9
i
[=3]
~

Giasgow City
Edinturgh, City of
Fife

Rorth Lanarkshire
South Lanarkshire
Highland
aberdeenchire
Aperdeszn City
Dundee City
Renfrewshire
West Lazhian
Drumfries & Galioway
Naorth ayrshire
Falkirk

East Ayrshise

Perth & Kinross

West Cunbartonshine
South Ayrshire
Angus

Scottish Borders
Inverelyde

Argyll & Bute

East Dunbartonshire
Stirling

East Lathian

Moray

Midlathian

East Rentrewshire
Clackmannanshire
Shetland Islands

Comhairla han Eilean Sar

Orkrey Islands

Mote: Councils are listed in order of total council revenue expenditure.

I Source: Local audil returns

A job worth doing 31



32

Mo Quslified  Qualifien Yes
na yes

Eleven miternal audit strateqic plans were nog
infarmed by comprehensive risk assessment.

s

No Qualifred  Qualified
na r=

Twenty-two siategic plans did nat set gut the
resources reeged 1o meet the internal audit neads
of the counol

A job worth doing

Page 94

Good practice example: Perth and Kinress Conncil

Internal audit has carried out a formal risk assessment of all of the council's
services. It is hased on income, expenditure and value of stores, weighted by
three risk factors (financial, business, and political ).

Risk scores are allocated and audit areas are prioritised as very high, high,
medium, and low risk, Internal audit work 1s prioritised according to the
scores obtained. The risk assessment drives a three-year strategic plan, which
in turn drives the annual audit plan. All very high- and high-risk areas are
covered each vear,

Recommendations

The chief internal auditor shovid adopt a formal risk assessment methodology
to identify all the systems that require priorty review by internal audit. The
counci’s corporate risk assessment process and the knowledge and awareness

of service managers, external audit and internal audit should inform the pracess.

fnternal audit rescurces should be allacated to priority internal control areas,
based on robust risk assessment.,

Audit planning

Internal audit requires a structured planning framework of strategic, annual

and project plans to ensure that all council systems are kept under review.

m  The strategic plan, based on the risk assessment, should link to the
council's corporate aims and objectives and determine a schedule of
systerns to be reviewed {with the frequency of review having regard to
their assessed risk} and identify the resources required to undertake this
work.

®  The annual plan should be derived from the strategic plan and should
detail the work to be undertaken in any year. To ensure risks are properly
managed, annual plans should be sufficiently flexible (and include a
contingency) to ensure that all priority work is completed within the
scheduled time.

® Operational plans should be prepared for each project in consultation
with client managers, and set out the scope and objectives of the work,
time-scales and reporting arrangements.

External auditors’ assessments of internal audit planning frameworks

showed that:

B strategic plans were not informed by comprehensive risk assessment
(11 internal audit services)

@ strategic plans did not set out the resources needed to meet the internal
audit needs of the council, resulizng in a failure ro identify any mismatch
between the resources reqnired and the resources available (22)

m strategic plans did not link back to the council’s corporate aims and
objectives (16)

= annual plans did not have sufficient contingency provision to
accommedate work arising during the audit vear (10)

W project plans were not prepared for each audit assignment (11}

& gver 4 quarter of service managers surveved felt that they did not have
sufficient input into the planning of internal audit work



Page 95

B 199 of chief executives and 22% of directors of finance felt that internal
audit did nat always complete their priority work within planned
timescales

m  overall, six councils almost fully complied with the Code. However, there
1s significant scepe for improvement in 17 councils.

Comparison of internal audit's planned and actual work revealed significant
underfoverspends on particular categories of work, Across all councils, a
14% under-provision in the contingency for investigating fraud and
corruptien contributed ta an 11% shortfall in systems audit work. Exhibit 14
shows the areas where actual time spent was meore than 10% cutwith
internal audit's planned budget estimates. Significantly, internal audit time
on systems and internal control was more than 10% under-budget in 14
councils, and 20% of councils were more than 10% under-budget overall.

| Exhibit 14: Comparison of planned and actual work 2000/2001

Plannéd systems and internal cantrol work are not always completed within the period of
e plan.

Types of wark Number of councils ¢ Number of councils ‘
i more than 10% over more than 10% under
I budget ) budget ‘
Strategic and annual f 8 E 5 |
planning i i I
Systems and intarhal 3 ‘ 14 |
control texcluding fraud ‘
and corruption) i
Fraud and cosruption ' 14 10
VFN/Best Value etc : 7 12
Client non-audit work 3] 9
| Total 2 5 i
e e = - [ - 1

| ' Sounce. Local audit returns i

A joh worth doing 33



34

&

L

Mg Qualfied  Qualified Yes
na yes

Ten interngl audit services did nat matntan enen
channels of communigaton with bMembers.

A job worth doing

Page 96

Recommendaticns
The chief internal auditor shoul prepare:

B strategic and annual plans in consultation with senior managers across the
council and update these to reflect changes in priorities of the coundif

B 3 strategic plan setting out the depth, breadth, frequency and timing of
each audit

® a5 annual plan setting out the work to be undertaken each year, including
sufficient contingency ta ensure that all priorty work is completed within
the year

® gperational plans for each audit project, setting out the scope and
objectives of the work, the resources allocated and agreed target dates for
fieldwork and repiorting.

Working relationships

To undertake its worl effectively, internal audit should foster constructive
working relationships with management, external auditors, inspectorates,
any other review agencies, and where one exists, with the audit committee or
equivalent mechanism.

Overall, internal audit performed well is: this area, However, in ten councils,
internal andit did not maintain open channels of communication with
Members.

Managing, controfling and recording work

Sound management of the internal audit section and of individual
assignments ensures that internal audit objectives are achieved and work is
performed effectively. Twenty-eight councils performed weli in this area.

Audit guides are a usefii] tool in assisting staff to foliow standardised
procedures to consistent quality standards, The Scottish Local Government
Chief Internal Auditors’ Group has produced a standard audit guide
available for use by all councils in Scotland. The internal aud:t section in
Angus Council has further developed this guide.

Goaod practice example: Angus Council

All the procedures for the conduct of the internal audit section are set out in
the andit manual, which is part of the Audrt, VFM & Risk Services intranet
as an HTML document. All standard forms, memoranda ané programmes
are embedded in the document. Staft access the relevant section in the
manual to ob1ain the required information.



Page 97

Critical factor 4 — Resourcing the internal audit work
programme

Internal audit services need o be properly vesourced wo complete their agreed
work progranme, efficiently, effeciively and on rime. The interral control needs
of the council should drive the need for audit resowrces. Otherwise, there is a
risk that the internal control needs of the council will not be met (eg, there may
be a skills deficit in a high-risk avea, eg, IT, which may not be adequately
reviewed ). :

Internal audit work vequires a balance of skills, experience and qualifications.
Staff should be supporred with needs-based training o enable them 1o develop
the skills requeired to meet both current and future work challenges,

An absence of needs-based training and personal developmeent programmes can
lead to limited staff developmens, difficulties in recruiting and retaining good
staff, and a lack of skills iyt the use of modern andit technigues.

Staffing resources

Internal audit needs te have the appropriate number and quality of staff to
do the required work, and manage these resources efficiently and effectively.
IPF data suggests that unitary councils in England and Wales spend 40%
more on internal audit than councils in Scotland. However, it is difficult to
draw a firm conclusien from this comparison as the variation may be due to
differences in the types of work undertaken by internal audit both north and
south of the border. Importantly, it is for cach council to decide the level of
internal audit resources to meet its internal control needs, based on a
comprehensive assessment of the risks facing the council.

External auditors assessed 12 internal audit services as having inadequate
resources to enable them to meet their work objectives efficiently and
effectively, based on interviews with chief internal auditors, and the views of
chief executives and directors of finance. The main shortfalls were
insufficient qualified staff and a lack of computer audit specialists. Four
councils had not reviewed their internal avdit staffing requirements since
council reorganisation.

Recruitment of interna} audit staff is a problem for many councils. At the
time of the study, there were 35 vacant internal audit posts across Scottish
councils, representing 12% of internal audit's overall establishment. Eight of
the 13 chief internal auditors who had recently advertised posts reported
particular difficnities in filling vacancies for qualified auditors and IT audit
staff. Here, councils have to compete with the private sector and other public
sector organisations in a market where qualified auditors, particularly [T
auditors, are in short supply.

Where particular skills gaps arise (eg, for computer and contract audit staff),
it should be possible to access these skills, on a temporary basis, by ‘buying
i’ specialist staff. However, this option is only avzilable to chief internal
auditors in 16 ¢councils.

A job worth doing

3%



36

ey

Na Croahfred  Qualitred
[l yes

Ten chief internal auditors did net co-ordinate and
reviewy the training 3nd develgpment requirements
af their staff.

A job worth doing

Page 98

Whaere councils are unable to attract suitably experienced staff, more

fundamental longer-term eptions should be considered, for example:

B entering into consortia arrangements with other councils or other public
sector arganisations [eg, the NHS)

B entering into partnership arrangements with the private sector

® contracting out an element, or all, of the service to the private sector,

Recommendations

Councils should determine the staffing and skill mix required by internal audgit
hased on a comprehensive risk assessment. The strategic plan should identify
the councilt’s internal audit requirements.

Councifs should conduct an option appraisal for procuring internal audit
sarvices and challenge whether.

B the council’s internal audlit noeds are being met

B internagl audit has the relevant skiffs and experience to meet the current and
changing needs of the organisation

B the resources heing spent on internal gudit are providing a Bast Value
service

B the sarvice could be improved by entering into consertia arrangements with
other councils, entering into partnarship arrangements with the privare
sector or contracting al, or elerments, of the service 1o the private sector,

Where additional specialist skilfs such as T are required, the chief internal
auclitar should consider consortium arrangements, partnerships or ‘buying in’
cantract staff to fulfil short-term (T audit reguirements.

Staff training and development

Training should be tailored to the needs of individual auditors to help them
meet their current responsibilities and the challenges they are likely to face,
for example, the need for improved IT skills.

However, in ten councils, the chief internal anditor did not ¢o-ordinate and
review the training and development requirements of their staff. In 13
councils, there was no induction pregramme for new staff,

Good practice example: Glasgow City Council

The council's internal audit section has two experienced computer auditors,
traizned in data protection legislation and other computer-aided audit
techniques {CAAT). These skills have enabled the council to use data
matching techniques to combat fraud.

Recammendations

The chief internal auditor should co-ordinate, and keep under review, the
training requirements of internal auditors and arrange for parsonal training
records to be maintained for each mernber of histher staff.

induction programmes should be arranged far af new internal augit staff




Page 99

Critical factor 5 - Reporting and follow-up arrangements

Ir 15 internal audit’s responsibility to submit thnely reports to management,
identifying the findiags from irs work and making recarmmendarions for
improvement.

Systeratic follow-up procedures ensure that management has implemented
internal audir recovemendations within qgreed time-scales, or has understood
and assumed the risk resulting from not taking action.

Low priority given to follow-up work 1s counter-productive in the long term, as
the effect of implementation of recommendations cannot be assured. This can
undermmine the whole audit process.

Reporting arrangements

Cver three-quarters of councils had clear procedures for producing and

clearing internal andit reports. [n addition, over $0% of service managers

surveyed felt that inzernal audit recommendations were concise, clear and

constructive. Almost all agreed with internal audit recommendations. Service
13 managers were generally satisfied with the time taken by internal andit o
submit its drafr and final reports.

[t important that the council has a cdear understanding of rhe issues raised
by internal audit during the year. However, in more than two-thirds of
councils, the chief internal auditor did not produce an annual report
providing an overall view on the soundness of the council's internal control
systems,

o OQuahfed Cuafied  Yes
no yos

Twrerty-tuen cniek intermal auiters did et prepuce 1 11€ CIPEAJ/SOLACE report on corperate governance calls upon councils ta:
I report provid I 1 ‘ . s o
Suminass of the counals meinal rontial smerms. | Publish on a timely basis, within an annual report, an objective, balanced and
utiderstandable statement and assessment of the authority's risk management

and internal control mechanisms and their effectiveness in practice.”

This development, taken together with the move by other parts of the public
secter towards introducing internal {financial} control statements, makes it
likely that, in due course, there will be a reguirement on councils to produce
an annual report, and include in their accounts a statement on the adequacy
of their mternal control arrangements.

Goed practice examnple: East Renfrewshire Council

Each vear, since 1998/99, the chief auditor has produced an annual assurance
staternent on internal control. This statement is approved by the audit
committee and ratified by the council.

Recommendation

Internal audit should produce an annual report, which sefs aut ifs apinjon on
the adequacy of tho councit's internal control arrangements, based on the work
undertaken that year

A job worth doing



38

12
l |

MNa Qualified  Qualifiag Tes
ro ¥es

Fourteen services did nat report 1o the carporate
MENAGEMEnt TEAT! INstances wiere service managers
faled to mplemant rmedial action Mans, 4 ageeed.

A job worth doing

Page 100

Follow-up arrangements

It is the responsibility of management to implement agreed
recommendations or accept the risk resulting from not taking action,
Internal audit should have systematic follow-up procedures in place to
moniter the implementation of its recommendations. The results of follow-
up work should be used by internal audit to update its risk assessment and
plan its future work.

Auditors assessed that many councils could improve their follow-up

arrangements:

= 1§ internal audit services did nor use the results of follow-up work to
update their risk assessment

¥ 14 did not report to the corporate management teatn instances where
service managers failed to implement remedial action plans, as agreed

®  ten did not use the resulis of follow-up work to update their andit plans

B overall, only two councils almost fully complied with the Code. There is
significant scope for improvement in 19 councils.

Recommendations

The chief internal auditor should ensure that appropriate arrangements are
made to determine whether action has been taken on internal audit
recommendations, and that management has understood and accepted the risk
of not taking action.

The chief internal auditor should report failure to implement agresd action
pians to the corporate management team and audit commitice.

internal audit shouid use the results of folfow-up work to update its risk
assessmant and its planning of future internal audit work.




H

]

MNu Qualified  Cualded Yes
no yes

There was scope for nine chwef internal auditors 1o

turtner develop their use of pedarmance iIndcatass

Page 101

Critical factor 6 — Holding internal audit to account for its
performance and the role of audit committees

The effectiveness of internal audit is enhanced if it operates within a
performance managenent fromework that embraces professional standards,
performance review and continuous inprovernent.

The adopiion of audit committee principles helps to raise the profile and
effectiveness of audit by establishing scrutiny arrangements that hold both
internal awudit and service managers to account.

Where effective performance review processes are not in place, there is a risk
that the council may not be getting appropriate assurance on the level of
internal confrols in operation.

Performance management

The chief internal auditor should promote and maintain quality standards
within the section. Performance measures and indicators can be nsed to
demonstrate whether internal audit is achieving its planned objectives and
delivering Best Value. Independent accreditation (eg, [SO 9000 or 9002) can
assist in ensuring that the appropriate standards are in place. Five councils
have such accredication.

The standards of professional and ethical behaviour of internal audit staff
are high across all councils. Many chief internal auditors continuously
maintain and develop the performance of their services. However, there was
scope for nine chief internal auditors to further develop their vse of
performance indicaters to measure the performance of their service.

Recommendation

Thre chief internal auditor should establish 3 set of performance measures and
local indicators, refevant to the achievernent of audit objectives within & Best
Vaiue context.

Audit committees :

The Accounts Commission regards the adoption and implementation of

audit committee principles as an important step in raising the standards of

corporaie governance in local government. To be fully effective, an andit

committee or equivalent should:

B be established at a high ievel, constituted as a separate commitiee or
inciuded within the remit of a relevant commistee with other funcrions

M ensure broad terms of reference, permitting it to investigate matters of
financial management and economy, efficiency and effectiveness, with the
necessary resources to do so and with (ull access o information

®  have direct (two-way} access between the chief internal anditer and the
external auditor.

4 joh worth doing

19



Page 102

The number of councils having an audit committee, or equivalent, is
increasing. Sixteen councils currently have these arrangements in place. Of
the 16 councils currently without audit committees (or equivalent}, eight
chief internal auditors felt that an audit committee would encourage greater
accountability and scrutiny of council performance. The client survey
indicated that a majority of service managers would prefer internal audit to
be accountable to an independent joint group of officers and members.

The study team discussed the role of audit committees with committee
members in three councils that have long-established audit/scrutiny
committees (Aberdeen, Dundee, and Fife}. All members spoke very paositively
about the impact thar their audit cemmittees were having and, in particular,
they {elt the adaption of audit contmittee principles continued to help
improve corporate governance.

The main impact of the audit committee in these councils is felt to be:

®  a sharper focus on corporate strategic risks

W raised officer and member awarensss of the importance of internal
controls

B better prioritisation and use of internal audit resources

corporate support for internal audit recommendations

B 3 fagter response by service departments to internal audit reports and
recommendations.

However, they highlighted a number of problems and potential solutions
(Exhibit 15).

Exhibit 15: Common tssues experienced by audit committee members

There are a number of issues that could usefully be tackled by local government.

Potential solutions

Conhcerns about net wenting to Ensure that the audit committee (or equivalenty
‘stand on the toes’ of cther has clear terms of reference.

committess.

Not feeling competent -0 challenge Improved training for audit commitiee members
the cantent and balance of internal and being able to call an specialist advice.

audit work, Including work plans
and reparts submitted - leading to
a fack of effective challenge.

Not receiving an annual report on Require internal audit to produce an annual
the work programme and the audit Qverview report.

recomnmendations implemented.

A lack of 1raining for audit committee Development of a handiook and training
members - it took new members a programme for members, giving guidance on
fong time to 'find their feet’. the role and operation of audit committees

Potential exists to develop a forum, similar to
the Health Service, enabling members to share
experiences and learn from best practice in
tackling common issues.

i Spurce: Inte it wath audit commitae members |

40 A job worth doing



Page 103

Recommendations
Coundis should make arrangements 10 introduce an audit commitiee or
equivalent mechanism where they have rot already done so.

Councils should arrange for comprehensive training for all new audit committee
members.

Local government shouwld develop a handbook for audit committee members,
and expiore the potential to develop a forum for audit committee members to
share best practice.

A job waorth doing

41



47

A job worth doing

Page 104

4, Securing Best Value
internal audit services

Opportunities for the future
This study has identified a range of opportunities that exist to raise the
standard of internal audit, by aiming for full compliance with the Code.

All internal audit services need to embrace a culture of continuous
improvement, adopting proven best practice from other public and private
sector organisations. Three case studies reflecting these aims are included at
the end of this section. Through improving perforinance and delivering
added value, internal audit services will be able ta demonstrate their capacity
to take on new responsihilities.

Best Value and other initiatives are fundamentally changing the way councils
work and this presents opportunities as well as challenges for internal avdit
services. These include:

®  [ntroduction of audit committees and revised council structures. In
response to the Mcintosh report, all councils are expected o review their
corporate governance and management arrangements. This is having an
impact on the line management of internal audit and its reporting lines
1o senior managers and councillors. Sixteen councils now have audit {or
scrutiny) committees and this provides the opportunity for these
councils to support and challenpge both internal and external audit's
contribution to achieving sound internal controls and performance
stewardship. Under these new arrangements, internal audit has the
opportunity te demonstrate excellent performance and to be held
accountable for its work.

®  The changing rale of internal audit. Internzl audit is emerging from its

traditional ‘policing’ role to developing a more proactive corporate role

{Exhibit 16). In a growing number of councils, internal audit is being

given an increasingly important role in supporting corporale gevernance

and performance. The client survey identified that many chief executives

would like 10 see the role of internal audit being further developed and

providing added value by:

— identifying petformance improvements through Best Value, value for
money, and perfermance management and planning audits

— undertaking more 'cross-cutting’ type work

— challenging the status quo and supperting continuouws improvement
in the council.

The changing role of internal audit demands braader competencies than
those of traditional audit services. The former emphasis on accounting

and auditing qualifications now needs to be balanced by a consideration
of other skills that may be reguired to meet the wider demands on andit.



Page 105

| Exhib#t 16: The changing role of internal audit

The rale of internal audit is changing from a maostly financial 1o a more corporate role

Traditional role Emerging role

Finance hased Corporate role

Policing role Pro-active partnership role
Seli-sufficient Use of specialists
Functional focus Risk and process fecus
Tangible asset fotus itargible asset

awyarenass eq, reputation,
accountability

Source Audi Scotland I

8 Expansion in the use of ICT. The growing use of electronic commerce
and electronic signatures is placing greater dermands on councils for
expert skills in computer audit. Council chief executives recognised this
in their survey responses.

B Getting improved value from council resources. Internal audit is not
immune from the drive to obtain Best Value from council resources.
There is an opportunity for internal audit to develop new and improved
ways of wotking to enzhle it te manage its resources more effectively, for
exatnple by:

— adopting a risk management strategy, ensuring that its wotk
programme is focused on the council's priority risk areas

~ introducing smarter ways of working, by training and developing staff
in the use of modern audit technigues (eg, the use of internat control
self-assessment methodologies”, moves to "paperless audit', increased
use of computer aided audit techniques)

— developing a stronger, effective partnership with exiernal auditors and
other review agencies, which will help 10 reduce the overall burden
(both time and cost) of the audit and inspection processes on
councils.

8 The likely introduction of internal (financial) control statements (1CS).
In the private sector and other parts of the public sector (eg, government
departments, further education and health), ICS have been successfully
intreduced as a means of providing assurance to sharcholders or
staleeholders on the adequacy of internat controls within the organisation.

The requirement to have the senior manager of the organisation certify
the adequacy of internal controls provides a sharp focus on
management’s need to establish effective arrangements for internal
control, and internal audit.

Ajob worth doing



44

A job worth doing

Page 106

CIPFA and the Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee
(the CIPFA LASAAC Joint Committee) are actively considering the
intraduction of ICS to local government accounts. This development will
be a key driver in encouraging councils to establish effective internal
audit service pravision. This is only the first step towards full Turnbull
compliance, which is seeking to extend the staternent in respect of
financial control to all controls within the organisation, induding
financial, operational, compliance and the management of risk.

Condusion - challenging councils to improve

Al councils need sonnd internal contrel systemns and strong corporate
governance arrangements. An effective Best Value internal audit service can
be a major contribitor in achieving this. However, this study has identified
that many councils need to improve their internal audit arrangemnents,

Understanding current performance is a key factor in driving conlinuous
improvement. This report, along with the local external andit reports,
provides each council with a robust assessment of their levels of compliance
with the CIPFA Code. A sound baseline now exists (¢ measure
improvements made by individual councils over time.

All councils have individual reports from their external auditor, assessing
their level of compltance with the CIPFA Code of Practice, These show that
some have g lot to do in raising their standards to those reflected in the
Code. Each council is expected to implement the agreed recommendations
contained in their external avditor’s report.

Where the room for improvement is significant (particularly those councils
falling within performance band 4), substantia) progress is needed in a short
space of time. There is a strong case for these councils testing carrent
provision against what the market might provide, This would involve
looking at options that would provide a high-quality service that cnsures
that the councils’ control objectives are met, at acceptable cost, These options
woatld include:

B buying in specialist skills, for example, computer audit expertise

®  entering into consortia arrangements with other councils

B partnership arrangements with the private sector

m  externalising scrvice provision.

Irrespective of who provides the service, the critical factors that underpin a

Best Value internal audit service remain the same, All councils should be

looking to develap sound internal control arrangements where:

®  conncillors are demonsirably committed to supporting the need for a
sound internal control environment, including internal auwdit

B senior managers are demonstrably committed to maintaining effective
internal controls and implementing sound internal audit arrangements

®  chief internal auditors demonstrably provide an excellent internal audit
service,

Exhibit 17 provides a checklist that highlights the key messages for an
effective internal audit service. It should help councillars, chief executives,
senior managers and chief internal auditors to ensure that their council has
these arrangements in piace. External auditors will be monitoring progress.



Page 107

Exhibit 17: Achieving a Best Value internal audit service — a checklist for coundilors, chief executives, senior managers
| and chief internal auditors
]

Critical factors Key enabling factors

1. Setting clear and propetly #  Is the counoll committed to establishing an effective internal
faeused objectives for internal audit service?
audit

»  Doesintermal audit have ciear terms of reference agreed by
senior management and communiczled these acoss the
council?

®» Doss intermal audit have & good understanding of the risks
facing the coundil, developed in consuhtation with all service

managers?
2. Ensunng that internal audit is ®  Does internal audit have direct access to councillors, the chief
independent executive and the director of finance?

w  Does internal audit have (and is it seen to have) independence
from operational procedures?

®  Doas internal audit have the right of final edit in submitting

reports?
2. Making sure the work of internal . Doesinternal audit's planned wark support the corperate
audit s properly planned objactives of the council?

®  Doesiniernal audit ensure that all planned work reflects the
resutts from its systematic assessment of the counci’s risks?

M Does internal audit plan a suffident contingency to
accommodate unfaresean wark, enabling it to complata is
planned work within time-scale?

4, Making sure imternal audit is ®  Does senior management ensure that internal audit has the
adequately resourced resources required o meet the internal contrel needs of the
council?

®  Doas the council recruit and train suitably skilled internal
audit staff?

»  Has senior management given authority to the chief internal
auditor (o access specialist skifls to tackle complex areas?

&. Ensuring that internal audit 8 Doesimernal gudit report weaknesses in internal control for

findings are reported and action by management?
foliowed up

®  Does senfor management systematically encourage all
managers 1o implement report recommendations within
agreed ume-scales?

®  Does internal audit report any faillure by management to
implement agreed recommendations?

8 Does internal audit provide an annuai report, providing an
overall view on the soundness of the council’s internal control

systems?
6. Ensuring that internal audit is m  Does the council have an audit commitize or equivalent to:
held to account for its - approve internal audit work, plans?
performance - review internal audit’s output and performance and

ensure that it completes its pregramme of work?
- act as a conduit for receiving audit reparts and call
Service managers 10 account?

u Does internal audit prepare annual performance plans, setting
out its achievements and targets?

m  Does internal audit maintain an effective performance
management framework to continuausly reviewr and improve
its performance?




46

A job worth doing

Page 108

Case study 1: East Renfrewshire Council

Contact: Asif Abdul Haseeb, Chief Anditor (CA}, Fast Renfrewshire Council,
('F. 0141 577 3000).

East Renfrewshire Council has been assessed as having one of the best
internal audit services in Scotland, This case study provides an insight as to
how the in-house service achieves this.

The council identified the following main characteristics that underpin thefr
valued service:

a ¢lear long-term vision for internal audit

strong leadership by the chief auditor, having effective management and

interpersonal skills to turn the vision into reality

effective support from elected members, the director of finance and chief

executive .
a strong and effective andit committee

appointing the right people and giving them support and the tools to do

the job.

Good practice is present in all of the areas assessed and the following
provides a flavour of these:

Setting clear and properly focused objectives. The service has clear
terms of reference approved by the audit commitree and ratified by the
council. Service level agreements apply with each department. The
couiteil has a fraud and corruption strategy, incorporating 'whistle-
blowing' procedures.

Maintaining independence. The CA reports directly 1o the director of
finance and has regular access to elected members through the audir
committee, The CA issues reports in his own name without editing. The
section does not carry out any non-audit work,

Planning and contrel. A rolling four-vear strategic plan has been in place .
since 1996, covering all council activities — financial and non-financial

systems. A 10% contingency is included in the annual plan for unplanped

reactive work. All work in the annual plan is completed each year. An

excellent working relationship exists hetween internal and external andit,

This has resulted in a joint approach to audit planning with minimal

duplication of work. An audit manual has been in place since February

1998,

Resourcing the work programme, The section has five staff, Four are
financially qualified and the fifth is studying for an audit qualification.
One member of staff has a computer audit qualification. Each staff
member reports to the CA and completes audits working to histher own
initiative. Secondments 1o other organisations are encouraged to help
develop staff and maintain their current high level of morale. This has
included a two-way secondment with Audit Scottand and secondments to
the private sector and the NHS.

Reporting and follow-up. Over 90% of reports are issned within five
working days of staff completing the work. Client surveys indicate that
reports are comprehensive and very well received. Each year, since
1998799, the CA has produced an annual assurance statement on internal



Page 109

control, which is approved by the audit commirtes and ratified by the
council. Each annual audit plan makes provision to follow-up previous
years' action plans for satisfactory implementation, as appropriate.

Holding internal audit to account. The audit committee is chaired by
the Leader of the Opposition, and reports te full council. The Committee
approves the annual audit plan. The CA aftends all meetings and
provides the committee with quartetly progress reports and an annual
OVETView report.

A job worth doing

47



a8

A job worth doing

Page 110

Case study 2: North Yorkshire Audit Partnership

Contact: James Ingham, Audit Manager, North Yorkshire Andit Partnership,
Ryedale DC, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire (T, 01723 232364).

The North Yorkshire Audit Partnership was established on 1 February 1999
to provide internal audit services to three local authority partners: Ryedale
District Council, Scarborough Borough Council, and Selby District Council.

The main objectives for setting up the Partnership were to provide
economies of scale, with an increase in the quality of services through

* greater specialisation and sharing of skills across the different jocal authority

boundaries, Partners also had specific requirements for the Partnership
including:

®  reducing recruitment difficulties

B improved access to spocialist staff

W  to explore parmerships in other service areas.

The Partnership was created using a joint committee whose responsibility is
the overall strategy and management of the Partnership. There are two
members from each authority on the Managemnent Board with equal voting
rights. The Partnership prepares annual trading accounts that are approved
by the Board, and any balances are also shared equally.

Scarborough Council's chief internal auditor was appointed audit manager
with responsibility for delivering an effective internal audit service, He
reports on that to the client officer in each of the partner councils, and to the
Board in respect of the Partnership itself.

Sepatate audit plans are prepared for each council, with each council being
provided an agreed number of days to meet their audit needs. There is
sufficient flexibility in the arrangements to allow for changes in the plans
and therefore the number of audit davs being provided to each council, if
required.

The performance of the Partnership is being evaluated. The measures being
employed include:
m  feedback from audit cienrs
m  completion of audit plans, by both nuzmber of audits and time
m  feedback from the external auditor
B internal performance monitoring, including:
— irdividual and group charged time percentages against targets
— time taken for audits against planned time.

Overal] the Partnership is performing well. The main successes achieved to
date include:

B an increase in the number and range of audits undertaken

a reduction in planned times for some of the audits without
compromising the content of the audit through improved efficiency
an increase in the percentage of the audi plan completed

increased and extensive use of data manipulation software
development of individual's skills and specialisms

cross-fertilisation of ideas and audit experience, and not least

a financial saving to the partner councils.



Page 111

Case study 3: Comhairle nan Eilean Siar

Contact: Paul Macaskill, Semiar Auditor, Combhairle nan Eilean Siar,
(T. 01851 703773},

In 1992, Combhairle nan Eilean Siar was severely criticised by the Controller
of Audit for having poor financial controls and treasury management
practices. Following his appointment, the director of finance gave priority wo
establishing effective internal audit. To achieve rapid improvement in
internal zudit, it was decided fo put the professional, technical and
managerial aspects of internal audit to open tender, and the contract was
awarded to a private firm of accountants.

Internal audit now consists of three in-house members of staff, headed by 2
qualified accountant, The contracted firm provides quality assurance
SUppOTT.

Features of the improved service include:

m  Independent andit arrangements. The senior auditor reports to the
director of finance with simultanecus reporting to the chief executive.
Independent reporting by the senior auditor to the chief executive is
considered to be essential.

¥  Members actively consider audit reports. A Member working party
receives all audit reports and approves audit recommendations.

»  Greatet reassuramnce on internal controls, Effective internal audit gives
Members and officers considerable reassurance on the reliability and
integrity of the council's financial affairs.

= Greater compliance with Auditing Standards. This has provided more
robust compliance and follow-up mechanisms.

m  More effective use of audit resources. Audit resources are dedicated to
audit and are applied based on risk, materiality and effectiveness of
internal controls.

m  Improved training and skills for in-house staff. The Partnership
supports the development of in-house staft.

A recent Best Value review of the audit service identified other pointers to

good practice:

®  involve all senior managers in risk identification and analysis so that
corporate ownership of the strategic and operational audit plans takes
place

®  frain mapagers in making use of internal audit services and explain the
benefits that can be achieved for the organisation

= continuously and effectively develup internal andit staff

®  improve audit’s positive perception by the rest of the council by
identifying good practice to suppaort improvement action
recommendations

®  minimise duplication of effort between internal audit, external audit and
inspectorate functions, to allow resources to be deployed efficiently and
effectively.

Combhairle nan Eilean Siar's experience has shown that a fully resourced and
supported internal audit service can promete performance, stewardship and
accountability within the council and shape how the council operates and
delivers its services.

A job worth daing

49



30

A job worth deing

Page 112

Appendix 1. Membership of
the study advisory group

Robin Bennie, Director of Finance, Combairle nan Eilean Siar
George Black, Director of Finance, Glasgow City Council

Valerie Davidson, Head of Finance, Strathciyde Passenger Transport, formerty
Depute Director, CIPFA Scotland

David Dorward, Director of Finance, Dundee City Council

Brian Dunecan, Chief Internal Anditor, Renfrewshire Council

Ian Fifield, Policy and Technical Manager {Audit), CIPFA

Rohert Mackenzie, Partner, Scott-Moncrieff CA

Alex Mackie, Internal Audit Manager, East Lothian Council

Hamish McKay, Chief Internal Auditor, University of Edinburgh

David McLaren, Manager, PricewaterhouseCoopers

David Momgomery, Chief Executive, East Ayrshire Council

Marie Moy, Senior Finance Manager, Secial Work Resources, South
Lanarkshire Council, formerly Chief Internal Auditor, South Lanarkshire

Conngil

Gavin Stevenson, Chief Auditor, Andit Scotland, formerly Chief Auditor, Fife
& Forth Valley Internal Audit Consertium

Norie Williamson, Head of Finance, COSLA

Tanine Wilson, Audit, VFM and Risk Manager, Angus Council



Page 113

Appendix 2. Assessment and
scoring methodology

Undertaking the assessment
External auditors assessed each council’s arrangernents for internal andit
against accepted good practice as set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for
Internal Audit in Local Government. The assessments were completed
during February 2001 and reflect councils' arrangements at that time.

The performance assessment framework used by external auditors is based
on six critical success factors. Auditors scored councii performance by testing
almost 100 processes within 15 areas of good practice (Exhibit 18). These
reflect the issues that the study advisory group and other consultees
(including council internal auditors, and the Commission's appointed
external auditors), felt were essential for delivering a Best Value internal

andit service,

| Exhibit 18: Structure of the assessment

Fifteen statements of good practice and 97 tests on council processes and outcomes
support the six critical success factors

Six
critical success
factors

eg, having effective
reporting and
Tollow-up
arrangerments

Fifteen
statements of
goed practice

eq, internal audit
has dlear reporting
arrangements that
provide
managerment with
an opinion ¢n the
adeguacy of
mternal control

Ninety-seven
tests on individual
council processes

and outcomes

&g, internal audit
produces clear,
oncise and
constructive writien
reports

Source: Audis Scotland ]

External auditors tested documentary evidence, processes and outcomes to
assess the degree of compliance with good practice. The following example
shows how the scoring system was applied 10 docurnentary evidence.

1 =‘no’ — ¢, performance does not comply with gaod practice (eg, document
does not exist or very early draft)

2 =*gualified no’ - ie, performance on the whole does not comply with good
practice (eg, terms of reference are availabie in draft but have yet to be
approved and are not in use aperationally, or a formally approved
document which misses out most of the important issues)

3 ='qualified yes’ — ic, performance on the whole complies with good
practice, {eg, formally approved docuiment but which misses some
impottant issues or a draft document that, although yet to be formally
approved, is in use operationally)

4 ='yes’ — ie, performance complies with good practice (eg, formally
approved document covering all of the important issues).

A job worth deing 5i



52

A job worth daing

Page 114

Consistency and validation checks

Ta ensure auditors’ assessments were cansistently scored, the study team

provided training and undertook robust validation procedures including:

8 holding training workshops for auditors to familiarise them with the
methodology and assessment process

#  holding further workshops to ensure that anditors’ assessments were
undertaken consistently

#  conducting exzensive consistency checks on auditors’ assessments and
council data returns

s having a sample of 50% of assessments subjected to independent peer
review by other external auditors.

Although the study team has made every effort to ensure rhat the
assessments bave been scored on a consistent basis, there always remains an
element of subjectivity in scoring performance. For this reason, we are
neither ranking overall council performance, nor giving individual scores.

Assessing overall performance

The scores for each test were used to calculate the average score for each
staternent. These were then used o calculate a council score for each of the
six critical factors.

Exhibit 19 shows a scatterplot of the scores for the six critical factors and the
15 statements, for each coundii.

| Exhikit 19: Bands of internal audit performance

Council performance falis into four distinct bands.

4.0
Band 1. &
o

i5 Band 2~ @k
A __L_,

3.0 Band 3 __- -
5 ; >
2 a
£ o4 -
E 25 Bnd 2 g

) J

£ -
2 10

e Bang 5

1.0

1.0 15 20 2.5 30 15 4.0

Critical factor score

| Source: Local aught returns |

Four robust ranges of overall council performance emerged. The ranges in
the overall scores were then used to create bands of performance
{Exhibit 20).



Page 115

| Exhihit 20: The knk between touncil scores and perflormance bands

Councils' actual scores were used to assess overall compliance and 1o create performance

bands.
! Querall Performance bands created from
compliance with analysis of actual results \
Code {Note 1) ‘
Actual overall % Performance Range
sCores band
356-3.71 85 - 90 1 350-400
3.24-3.44 72-81 2 3.10-3.50
264 -301 h4 - 67 3 2.50-310
2.21-245 35 - 48 4 1.75-2.50
Note 2 Note 2 5 1.00-1.75

Source: Audit Scotland |

Notes:

1. The percentage compliance was czlculated for each score thus:

Percentage compliance = (score - 1)/3 x 100

Because the lowest score that a council could achieve is 1 and the highest
is 4, a score of 2.5 represents a percentage compliance score of 50%.

2. Although, overall, no council scored below 2.2, a fifth band was created
only for the purposes of Appendix 4, to allow poor performance for a
particular statement to be identified. ‘Hotel star’ ratings were awarded o
each performance band.

Exhibit 21 shows how the average scores convert to ‘hotel star’ ratings. The
star ratings indicate ach council’s performance — overall, and for each area.
Because the ratings for each statement have been rounded, adding them

together may not produce the council’s overall score.

| Exhibit 21: The relationship of 'hotel stars' and average scores

The ‘hotel stars reflect the performance bands

e —_

‘Hotel stars'

Average scores for each statement
e | symbeol .
Egual to or more than But less than |
3.50 4.00 La.8 & & 4
_— .
3.10 350 Jdk ok i
2.50 3.10 P |
175 ‘ 2.50 *k
| 1.00 *

1.7%

Sawnce: Audit Scotland I

A Job worth doing

53



Page 116

Bulep yuom qol ¢ ¥S

ity ZE ZE i i3 i a3 e 43 O3 30 13qUANG (BT
o] £ £ a o} £ L L 4 ¥ g
£ iz} L z 3 E il £ * LE t
£ £ 9 9 g g £ L a auy £
E [4 4 & ol g 9 g aL LR T Y ] Z
al < Fa | gl al £l F LL 4 EEE XY

8 £ ] g T H H 1 lIBJBAD JUILISSATSY pueyg

55B AQ 5]1DUNG) JO saqluny

exex rua LR Y] Yy P s %2 ¢re Py ] plseig
[FE T *r + .y E -y ¥ X ¥ rEx ¥ SpUe|s| pUERSYS
“nx * na rm  FAERE % * ax >y phDISALE
»ax * 4 ERERK x PR E .y 3 auystouequis 1583
- o3 (X - LR » L e EEY #ng 7 |ABny + pueg
.3 ¥ L R R ] LT LR xR FEEER EE N SaysOLIEQUNG Teash
[ 3 rE¥ ,x LN AXIE A ER X EK x» N AR YInes
LK »% GE XYy -, 3 2 EIF EE E 3 FY ¥ N - LE X3 EpuErS\-‘C-BLA:p(}
rER r AN 2EANR LR S Py = ran 4K EX R HIYFHIELET Yuoy
£u ¥ ry LN ] LR Y EERT e ru L ERIVHES BTN
[ EE ¥ EEEE 3 exrs LY ) ey >y 2 'S PR XS LEINIO R
[ R ren rrx LRy dray xx3 X2 EREE £y qayed
[ FY ) e » ¥yN rE® LY R L) EXER ) -y B4 PURIELLY 8| 2 £ pueq
(Y exHS  FREESN ran REXEN [N PEVYY 2% rExR Bling
dyenn ¥ L (S 2T Y ENIE LR ER RS LS EX X ES LE X T ) HISHIPUET YINDK
FrmpN LR EENER -EM X N ENxay x4y ER SRS LY ¥3 LIEpIg Y30es
LEX T ¥ AERER MENYE ¥yr¥y L 3 xk Ay EX Y X NS Exnx AL FARES L Ly
EEX X1 EAEN AFREE Adxypury  KEXER LE XY KX 2xn EE L F SSOREY G kg
EE RN T EX RN ) ryx EEX RS rray rENEER EN S e EEE X Ay
LT RS BER AXEREX Hamam AEREY KER ray REESE LX) puefiH
¥R bk BPEREE rxrx nEREN LR NS N33 maEyy LN Ao mafises
XEXLESR ryan EAX  ZIERE A¥ERAE LERY ) rR3  mEEIR EE Y 3 -1
AEREN oy FERYE  EZany  RARER axas xx [ER S LN 1 U0 yBnquing
PRy rxyy ANE ABRBREY LR EEL EEXNE yaxx LN +ENy uenjaT ise3
EXEERS EX R} L ES Y LrEREEY EE R 23 BEREE NEE L RN ER 2 2 Ay eapung
N ENT cExan - 5 EXEE R yeypy N E ¥y PNy W PR ET PfEMDuL"fj’gSagJ;LUHG
ArErr REERLE LT LS LN EE X E ) [ EF ¥ ¥ Xy rrEdr ¥R snbuy
L -y EE .3 L Y rapAE x iy EER N EE R E YN SISy
ALENE xy KEARFE Ar¥ry FEERX ¥ ¥ ¥E X XX rTERY ATy Laapiagy T puag
EE T XY EXEE E S B XL TS JAER S EE S X R ] AN xrw HEEN URLILOT 153044
P Eiiey LR WY rHEELE [EEN 3 IER Y X3 ER RS AEANE REEFSE FCE RN MYSARSLL Y 158]
X R E ) LY ¥ N »AEER FRPER yrEEy A EXPRE RREESN LER RN Ay ity 1583
EET N LE Y ¥ AR [N 1 raxn Ny rpny EE Y ) 2 F %P 205 URHT LBU FUBYLIOD 1 pueg
£ [] 5 t £ z 3 HE13AD
gapfc  "Es 2hE go%L T i3s g Lie3d 55
izziy g iz TifE &g g fefu i7
“f32% E3 iE 0 448 ap: = %237 "3
R i g3 R N £ 23" 4
F3e H i = 223 3 ¥3% i
- 3 - & 5% -

SIUDWISSASSe 1pne
|eUIaIXd JO S} NSaY "€ Xipuaddy




Band 1 Comhiairle nan Eilean Siar
Ea<t Ayrshire
East Renfrawshire
West bothian

Band 2 Aberdeen City

Aherdeenshirg
Angus

Curnfries & Gallaway
Mundes City

East Lothian
Edmburgh, City of
Fife

Glasgow iy
Highland

Moray

Ferth & Kinross
Rentrewshra
Scottish Borders
South Lanarkshirg
Stirfing

#and 3 Clackmarnanshire
Falkirk
tidlotiian
Marth Ayrshire
Marth Lanarkshire
Crkmey skands
South Ayrshire
Wast Dunbartonshire

Band 4 Argyll & Bute
Fast Durbartgnshire
Imvenclyde

thetland Islangs

scotland

Internal audit propeily
manages, contrals and
e Wk

*xkk
ar % dr Wk
LR 2 5 & 4

& %k Wk

LS 4
*a ok
w oy d kA
L
LA S &
LR & 04 J
LE & 544
LE & & b
o o ek
dr v de o
LA & A & |
EE 22 2
ko x A
LR 'R =
LEZ X 23

4 k&

LA X B3
ok k
Fkwhk
* ¥
=
whwRR
LE 24

kW R

-k
ik
wr

TExEW

L

) aurh| 1 atiequately

slafled and resowcad

LR R J
W w I w

LA

La 2.5
ok ko
LE.8. 13
*rhkhkw
LR & 8 1
LEL 2 4]
i v e
okek oW
ok ke
e
o
LR
-5
o
L ]

L1 4

*

LR 23
ER B
LR ]
* W
*

L X

thEw

LL3

ok

nwrw

Mumber of councils by assessment band, for each statemant

Band Assessment
1 LR kO

z L& R E

H ok

a4 PR

5 *

Totar number of councils

L}

32

10
F

14

10
4
1

3.

Page 117

Imiernal ALt s14f are suitably

traited ard devsloped

i
LER 8 84
ok oA
LR xS

o

LA &
LE.2 3
LA A B &3
LA 2 X
ok ok
LR ]
LA RS 8y
LEE L2
LR
*kokd ok
ok
LY
LT
Aok
Aok

LA &8 &

o ik
ke ok
ek
ke
i
o
&

*

LR
ik

e

o okok

ot

- m

32

reporting arrangaments that

ickithe rmaragement wailh an
amnion on the agequacy of

snierrual contrafs

-
L¥]

kW
LR R R
L L E R

LELER

ok Wk
ok Ew
ok
ke n
LA &
dr ik
LR R A B
LR L3
LR
LR
LR LR ]
L]
el e Ny
,wkk
E

wkk ok

LB
LR R
LE X &
LA X R
* %

L& 8]
Ve ok

wk R
wE®
rkw
LA g

L8

LA 8

12

10
10

37

Interrial audil follena up their

rECOMMENTENCNS 10 2MGLTE

aufien 13 taken

12
e ek
LE A
LA &

e e

*k
LA
-
e ok
o
-

ad ok
ok ok
L B3
LA
*h
*h A
ok
*
ok R

ok kR

LA A 8
LA
ar *
LR
LE A2
LA

LR

* &

L3

+wk

L a &

13

Y]

10

3z

perfarrmance manage ment
Framowork thal ansures
ConHnuAUs Fevizw ol its

performance

Internal audil has a

14
d e vk
rwkw
kW

ek wk

Jrk oW W
ey e e
ko
kW
xhok W
LR 2

* ok
*h oAk
kRN
ko
ko W
ke
e
ko
N

L

& &
* ek
L E &
*n
LA S &
* W
oWk

*w

* e

L]

3z

The chigt internal auditer

internal audit

L2 S X F )
ook koW W
ko k

Hhkk Ak

L]

W A Ak
LA S}
LE B R S
tdEw
& dr vk ke
& i bk
d o e o
&k oo
L B &

Stk ok
ok
L ¥ E Y
ar ok

LA R & 51

LA & J

LB 4

LEE & 8]
L& ]
LB 4

ik
arde W
drde W g

oo

Lk
o od ok i
A

ko

L8]

= R

A job worth doing

55



Page 118

Appendix 4. Council scores for
each of the 97 tests

The table shows, for each test, the number of councils scoring 1, 2, 3 or 4,
and the average compliance score across all 32 councils. Each test is
numbered sccording 1o its televant statement number.

Number of
Staterment councils scoring

v

reference Issues tested NoOON Oy

unol
afielany

a
o
El

=

1
3
A
]

i

Setting clear and properly focused objectives .

internal audit has agreed terms of reference.

1.1 The internal audit section has written 1erms of reference. z 7 5 18 74

1.2 The TOR have been agreed between the chief internal auditor, semor management 2z 7 g8 15 N
and councillors,

1.3 The TOR have regard to the CIPFA Cade of Praciice and guidance published by relevant 4 2 13 13 70
accountancy bodies.

1.4 The TOR frame objectives for internal audit that take account of the councits corporate 76 10 9 55
aims and cbjectives.

1.5 The TOR make clear that internal audit should not be a substitute for effective contret. 12 3 7 10 49

16 The TOR authorise internal audit's free access 1o all operations, information, recards, 1 1 5 25 80
assets and personnel across the council,

1.7 The TOR are reflected in the council's standing orders and financial regulations, 2 5 7 18 76

1.8 The comrunication arrangements between Members and the chief internal auditor 12 4 8 B8 46
are set out in the TOR or standing orders,

1.9 The TCR are communicated across the coundil in the form of a missian staiement or 7 7 8 10 655 .
charter.

1.10 The TOR have been reviewed since April 1996, e singe |goat government rearganisation. 4 3 5 20 7a

The respeciive roips of managament and mtemal sudit in mainianing rierna controls
are clearly defined ang cammunicated

2.1 danagement hzas defined control objectivas for ail major systerns (financial and non- 8 711 5 a8
financiall.

22 internal audit is consulted about significant proposed charges to internal control 1 8 15 & 65
systems.

23 The chief internal auditor provides an overall assessment for management of the 15 9 4 4 30
rabustness of internal cantral far the coundils main systems, based on the work done .
that year,

2.4 Internal audit reviews demonstrate 10 managers the strength of internal controls and 1 3 8 10 72
the levels of risk within their systems, -

25 The chief internal auditor reports 1o the responsibile finance officer the hasis for & 3 7 16 &R

demonstrating compliance with Section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973,

5g A, job worth doing



Page 119

Number of
councils scoring

Staternent ~ o
reference  Issues testad N QN Qv

Internal audst has a clear role in refation 1o fraud.

31 The council has an anti-fraud and corruption strategy. 4 7 5 16 &8

3.2, A framework for internal audit invelvemant in fraud investigation ang prosecution is 5 3 6 18 T2
set gewn in the anti-fraud and corruption strategy.

13 The council has a traud response plan. a & 7 1% 68

3.4, The fraud response plan cleariy seis out the roles and responsibilities of internal audit 3 & 716 T

and management and includes a protocol for informing the police.

35 The council has a ‘whisteblowing’ policy or confidential reporting procedure that has & 5 4 17 &7
been communicated to ali staff.

3.4 Where appropriate, fraud investigations lead to recornmendations (o help disclose 0 2 8 22 88
similar frauds and improve internal control,

3.7 The anti-fraud znd corruption strategy and fraud response plan have been reviewsd 6 4 3 19 70
since Aprii 1996,
Maintaining internal audit independence

Iternal augit has sutficient arganizational status to be abie 1o undertake s work
eifectivaly

4.1 The chief internal auditor has direct access 10 Members, the chief executive and seniar o 2 14 18 81
managers.
4.2 The chief internal auditor formaly discusses the work and performance of internal 3 3 5 2179

audit waith the chief executiveraudit committee or equivalent at least annually,

4.3 Internal audit determines its own prionties, based on risk assessment, in consulation 1 5 9 17 77
with management.

4.4 The chief internal auditor submits repeorts to the responsible finance officer under 585 2 6 3 21 73
or 1o a more sanigr manager in the coundl,

45 The level of seniority tmanagement ter) of the chief internal auditor within the o] 7 10 13 75
management structure helps it to fundion effectively and independently.

4.6 internal audit has unrestricted access 10 people, systems, decuments and property as 0 0 3 20 g7
it considers necessary for the proper fulfilment of s responsitilities.

4.7 The chief interna! auditar is free 1o report, without fear or favour, &g, the chief internal 0 2 10 20 85
audgitor has the right of final edit and issues reports in his o her own name.

internal audit s free of operational respansibilines that could compromize its independence.

%1 Internat audit is independent of any line-management 1ask and is seen 1o be indeperdent. 1 4 10 17 78

5.2 Whete internal audit provides advice and consultancy work, staff are clear when they o 2 10 20 8BS
are operating as auditors and when they are not

5.3 The chief internal auditor plans assignmants 1o minimise the possibility of staff conflics 1 4 9 18 79
of interest.

5.4 Whilst reparting to the responsible finance officer, the chief internal auditer has freedom 0 0o 13 19 86

of access 10 all members and officers, espeqaily the chief executive.

55 Staff with family or close friends within the council do not audit activities within their Q & 10 e 77
area of work.

A job worth deing 57



o8

Page 120

Number of
Statemnent touncils scoring
reference Issues tested NoOODN QY

~
o
E

=
=
3
an
L

Planning and controlling the wark of internal audit

Inrernal audit hases it work On 3 COMprensnsive fsk assessment

8.1 nternal audit bases its sk assessment on information from the autherity's zisk b 1 5 7 a4
management process and an agreed audit risk methodology.

62 mternal audit consults widely with management 1o Identify critical systems and risks. 1 B 1 11 70

6.3 Internal sudit has a comprehensive understanding of the authority's systems, structures 0 2 12 18 83
and cperations.

6.4 Internal audit uses 2 formal framework to assess risks. 8 6 3 15 59

6.5 Internal audit uses the risk assessment to prepare audit plans and priaritise its wark. 4 4 9 15 70

66 Internal audit reviews its risk assessment periodically, depending on the extent of change 2 & 12 & 5@

within the organisation.

finrernal audit aperstes within 3 Structured planning framework,

7.1 Internal audit plans fink back 1o the council's corporate aims and objectives and are co- 4 12 12 4 50
ordinated with other review programmes (eg, 8est Value reviews},

7.2 Audit plans are produced in consultation with senior managers across the organisation. 0] 5 720 82

7.3 imternal sudit has a strateqgic plan based on risk assessment, which sets out the audit 4 7 8 13 65
scope and gojectives

7.4 The strategic plan sets out the resources required to maet the audit needs of the council 1M 11 5 5 35
and identifies any mismatch betwesn resource needs and resource availability.

73 An annual audit plan is produced which transiates the strategic pian into audit 1 5 7 19 73
assignments 1o be undertaken during the year.

76 Project pians are set out for each audit assignment, which allocate resources, set out 3 g8 10 11 &4
the scope and objectives of the assignment znd estabfish target compietion dates.

1.7 - Audit plans are flexible enough to accommodate work that has arisen during the course c 4 W 12 632
of the plan without resulting in core risk areas not being reviewed.

78 Significant changes to audit plans are approved by senior management and the audit 5 4 9 14 &7
committee (or equivalent}.

79 The planning process takes account of the work undertaken by external audit ang 2 2 16 12 73
other review agencies and inspectorates.

7.10 Interral audit strategic plans zre reviewed to reflect the changed priorities of the council. 3 7012 10 a4

7.1 The agreed annual audit plan is only revised 0 exceptional cireumstances. 2 2 12 18 77

initarnal auait Ras effective relationships with CoURgd mernbers, councl! managers,
axfernal audht, inspectorares and other agendies

81 The timing of internal audit assignments is normally arranged with the management 0 2 1 19 84
concerned 1o minimise disruption.

B.2 There 15 2n ongeing dialogue between the internal auditor and dient service throughout 0 1T 10 21 88
the audit assignment.

8.3 External audit place reliance on the work of internal audit. 2 Q12 18 81

8.4 Internal audit and external audit reqularly exchange audit information, 1 8 13 10 &7

85 Internai audit effectively co-ordinates its work with external audit and other review 1 4 17 10 71
agencies

8A, tnternal audit mantains good working relatienzhips and channels of communication 4 65 8 13 &6

with elected members.

A job worth daing



Page 121

Number of
councils scoring

Statament ing
reference Issues testad NGO QY Y

a5ue| | duol

Inremmal @ucht propedly Manades, cenraads and recards [Ts veork

9.1 Internal audit has documented pelicies and procedures contained in an audit manyal. 3 5 7 17 73

9.2 The chiel internal auditor allocates staff to assignments according to their skills and 0 1 g 22 a&c
experience.

9.3 internal audit staff understand the objectives of their assignments and their responsibilities, 0 2013 17 82

9.4 Internat audit has a rigoraus apnroach to collecting snd managing evidence. 0 2 11 18 82

E Adequate working papers are prepared to support internal sudit findings, conclusions 0 5 12 15 77
and recormmendsations.

96 Internal audit work is documented at all levels from audit planning to reporting t 4 11 16 77

g.7. internal audit assignments are adequately supervised and revievved, 0 5 12 15 77

Resourcing the internal audit work programme
Internal auait is adequately staffed and resourced.

t0.1 The chief internal auditor is professionally qualified and has wide experience of internal 1 1 4 25 9
audit and its management.

0.7 The chief internal auditor has identified a staffing structure that enables internal audit 4 5 18 5 &g
1o meet its chjectives and the changing needs of the orgamisation.

102 Internal audit has adeguate rescurces 1o enable it to meet its waork objectives efficiently 4 8 20 0 5¢
and effectively.

10.4. Internal audit ermploys or has access to people with relevant skills and expenence in 2 & 21 3 =9
order to undertake the required tasks.

ILES Where required the chief internal auditor can “buy in' people for specialist work who & n 7 9 53
are suitably experienced and qualified.

106. Internal audit uses the latest technology for planning, audit werk and reporting 1 4 19 B 88

07 All audit staff have job descriptions and personnel specifications that reflect thair current 2 p 6 22 83
post.

Internal audit staft are swiraply trained and developed.

111, Aninduction programme has been prepared for all new audit staff. 4 9 1 9 58

1.2 Training is taifored to the needs of indwidual auditors and meiudes both theoretica 3 & 10 13 68
knowledge and #s practical application.

1.3 Internal auditors keep up-to-date with curremt developments in auditing and the issues G 4 12 156 79
facing the audited body.

11.4 All staff maintain competence through professional development. 1 6 11 14 73

115 The chief internal audtor co-ordinates and keeps under review the training and 1 9 2 14 7C

development requirements of internal audit staff.
Reporting and follow-up arrangements

Internal audrt Nas clear repoarting arrengemeants tnat provide managemaent with ar,
apinion o the adequacy of internal conteals.

12.° The chief internal auditor produces an annual report, which contzins a vievw on the 13 & 4 & 38
soundnass of the council’s internal contral system,

122 Internal audit has documented, systematic, pracedures in place for producing and i 6 5 18 78
clearing reporis.

12.3. Regorting arrargements, including timescales for drafting, finalisation and managemen 4 g 13 7 57
action have been agreed with management.

A job worth doing ta



Page 122

Numbey of

Statement councils scoring
refarence lssues tested N ONo gy ¥

124, Internal audit produces clear, concise, constructive written reports. a} 1 15 15 8%

125 Before issuing final reponts, internal audit discusses the contents with management, a 85 5 327 55
and miay submil a traft to confirm factual aceyracy,

12.6. Where internal audit and management disagree the relevance of the factual content, 0] o 5 37 g5
the chiel internal zuditor has the opporunity te refer to this in hisfher report.

fnternal audit follows-up recommendatians io ensve action fs taken.

13.1. Imternal awdit, agrees ‘SKAART' action plans, which identify persons responsible for 3 Z 9 18 77
implementation, with management to review progress of implementation by both
parues.

13.2. Imernat audit reports instances of failure to comply with action plans to the corporate 6 8 12 & &2
management team.

13.3. Where management do not implernent internal audit findings, it is clear that they accept a4 g8 15 5 55

the risk resulting from not taking action.

13.4. The resulis of follovs-up work by internal audit are used 10 update the comprehensive & 12 10 4 46
risk assessment,

135 Tha results of follow-up work by internal audit are used to inform updated audit plans. A & 13 9 61

Holding internal audit to account for its performance

Internal quait has  performance management framevwork that onsuras Continuous
reviely of 1ts performance

141 Internal audit is accountable to an audit committee or equivaient body. g 5 5 13 &6

14.2. Tha chief internal auditor prepares an annual plan that is presented to serior management 3 4 g 16 73
ard the audit committee (or its eguivalent

14.3. Internal audit has a documented system for evaluating the perforrmance of the unit as 3 7 1% 7 &89
a whole.

144 The chief internal auditor uses a set of indicators 10 measure the performance of internal 2 7 14 g g5
augt.

14.5. The chief internal auditor continuously maintains and develops the performance of 1 3 13 15 77
internal audit.

14.6. Internal audit is accredited under a national or international quality standard (eg, !IF, 16 4 7 5 34
EFQM, etz).
The chief inlermad auditor promotes and main@ams professional standsrds n mternal
AL

15.1. internal auditors possass knowledge of the council and its systems o a level commensurate 0 1 12 19 8%
with their rode in the unit.

19.2. Internal zuditors are impartial in discharging their responsibilities, 0 1 g 22 &G

15.3. Disciplinary procedures are invoked where a staff member contravenes the ethical 0 2 13 17 82

standards required by the accountancy bodies.

16.4. Internal audit maintains a current register of declarations of interest, and acceptance 5 & 12 9§ 5%
of hospitality.

&0 A jab worth deing



Page 123

Appendix 5. Client survey
findings

Cuestionnaires were provided to each council's head of service for
education, housing and social work. For each question, the table shows the
percentage of respondents who agreed or disagreed, and the average score. A
tatal of 86 responses were received from a potential maximum of 96
questionnaires (90% response rate).

-100% d

&2

100%

I have been tiven adeguate: @ Strongly disagree
infarmation on tne role #nd
purpese of internal awar " Jend to disagree

O Tend to agree

The mainsgle of internal audit is

te detect fraud ard iregulaicy @ Strongly agree

| amn satisfied that internal augi]
is independent

Internal audit should be
atcountable o a grouo of elected
* members

Internal audit should be
accourtahbile to an indepen dent
aroup of offers

Intermal Zudit should be
accountable 10 30 indepen dent

Jont grour of officers apd
. Memoers

I am ecnsulted by ingernal audit or.
the key msks and coticat syssems
I Yy anes

| 2 geeen an cppoctunity o
COMIMENt an mternal audits
strategic and annual wark plans

i have an opportumity {0 prougde
input te the planning of nternat
Anwlit ik

| em kepturformed where planned
internal audit wor n my service is
deyed or deferred unt a !;ater
ate

I'was greg m adeguate notification
of the szart of the audit wore

Py department would benetn
iraf more internat audit wark

O o

A job worth deing &1



62

Page 124

Client survey findings, continued.

-100%

The audit addressed key
Management ContolL. systems
ard risks

 Imternal audit w3t on the
assignmiant were krowledgeahble
dbout my operatians

Thera was no disruption to my
vrerrkplace during the augit

Internal audit staff operated in 5
professional manner

The auds firdings were
adeguately supaorted by svidence

Recommendations made in the
audrt were clear, constructive
and relevant

| wsuslly agrae with aeiit
reconimendations

fntarnal audit folicw up their
recommendations to ensue
agreed aCwon taken

Iternal audit staff
cormmunicaled key 15sues ang
audit findings 1o me 2= they
argse during thesr work - there
WETE NG maar SUTPAses in iner
draft reports

The elapsed time from inal
drafticg to ssuing the final
repOrt was approprate for the
audit work done

The final audit report was timely
In cxmparisen ta the end af the
fieldwork

The auht work was warthwhite
and addad valua 1o the work of
Iy department

A job worth doing

100%

i1

N
|
_

| I

® Strengly disagree
7+ Tend 1o disagree
Q) Tend to agree

@ Strongly agree



Page 125

Appendix 6. The views of chief
executives and directors of
finance

There were 30 responses from chief executives {(94% response} and 31
respenses from directors of finance (97% response).

<50% 0% S0% 100%

Annual sterral audit plans are based an an C ® Stongly disagree
analysis of 1he rigks 10 which the council is

e L et

 Tend to agree

& Strongly agree

The wark of internatl audit adequately aggresses
e key management controls, systermns and tr
risks

Internal audit operates 1o standards as set out

in the CIPFA Lode of practice for intgrnal audst o
n local goverament

Internal audit produces gooad guality work s}

Internal audit has the rasgurces, ckifls and
expernience o undertake the work the coundl B

. requIres

C

Internat audic always completes its priarity D
wherk warthin planned dimescales

C
Imternal audit repont reromrmendations are
clear, constructive, and relevant

M

C

Intgrnal audct follows-ugr i3 recommendations D
10 ensure agreed actian taken

- C
The work of internal audit i suged to
adeguate nazpendent Corporate scrutin

(eq, by audit committe2 ar egquivalent D

C = Chief executive D = Director of finance

Lk

A job worth doing =]



B4

A jab worth doing

Page 126

‘Auditing Practices Board Auditing Guidelines’.
Section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973,

Internal contrel — The whole system of controls, financial and otherwise,
established to provide reasonable assurance of effective and efficient
opetrations, reliable finandal information and reporting and compliance
with laws and regulations.

Develepments in the private sector that have had a significant impact on
how an internal audit fusiction should operate include:

1992 — “The report on the Commitiee of Financial Aspects of Corporate
Governance” {the Cadbury report) defines corporate governance as “the
systemn by which organisations are directed and controlied”. Cadbury
suggested three important principles: openness, integriry, and
accountability.

1994 — The Rutterman working group published its guidance: ‘Internal
Control and Financial Repsrting: Guidance for Directors of Listed
Companies Registered i the UK

1995 — The Greenbury Committee provided recommendations on good
practice in determining directors’ pay.

1995 — The Hampel Comunittee produced a ‘Combrined Code’ for stock
exchange listed companies embracing the Cadbury Committee guidance,
the Greenbury Committee, and its own work. .

1999 — The Turnbull Committee repart ‘Intersal Contrel: Guidance for
Directors on the Combined Code’ has provided guidance on how the
Combined Code should be implemented.

The Leadership Advisory Panel (LAP), chaired by Alastair McNish was set
up as a result of the recommendations contained in the McIntosh report,
which required all councils to consider whether their policy development
and decision-making processes were fit for the 21st century in terms of
openness, iransparency and accountability. The LAP reparted to
Ministers in fune 2001 on the outcome of the self-reviews of policy
development and decision-making processes carried out by the 32
councils. It provides assessments on the approach taken by each council
in conducting its review and how well the new arrangernents meel the
MclIntosh recommendations.

‘Corporaie Governance in the Public Sector’ published jointly by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy{ CIPFA) and the
Society of Local Authority Chief Executives{SOLACE], June 2001.



Page 127

‘Tmplications for Audit of the Modernising Gevernment Agenda’, Public
Audit Forum, April 1999, ‘Audit Fmplications of Electronic Service Dielivery
1n the Public Sector, Public Audit Forum, April 2001,

Public Audit Forum — Forum established by the four national audit
agencies,

‘Code aof Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United
Kingdom’, CIPFA, October 2000.

See note 1.

Aggrepate council revenue expenditure — estimated total net revenue
expenditure plus housing revenue account income, CIPFA Rating Review,
19959/2000.

Systems-based audit involves the anditor documenting the systems being
examined, and identifying the controls within that system. Once this has
been dane, the centrols are then evaluated to decide whether they are
adequate and sufficient. The auditor, as well as confirming the existence
of suitable controls, may also highlight expected controls (ie, controls
that normally would be present in such a system, but ars missing}). The
controls are then tested 1o ensure that they are working preperly.
Regulariiy relates to the consistent application of proper and appropriate
public sector regulations and practice.

Fraud — the intentional distortion of financial statements and accounting
recards and/or misappropriation of assets involving deception.

Corruption — the offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an
inducement or reward that may influence the actions taken by the
audited body, its members or officers,

Control self-assessment (CSA) — places the onus on managers to assess
how the controls for which they are responsible address relevant business
risks. CSA nses 2 questionnaire or workshop approach.

A job worth doing

&%



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129 Agenda Item 10

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 8§ NOVEMBER 2001

AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2000/2001
MEMBERS’ LETTER, AUDIT CERTIFICATE AND CERTIFIED ACCOUNTS

1 SUMMARY

In accordance with the legislation, the Certified Accounts, Audit Certificate and the
External Auditors’ Letter to Members were submitted to the Council meeting on 1
November 2001, Copies are attached to this report.

The external auditors have issued a clear audit certificate and all DLO/DSO operations
achieved the financial objective of at least break even.

The completion of the audit of accounts for the year 2000/2001 within the timescale set
by Audit Scotland means that the Council continues to be completely up-to-date in
completion and audit of accounts.

An Action Plan is included as Appendix 1 of the auditors Final Report to Members. It
1s important that agreed actiens are completed timeously and internat audit should
moenitor and report to the Audit Committee on compliance with the Action Plan.

2. RECOMMENDATION

Internal audit monitor adherence to the Action Plan and submit a report to the Audit
Coemmittee during the course of the year 2002.

Stewart McGregor
Director of Finance
9 October 2001

repons/Enovaudicommrevbudmon200 1 2002smg



Page 130



ATgyl Page 131
%ﬁte 2000 - 2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
COUNCIL 131

ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD

1 APRIL 2000 TO 31 MARCH 2001

10N
Varsion 2



T4 4ui-zun ANNUAL Accounts Page 132
SBute  ooyrents

COUNCIL 132

Page
FOREWORD BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 2-4
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 5
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICES §-7
CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT 8
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT g-12
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 13
SUMMARY DLO/DSOQ REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT 14
COUNCIL TAX INCONE ACCOUNT 1516
NON-DOMESTIC RATE IKCOME ACCOUNT 17
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET : 18
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 19-23
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON RESERVES 24
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT %
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT %
AUDIT CERTIFICATE 77

Pags1



é}_BUJ - LU LUUT ANNUAL AULUUN] & Page 133
eBUIE  coRewoRD BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE for the year ended 3t March 2001

Intraduction
This foreword is intended as 8 comment on ARyd and Bule Councif's financial position as presentad within the Statement of Accounts for the
financial year 2000/2007.

Statement of Responsibilites
This. siatement sets out the main finaneial responsibifities of the Councst and the Director of Finance.

Accounting Policies

The Statement of Acsounting Palicies sats oul the basis upon which the Financia! Statements have been prepared, and expiains the
accourting treatment of both general and spesific items.

Tha Financial Statemeants

Consolidetad Reverive Account

shows the income raed by the Council during the year ant: how it was spent on services, finandng costs and coniibuUtions tofrom reserves.
A comparison fo budget is also mads in this staiement. The surplus o deficit is camied o the Statement of Total Movement on Resarves.
The nates to the Consolidated Revenue Account provide addifional information en some costs and income intluded whin the Consolidated
Revenug Account.

Hausing Revenue Account

reflects the stabutory requirement to separately account for local authority housing provision, as defined in the Housing (Scotiand) Act 1987 It
shows the major elemants of housing revenue expendityre and capital firvancing costs, and how these are met by fents, ousing support grant
and other income. The surpius or deficit & camed to the Statement of Total Movement in Reserves.

Summary DLO/DSD Revenue and Appropriation Accourd

gives the summarised financial auttum for each DLO/DSO for the financial year. it also shows how the overall surplus or defictt is dealt with.
A note to the statement indicates whather the DLODSC's have achieved their stabutory financial objective. Tne overall DLODSO positon is
camied 1o the Consolidaled Revenue Accaunt and Statement of Total Movemant on Reserves.

Countil Tax Income Account
explains how the councit tax income shown for the financial vear in the Consolidated Revenue Accouni s made up.

Non-domestic Rale Income Account
shorws the puild up of non-domests: rate income, the conribution Yo or from the naional pool and the resuibng et income for he financial year
to the Council which s shawn in the Consalidated Revanve Acoount.

Consoiinated Balance Sheet

brings together all the assets and kabilifies of the Councif's General Fund, Divect Labour and Direct Senvice Crganisations and Loans Fund.
i the statement of the rescurces of the Ctamcil and the means by which they have been financed. it is also a report on the Council's financial
positicn at one particular point in time, a snapshot of its fnancial affairs at the cioge of the year expressed in accounting temms. The notes to
the Batance Sheet give further informagion on the make up of ceram assets and liabilitias.

Statement of Total Movement in Resenves
gives details of the batances on each reverve at the start of the financial year, tnovements during the financial year by source and the balange
at the end of the financial year as shown in the Bzlance Sheet.

Consolidated Cash Flow Stelement
summatises the inflows and putfiows of cash anising rom the pansachons with thind paries on both day o day revenue iensactions ang
expendiiure on capital sctivities, ’

Major Changes in Ascounting Practice

The Councii tsmtinues ¥ adopl the accouning practices moommentded by the Chartered Institute of Public Finanoe and Accountancy (GIPFA)
ang the Local Authoriies (Seotiand) Accoumts Advisory Commitiee (LA{S)AAC). In accordance with best accounting practice the defamed
charge balance s at 31 March 2000 has been written out of the balance sheat to the Capital Financing Reserve. Defermed charges arising
during the year have bean charged in full to the relevant setvios tepartmant's revenue atcount. The budged fgures have been adjusted iy ad
comparison.

Further more fo comply with the 2000 Statsment of Recommende Practice (SORF) depreciation has been charged on al opérational
buitdings, apain the budget figures have been adjusted to aid comparison,

During 2000/2001 the Council camied out @ review of its approach to allocating central support service costs. The oulcome is an intreass in
the ransparency, dirity and robustness of thesa aliocations. This has rasulted in a number of changes in the allacations to individual services
with the budgat being adjuseed for comparison. The moSt notabke adiusiment being a mduction in allocations th the Housing Revene
Accgunt of E0.T71m, Excapt for the Housing Revenue Account budgets have baen adiusted ko aid comparison.

Page 2



A 2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
?OUHCE FOREWORD BY THE DIRECTOR B FINANCE for the year endsd 31 March 2001
Froperty Valustions

It is tha infention of Asgyli and Bute Council that il kand and property inhenited from the formnar District and Regianal Councits be revalued
through a rofiing programms o revaluation, This programme was staried durng 199472000 with all propecties of the: fartter Angyll snd Bute
District Coundil being valued togather with aff otiter properfies which had a vatuation as at 1 April 1999 greater than £1m.  This programme of
revaluation continuad during 2000/ with th revaluation f all Prmary Schools and 84 of the non-operational buildings.

Council dwellings ware revalued at the 315t March 2001.

Assat Impainment

In comgliance with Finencia! Renorting Standard 11, Impairmeat of Fixed Assets and Goodwil, the Council has reviewad the valuations of its
azsats &t 31 March 2001 to sssess any reduction in esset valuations. Arising from these impainment reviews the Countl has reduced the
valuation of Hermitage Academy and Campbeltown Swimming Pool by £6m and £0.5m respectively. Thess reductions ane rekected in the
actual expenditure of Edacation and Dewslopmant and Environmaat Services for the year,

Consolidsted Revenus Account

The peneral fungd batance ot 31 March 2001 amounded o £0.085m. This is an increase of £0.072m on the budget balance of £0.013m.
However it should be nobed the Council has forwesd commitments of £0.468m 4o be funded from this in raspect of specific projects related o
the intenm sward of the Special islands Needs Allowance [SINA).

Tha general fund balanca of £0.085m can be analysad as fodows:

£m £m
Budgeted utiisation of pessrves {0.351)
Transfer from HRA to Genaral Fund 0.364
Burlgetad wolking Dalarnte 0.013
Surpius brought forward from 1933/2000 0332
Supplementary estimate re faasibirty study in Education capital funding {0.110)
ncreasad Income :
Savings in loan charges 0.800
Increass in council tax and community charge
collacfion 0.150
Confribution by DLODS0 0389
Underspend on projects funded from interim
SINA oward 0458
Otivar . 0.039
148
Incressed axpendihim
Education (1. 164}
Transportation and Property Senvices {0.528)
Foot and Mouth precautiongary measures {0.132)
Reduction in Central Support Allccation 1o 0.171)
HRA
(4.950)
©.150)
General Fund baiance 31 March 2001 B.085

Durng the yesr the Coundil took precauionary measures with regard to the nationa! foot &nd mouth outbresks. The smount of expencisre
incymed during 200072001 was £0.132m. This cost was met by the Devalopment and Environment Services and hias been inciuded in the
toral expenditure chargeabla against Soction 83 of tha Lecal Govemment {Soodand) Act 1973,

The income and sxpanditure of the Education sevice reflects Kidifional ceatral govemment grant funding of £1.2m allocated to schools which
has been spent on additonol staffing and schoal suppiss. This inctine ant sxpenditurs was additional to budge:.

Tha major reasons for increases m Educabion sxpandiiyre include cleening and catering costs, pupd transpert and bsaching staff costs. The
contributing taciors within Transportation and Property Services include addifional cowts relaiad to winter maintanance of roads, unbudgeted
Staff costs and reduced income levels

DLODSO's

During 2000/2001 the Ceuncifs DLO/DSO's achieved a suplus of E0.339m, Tha surpius has basn taken as a contribulion £ the Genersl |

Fund. Al DLOMSO's med their statutory finencia! abjaciive. In & pericd of financial consteints this is & welcome outcome and reflects
posilively upon the Council's management of direct servicas.
Housing Ravenue Acctunt

The baiance on the HRA resarve stands ot £1.573m &t 31 March 2001. This comparss to & budgeled batanoa of £1.81/m. The main fackors
giving nse o the reduction of £0.238m in the reserve am ax follows:

Fage3



Page 135

A 2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

SBULe  £oRewORD BY THE DIRECTORK® FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2001
Heusing Revante Account [Continyed) Em
Savings in capital Bnancing casts and inwerast 0578
increasa in olher Ntome 1305
Reduction in cantral support service allocation . 011
increasad incoma 0.65
Additional expenciture on repairs end maintsnance (0.518}
Void house rents sad provision for bad debis (0255}
Other movements {0.075)
increased Expandiiure . T}
Reduction in HRA Ressrvs 10.238)
Budgeted contributions of £0.7m to supplement the capital expsnditure projiamme and a ransfer to the general fund of £0,364m ware made.
Capital Expenditure

The Council incurs capital expundiiure within Bimits taid down by ihe Scotiish Execulive wha issue consants under Sacion 84 of tha Local
Government (Scotiand) Act 1973, Capital raceipts (from the sake of buddings, iand, elz.) and privats sector contributipns. ane used to anhanss
these consents, sybject to certain Scottish Executive restrictions placed on the use of recegls. Details of capital expanditure are as foliows;

Composiie Programme Housing Revenue Accoumt

Em £m

Net Alocation 10.882 1.678
Lsabla Capital Racepis 1.282 0800
Capital Finasnced from Curent Revenue 0.1 0.700
Groas Consant 12298 3475
Capital L] 12.837 1175
Excess Expandibore 0529 -

The excess expanditime on the composite programme, which was planned, is within taterance limits allowed and will e elfset agoinst te
conseni avaiable in 200172002, Contsning expenditure within the iolerarce imit demonsiretes sffactve managemaent of the substanbal
capital invastment progtammes and the confinuing pressure upon thesa programmes. The composite programime indudes 8l services obher
than Police, Fre and the Houning Revenus Ascoutt Joint Boartis control capital axpanditure on Polics and Fire and e reported separately
thereon. The Housing Revenue Account covers capital axpendiure on the Councils siack of houses. The composite programme inclutes
addiional consent in nelation 1o the redevelopment of Port Askaky Harbour which the Councl secured in competiion, secaring much needad
addgitional invesiment in the Council ansa,

Other Significant Matters

The Council has baen. active in progressing a range of inftiatives which aithough not divactly afisciing the Anancial pasition for de 2100/2001
financiel year are worthy of menbon in order to gain a full understandey; of the Councl's businass,

Crver the st 2 years the Council has besn developing a public private parinership o secure the necessary capital investment to maet the
Countil's iong term wasts disposal neads. The conitact was signed during September 2001,

The Coungil secursd funding under the: new housing perinerships programme. This funding has bean wwhlised to carry out an options appraisal
siudy for large- scale voluntary transfer of the housing stock. The options appratsal is well uncerway snd the outcome of this will be considensd
over tha next year,

in common with oiter Counclls a significant mvestment in school buildings is required. The Council has adopted & preactive approach ta tis
and alloceted funding during 2000/2001 kor & faasibility study b0 inveshgate how thés investmant might be achioved. To supplsment this the
Countil sacured £0.200m of Seotfish Exacutive fnding to develop an outine business case for its sducetion capiial investment proposals.
“This sxeccisa is now underemy.

Contiusion

The Gouncil ends the year with 2 small ganans fund sumius. However this is commitiac o projects. siready undefway. Improvemants in
coundit tax collection, zavings in loan charges, effeclive manapament of D) (/DSOS snd contaimment of expanditzse in most deparkmants has
offse! 1he over axpanditure on Education and Transportation and Propeny Sarvices. There is & small reduction in the HRA, raserve. In oversl
tamns the Council has achisved its objectives in fuly ubising capital consernts,

The Council wit continue to pursue ifiatives t secure addtions! funding. Budgetary control wil be scrutinisad to improve Fnancial control

within Education and Transportation and Propesly Sarvices.
Stewart McGregor
Mf’vd( Direcinr of Finance

20 Beptember, 2001

Paged



AVYUSLUU T AN AL Al LWUN S Page 136 .

&RBite
Ny STATEMENT OF RESPOMSIBILITIEf:fgﬁ THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

THE AUTHORITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES
The Authority is required:

1, to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affais and to secure that one of its officers has the
respansibility for the administralion of those affairs. In this autharity, that officer is the Director of Finance.,

2 lo manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safequard its assets.

THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the autharity's statement of accounts, which in terms of the CIPFA/LA{SJAAC Code
of Practice on Lecal Authority Accouniing in Great Britain ("The Code of Practice"), is required {o prasent fairly, the financial positicn of the
autharity as at 31 March 2001 and ils income and expenditure for the year ended on that date.

in preparing this statement of accounts, the Director of Finanoe has:
1. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistenly;
2z made judgements ang estimates that were reasonable and prudant;
3 sornpied with "The Code of Practice”.
The Director of Finance has also:
1. kept proper accounting records which were up 1o date;
2. taken reasorable sieps for the prevention and datection of fraud and other imeguiarities.

Page 5



4 maisy y aa Z000-2001 ANNUAL AGCOUNTS Page 137

wBUIC  STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING PQLICIES for the year snded 31 March 2001

The Accounts have been prepared in eccordance with the Code of Practice for the publication of Financial Information. Due regard has been
given to the Statements of Recommended Practice and Accouning Standards 33 they apply to Local Authorities in Greal Britain.

1.

REVENUE ACCOUNTS .
Revenue fransactions have been recorded on an income and expenditure basis, actual or estmated sums having been included in
respect of known debtars and creditors at the year end.

Customer and client receipts in the form of sales, fess, charges and rents have been accrued i the period 1o which they relate.
Emplovee costs have been charged to the period within which the employees worked,

Interest payabie on extemal borrowing and intemal nterest has been accrued in the perind o which it refates on the basis of the overall
economic effect of the borfowing.

The cost of supplies and services has been accounted 107 in the period during which they were received or consumed.

All revenye grants are matched with the expenditure lo which they retate. Grants made 1o finance the general activities of a local
authority or to compensate for loas of income are credited to the revenue account of the finangial year to which they reiate. Specific
government grants are accounted for on an accruals basis when the condibions for receipt have been complied with.

OVERHEADS

The cost of all Central Support Departments are fully aliocated over user departments. Allocations have been based on actual or
estimated activity ievels, time and floor area.

PENSIONS
The cost of providing pensipns for employees is charged to the revenue account in accordance with the statulory requirements
goveming the particular pension schemes o which the Coundil contributes,

The accounting treatment followed by the Coundil is not in acoordance with the Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24
(SSAP24), "Accourting for Pension Costs®, which requires that the pension costs should be charged to revenue in sush a manner as to
provide @ substantialiy level charge for current and future pension costs. 1t is not considered appropriate to reflect non-cash items of
this nature in the accounts of the Councll and, therefore, the charge for the year represents anly the actual contributions paid.

The employer's contributions to the scheme are assessed every three years by 8 consulting aciuary and are caicuiated to ensure the
actuarial solvency of the fund. The cost of pensicns to the Council, reflected in the financial statements, is the actual contribution paid
in the year as detenmined by the acluary.

CAPITAL ACCOUNTING

Accounting Policy Staterment

The actounts have been drawn up in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authoety Accounting in Great Britain, which is
recognised by stalute as reprasenting proper accounting practices. in Scotiand the status of the 1893 Code is derved from the Scoftish
Office Circular 51985 2nd not from a statutory source. Services have been charged ior the assets based on {heir vaiue rather than on
the financing costs of delrt outstanding on the asset.

Fixed Assets
All expenditure on the acquisition, creaticn or enhancerment of fixed assets has been capitalised on an accruals basis.

Dispogal of Fixed Assels
Tie receipts arising from the disposal of fixed assets have been dealt with on an accruals basis. Those of a capital nature are cregited
to the Capital Financing Reserve.

Depreciation
This policy compiies with the requirements of tha 2000 SORP which incorporated the introduction of Financial Reporting Standard 15
(FRS15), "Tangible Fixed Assets”.

Operationd Buikiings — Cther - 20-50 years
Operaiiona Buildings - Council Dwellings - 30 years
infrastructure and Defered Govemment Grants theraon - 40 years
Vehicles - 4 -20years
Piant and Equipment - 3-10years
Vessdls - 25 years

Page b



LUMVEEUY | MMIUAL AL D Page 138

COUNCIL

R |
GBUE  grATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES for the year anded 31 March 2001

10.

11

12.

13.

14

DEFERRED CHARGES

Deferrad charges are items that have been charged to the capital account of the authority, but which do nat result in the acquisition of a
tangibie asset for the authority. On the 31 March 2000 these were valued al £43.561m, £34.785m of which was for Argyll and Bute
Council investing in private sector housing stock by way of repair, improvement and disablement grants. On 31 March 2001, in line with
best accounting practice, these are now showt 10 have no value 25 Argyl and Bute Councit denves no beneficial ownership of such
investrnant.

Deterred charges arising during the financial year have bean writlen out immediately with service revenue accounts being charged on
the basis af the henefit that the service receives as a result of the expenditure. Adjustments have been made through the contribution to
the Capital Financing Reserve so that there is no net impact on the amount lo be met from government grants and local taxation.

STOLK & WORK IN PROGRESS

Stock has bean valued at the lower of cost and net realisabla value.

Work in progress is refiected in the Revenue Accounts and Balance Sheets of the appropriate trading activities at cost plus, where
appropriate, 3 praportion of overheads together with atirbutable profis 2nd aliowances for future losses.

PROVISION FOR SAD AND DOUATFUL DEBT
Due account has been taken of the lkelihood of the collection of cutsianding debt, induding loca! tax collection, and, where appropriate,
debtor balances have been redured 1o reflect this.

INSURANCE FUND
An insurance fund has been established in accordance with the Local Government (Scottand) Act 1994,

RESERVE FUNDS

& Repairs and Renawals Fund has been established in accordance with the Local Goevemment {Scotiand) Act 1975. Reserve Funds
for the Direct Labour and Direct Servite Organisations have been estabfished in accordance with the relevant CIPFA Code of Practice.
A Capital Fund has also been established within the Direct Labour Organisation,

LEASING
Al curent ieases are classified as “operafing leases’ as defined by Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 21 {SSAP 29),
*Accaunting for Leases and Mire Purchase Contracts”. The annusl rentals are charged to the appropriate Revenue Accourt,

AESETS FINANCED 8Y COVENANT SCHEMES

The accounting treatment of assets financed under Covenant Schemes is in accordance with Section 4.1 of Guidance Note 1 -
Covenant Schemes Accounting Treatment and Disclosures - issued by the Local Awtherity (Scotiand) Accounts Advisory Committes
(LAISIAAC). The Council's indebtedness is recoted as a Deferred Covenant Liability in the Consolidaied Balance Shest. The asseis
have been vatued in accordance with Note 4 above.

LDANS FUND

In actordance with the Locat Government [Scotland) Act 1975 Schedule 3 (12), the Council administers a Loans Fend. Alf loans raised
by the Council are paid into the fund and are pooled, Intérest and expenses of the Loans Fund hawe been calculated and allocated o
the revenue account on the basis of dett cutstanding on eath account at the start of te financial year with a pro-rata adjustment in
respect of new advances. Redemption of debt has been calculated and provided for in the Revenue Account on an anhwity basis.
intarest on revenus balances is allocated on the basis of monthiy balances hefd on the respective accounts,

DIRECT LABOUR AND DIRECT SERVICE ORGANISATIONS

Accounts for the Direct Labour and Direct Service Organisations are included in summary format in this document. A detailed set of
accounts as required by statule are available on request from Council Headquarters. The Gonsolidated Revenue Account and Balance
Shee! include entries from these as appropriate,

MAJOR CHANGES iN ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In accordance with best accounting praciice the deferred eharge balance as at 31 March 2000 has been written out of the balance
sheet {o the Capial Financing Reserve. Deferred chares arising during the year have baen charged in fulf 1o the relevant service
depariment's revenue account. The budget figures have been adjusted tn aid comparison,

Further more to comply with the 2000 Staterent of Recommended Practice (SORF} depreciaiion has been charged on all operational
buildings, again the budget figures have been adjusted to aid comparison.

During 20002001 the Council carried out a review of its approach to allocating central suppor service costs. The ouicome is an
increase in the fransparency, clarity and robusiness of these allocations. This has resultad in a number of changes in the allocations to
indtvidual services with the budget being adiusted for comparisen.

Paga7



+ 228,740 LWULUUT ANNUAL AGGUUNI S Page 139

%ou}ig{? CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACGOT%UM the year ended 31 March 2001

1499100 20001
Actval Actual Actual Actual Budget
Nat Groge Gross Nat Het
Expenditure Expenditure income  Expenditure  Expendture
£'000 Noie E'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Council Services
56,292  Education 76,19 8,754 67,265 58,690
17,022 Development and Envitanment Service 24734 £.065 18,725 18148
20484  Social Work and Housing Service 45,076 18813 26,263 25462
1,106  Housing Revenue Account 14,518 14,135 383 17
19808  Roads and Transponafion Service 33,430 18,457 19,973 19,551
1817 Central Senvices {o the Public 3,005 1,190 1815 2172
2262  Corporate and Democratic Core 3378 87 3,282 T
11,278 Joint Boards 1 11,466 - 11,468 11,191
130,160  Net Cost of Services 26,687 67,505 149,182 138,556
130,199 Net Operating Expenditure 150,012 138,258
(1,196)  Surplusideficit) transfered toffrom HRA Baiancas (383 (17}
(54]  Confribution from Funds and Earmarked Reserves (757 (757)
6281  Contributions toiffrom) Capital Financing Reserve 3 {9,614) 461
(260} Contribution from DLOMSO (389 -
135,020 Amount to be met from Government Grants and Local Taxpayers 133,869 137,945
30852  Council Tax 32884 32,877
76,818 Revenue Suppart Grant 75,852 7531
25472 Non-domestic Rates 2.2 221
314 Communiy Charge and Oid Rales 191 125
{1.764)  (Deficit) | Surplus for Year : ' 611} {351)
Transfer from HRA Reserves 364
2,098 General Fund Swiplus Brought Forward 3%
332 General Fund Surplus Carried Forward ' 85

Durng the year the valuations of Hermitage Academy and Campbeitown Swimming Pool were revised down to reflect a pesmanant impaimment in
value. This amounted to an additional charge of E6.071m being made to the Education service account and £0.511m being maoe to the
Development and Environment service acomnt,

The budget net expenditure per the Consolidated Revenue Account has been revised to refiect charges for depreciafion on operaiion buildings
{£3,923,000} and the wiite-off of deferred charges (£3,341,000) not initiafly budgeled, the approval fo finance items of expenditure from Funds
and Earmarked Reserves (£757,000). The budget has also been adjusted to reflect the revised allocation of central support costs. This has no
overall affect on the net cost of services.

Page B



AXGYIlL 2002001 annuaL accounts - age 140

$Biite

COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVNUE ACCOUNT

1. Joint Boards

This account shows paymenits to the Palice, Fire, Passenger Transport and Valuatien Joint Boards and to tne Authorities Buying Consortium.

1999/2000
£1000

22

6,481

3512

1,006

18

T 1121

2. Assef Management Revenue Account

2000/01

£000
Strathelyde Passenger Transport 352
Suathelyde Police Joint Beard BALS
Strathclyde Fire Joint Board J.841
Dunbartonshire and Argyl & Bule Valuation Joint Board 1,038
Autthorifres Buying Congortium ]
Total Joint Boards 11,466

This acegunt shows the (deficit)/surplus ariging from the capital charges made to the service accounts for the use of assels and the cost to the

Council of financing hese assels.

1956/2000
£000

4,056

17,378
(21,526)

(469)

EL

200001

£'000

Charge for Depreciation/Impaimment 16.562
Exiernal Interest Payable 17,821
Cagital Charges (33,185}
Release of Govemment Grant {485)
Net Expenditure / { Income) 83

. Contributions te Capital Financing Reserve

This shows the amount of revenue resources used to finance capital expenditure during the year and the repayment of the principal instalment

from the Loans Fund, offset by depreciationfimpairment changes (net of Govemment Grants credit) and the amount of deferred charges writlen off

to revenue.

199872000
£'000

643

9,205
{4,058)

489
§,261

4. Operafing Leaze Rentals Paid

200041

£000

Capital Financed from Current Revenue - General Fund 134
Principal Lozns Fund Instalment 9,667
Depreciation//mpaimment {16,562)
Deferred Charges Wiitten off 1o Revenue {3,341}
Release of Government Grani 458
Total Contribution to Capital Financing Reserve {9,614)

The Councdl uses land, buildings, vehicles, ptant and equipment financed under the terms of an aperaling lease. The amount paid under these

arangements in 2000/01 are as follows:

199912000

200011
£'000 £000
113 tand and Buildings 68
521 Vehicles 887
558 Piani and Equipment S
1,192 Total 1,350
In respect of vehicles the Councii recovered £0.121m of leased car costs from its employees during 2000001
The Gouncit is committed 1o making payments of £1,148,000 under operating leases in 2001/2002. These cen be analysed as follows:
£000
Leases expiring in 2001/02 109
Leases expiring between 2002/2003 and 2006/2006 s
Leases expiring after 2005/2006 onwards 512
Total

Page &



AXGYIL  2000.2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 141

<Bute
NG NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REMENUE ACCOUNT

5. Local Government Aet 1373, Section 83 Expenditure

The Council's expenditure under this statute, which is for the benefit of local residents, is limited to the product of £3.80 and the population of the
Council's area. For 2000001 that limil was £0.337m with expendiure of £0.324m being incurrred and included within service expenditure. This
expenditure covered the cost of Leisure Management Grants, Joint Twinning and the precautionary rmeasures faken with regards fo the national
outbreak of foot and mouth disease,

6. Local Government Act 1986 « Separate Publicity Account

The Council is required under Section 5 of the Act to maintain a separate account for publicity. Expenditure of £0.404m was incured during
200001 and is included within service expenditure as follows: ‘

1999/2000 2000101
000 £'000

181 Stalf advertising 172

16 Leaflets and publications 21

60 Statutory notices B4

155 Other 147

412 Total 404

7. Agency Income

The Council has an agency agreement with Scottish Homes whereby the Council coflects rants on their behalf and amanges for mainienance work
to be carried out on their housing stock. In addition the Council has an agency agreement with the West of Scotiand Water Awthority fo collest
water and sewerage rales.

1939/2000 200001
£000 £000

1 Scoftish Homes - collection of rents 1

3 Scotlish Homes - repair of hauses 1

161 West of Scotland Water Authority 181

185 163

. Agency Expendilure -

165 : 183

8. Local Authorities {Goods and Services) Act 1970

The Council is empowered by this Acd to provide goods and services to other public bodies. Income from these services amourted to £4.624m
and the related expenditure was £4.582m. The goods and services provided were as foliows:

ncome Expenditure

£'000 £000

Joint Finance and Resource Transfer 1,658 1,658
North Lanarkshire Council - Cleaning Outdoor Centre 2 66
Trunk Rpad Maintenance 2445 2426
Education - Proviston of Special Needs 203 196
Strathelyde Palice 106 2!
Strathclyde Fire Brigada 127 125
Scottish Homes 6 5§
Kirkcara 5 4
4,624 4,582

Page 10



AYZYI  2000.2001 ANNUAL AccounTs P agde 142

&Bute
> onc NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT

9, Pensions - Local Government Superannuation {Scotland) Scheme

The Council participates in the Superannuation Fund admenisiered by City of Glasgow Coungit's Strathclyde Pension Fund,  This Fund provides
members with cefined benefits retated to pay and service.  The contributions are based on rates determined by the Fund's professionally gualified
actuary and based on trennial valuations of the Fund, the most recent of which was at 31 March 1899 and sef employers contributions as follows:

2000401 - 200% of employees tontributions
200102 - 210% of employees contributions
2002403 - 220% of employees contributions

The value of assets of the scherne as at 31 March 1953 did not exceed 135% of the value of the jiabilites of the schame.

1999/2000 2000101
1000 £'000
3,240 Penaion costs charged to the accounts {£) 4,055
10.20% as a percentage of pensionable pay {%) 12.00%
16 Discretionary payments made by the council (£) 10
0.05% as a percentage of pensionable pay (%) 0.029%
m Expenditure on added years awarded (£) -
1.1%% a5 a pefcentage of pensionable pay (%)
The capital cost of discretionary increases in pensions payments agreed by the authority are: £'000
in the year i1
in earlier years 12,946

This inciudes both refirals fram Argyll and Bute Council itself, and refirals from predecesser authorities for which Argyll and Bute Councl is stil
making payments. '

10. Teachers Pensions - Adminislered by Scottish Public Pensions Agency

1998/2000

2000/
£'000 £'000
1,612 Amount paid aver (£) 1,696
6.90% Rate of contribution (%) ‘ 6.90%

441 Amount of added years awarded by the Council {£) 431
56 Discretionary payments made by the council (£} -

11. Pensions - Accounting Palicy

The accounting freatment followed by the Cauncil is not in acoordance with Standard Statement of Accounting Praclice 24 {SSAP 24), Under
S5AR 24 pension costs are accounted for on the basis of charging the expecied cost of providing pensicns ¢ver the period during which the
Council benefils from the employees' services and spreading the effects of variations from regular cost over the expected average rernaining

service lives of members of the scheme. The Council does not have sufficient information available to it to disctose what the pension charge to
operating costs would have been had SSAP 24 been adopted.

12. Members' Allowances

The total amaunt of members' allowances paid by the Counclt during the year wersa:

1894/2000 2000101
£'000 £000
192 Basic Allowance 195
176 Special Responsibiity Aliowance 180
368 Toial Allowances s .

Page 11



AYGVIL 20002001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 143

$Bute
e NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REENUE ACCOUNT

13, Officers’ Emoluments

The number of employeas whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions was £40,000 or more in bands of £10.000 were;

109972000
No Remuneration Band
30 £40,000 - £48,933
3 £50,000 - £59,999
& 60,000 - £69 993
1

£70,000 - £75,999
14. Related Party Transactions

Curing the year iransactions with reiated parties arose as foltows:

Income
£'000
Central Government and Agencies:
Revenue Granls:  Revenue Support Grant 7E,852
Nen-domestic Rales 26,231
Housing Benefits / Support Grant 13,100
Council Tax Benefit Subsidy 4,523
Other Govemment Grants 6,772
Gapite! Grants;  European Grants M
Sports Lottery g2
Argyll and the lslands Enterprise 47
Scottish Natoral Heritage 6
New Deal for Schools 600
Other Govermment Capital Grants 347

Related Bodies:
Joint Boartes (see note 1 for further detalls)
Strathclyde Passenger Transport - Concessionary Fares

Other Related Party Transactions:
Companies in which members have a significant interest

Curirg the year there were various companies in which members had a significant interest where the total of transaciions
exceeded £5,000, these are as follows:

£'000
iglay Development Company ' 14
Cban FM 5
Scottish Milk Limited 5
Tiree CommunityBusiness Limhed 13
Trident Taxis 42

15. Year 2000

—-mmgozg

Expenditure
£'000

11,466
127

g8

The total cost of making all Council systems Year 2000 compliant was £0.528m. This expendituse was charged through the Councif's capital
programme dufing 1998/999, 199972000 anc 2000/2001. The Coundil achieved 2 satisfactory state of readiness prior to 1 January 2000 and as 2

resudt the impact on systems due to the *Millenium Bug” was minima.

Page 12



R 2000-2001 ANNUAL Accounts Page 144 _
$Bute HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT T&Hm year ended 31 March 2001

COUNCIL
1999/2000 2000/2001 200072001
Achual Actual Budget
£000 £'000 £000
Expenditure
3383 Repairs and Maintenance 4,502 3984
3,553 Supervision and Managemant 3647 37
5227 Capital Financing Costs 4,953 5003
307 Void House Rents 402 240
28 Bad Debt Wrile Off - -
24 Frovision for bad or doubiful debis 137 -
114 Other expenditure 7 128
1,700 Contribution fo Capital Financing Reserve 700 700
14,836 Total Expenditure 14,518 11,767
Income
13,212 Rent of houses (gross) 13,50 13437
57 Non-gwedling rents 51 55
a3 Housing Suppor Grant 93 s
368 Otirer income 490 185
13,730 Total ncome 14,135 13,770
{1,1086) (Deficit) ! Surplus for Year {383} {17)
3,288 Surplus Brought Forward 2,182 2192
- interest Earned on Surplus Brought Forward 128
Contribution to General Fund (364} {354)
2,192 Surplus Retained in Housing Revenue Account 1,573 1,541

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
1. Gress Rent Income

This is the total rent income for the year, Average annual rent charges were £37.85 per week in 2000001 [1999/2000 £36.45)

2. Housing Stock

194912000 ‘ 200001
No No

182 Sheitered Housing 188

358 Other houses 3,556

1,858 Terement flats 1,664

1453 Cther fiats 1,330

6,885 Total Housing Siock £,748

3. Rent Artears and Bad Debis
Rent arrears at 31/3/2001 were £0.472m [31/3/2000 - £0.322m) and this equated 1o an average rent amears per house of £70 {1999/2000 - £47)

In accordance with the Iates! assessment of potential recovery and in order Iy reflect due prudence, the provision for bad debis has been
adjusted to £0.27.2m (1999/2000 - £0.144m), this represents an increase of £0.125m.

Page 13



ST oW ANNUAL AGCOUNTS Page 145
s DUHCE SUMMARY DLO/DSO REVENUE Ali[&%PPRDPRIATIDN ACCOUNT
1999/2000 2000101
{Surplus} Total (Surplus)
Deficit Tumover  Expendiure Deficit
Actual Actual Actual Attual
£'000 £'000 £'000 £100
oLO
(95} Property Maintenance 3145 3125 (23)
{4  Roads-Local 8,015 7,878 137)
(40)  Roads - Trunk 2445 2428 (17}
DSC
(37) Vehicle Maintenance 1,732 1,586 (148)
(8) Graund Maintenance 2533 2515 {18)
{2) Street Cleansing 865 B58 7}
(51) Refuse Collection 1,442 1425 {16)
- Leisure Management 750 143 7
(42)  Catering 2433 2427 (6)
{3 Cleaning 1,247 1,235 (12)
(280} TOTAL 24,610 242N {383)
Appropriation Account
Deficit  Tramsferto  Transferto Balance
(Surplus) General Fund Reserve Fund 1M
£000 £'000 £'000 £°000
2000/01 (389} 389 .

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY DLO/DSO REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT

1. Further information

The detailed accounts for the Direct Labour and Dired Services Organisations afe contained in a separate Annual Report, which is published in
accordance with the appropriate iegistation and js available on request from Council Headquarters,

2. Statutory Financial Objectives

The statutory financial objective for all DSCYs and DLO's is to break-even-afier applying the CIPFA Code of Practice ¢n Capital Accounting. Al
Direct Labour and Direct Service Organisations have achieved the statutory financial objective.

Page 14



AYOVL
%B%}{e

COUNCIL

2000.2001 ANNUAL AccouNTs P @ge 146

COUNCIL TAX

INCOME ACCOUNTY fpgthe year ended 31 March 2001

Shows the net income raised from coungit axes levied under the Local Government Finance Act 1952,

1989/2000

Actual
£'000

312

(252)
(6,526)
{782)
30,652

Gross Council Tax levied and contributions in fieu

Less:

Council Tax benefits (net of govemment grant)
Other discounts and reductions

Prawision for bad and doubtful debts

Net Council Tax income

NOTES ¥O THE COUNCIL TAX INCONME ACCOUNT

1. Calculation of the Council Tax

2000/
Actual
£'000

41443

(183)
{7.087)
(1,189)
32,604

Dwellings are valued by the Assessor and placed within a valuation band ranging from the lowest "A" ta the highest "H". The Council Tax charge
is calcutatad using the Council Tax Base, ie. Band D equivalents as befow. This value is then decreased or increased dependant upon the band
of the dwelling. The charge for aach band for 200001 was as follows:

Band Valuation Band % Band D £ per year
A Under £27,000 67% E 62633
B £27,000-£35,000 78% E 72956
(" £35,000 - £45 000 B9% f 83372
D £45,000 - £58,000 100% £ 93800
E £58,000 - £80,000 122% £1,945.44
F £80,000 - £106,000 144% £1.354 83
G £106,000 - £212,600 167% E1.563.33
H Over £212,000 200% £1,875.00

Page 15



AISVH 0002001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS P age 147

%c%%f COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNTfor the year ended 31 March 2001

NOTES TO THE COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT - Continued

2. Calevlation of the Council Tax Base 2000/01

CouncH Tax Base A B c D E F G H Total
Total Number of Proparies 8,088 9,372 9,278 5,358 6,438 3,266 2.156 205 43171
Less . Exemptions/ 201 619 1,284 397 518 162 93 B 3972
Deductions
Adjustment for
Single 915 855 892 382 315 127 73 7 3,466
Chargepayers
Effective Number of Properiies 6,292 1,198 1.322 4578 5,605 2377 1,990 1710 36,733
Band D Equivalent Factor (ratio) 6K nm 84 89 119 1349 1578 18/9

Band D Equivalent Number of Properties 4,195 6,065 6,508 4,579 6,851 4,300 3,37 340 36,155

Add Contripution in liew in respect of Class 18 dwelings (Band D Equivalent) 750
omina: Tax Yietg 35905
Less Provision for Non-Collection - 5.4% 1,983
Council Tax Base 2000/01 - Number of Band P equivalents 34,442

Page 16



S

COUNCIL

Page 148
2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME AEGSUNT for the year ended 31 March 2001

Shows the income itam the rate levied under the Local Govemment (Scotiand) At 1975 as amended by the Local Govemment Finance A<t 1992 on
nan-gomestic property.

199572000
Actual
£000

30,635

{3,998)
16
(230}
28424

4
{960}
25472

Gross rates levied and contibutions in lisy

Less:

Reliefs and other deductions
Payment of interest

Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Net Non-domestic Rafe Incoms

Arjustments for years prior to introduction of naional non-domestic rates pool
Contribution fom / (t6) national non-domesiic rate pool
Guarantsed Rats income

NOTES TO THE NORN-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNY

1. Analysis of Rataable Values

1999/2000
£
2,802 825 Industrial-and frelght transport subjects
31,683,788 Public utilties including British Raif, British Gas, Hydro Electric etc
Commerciaf subjects:
6,280,645 Shops
3.783,285 Offices
5,343,005 Hotals, Boarding Houses elc.
4 421 665 Cthers
£.,284 462 Misceflaneous and formula valued subjects
64,699,775 Tots! Rataabis Valus
2 MorrDomestic Rate Charge
199972000
Pence
48.0p Rate Per Pound Properties undar £10,000
488p Rate Per Pound Properties over £10,000

3. Calculation of Rats Charge for Esch Proparty

The raies charge for each subject is defermined by the rateable value placed upon it by the Assessor maliiplied by the Rale per £ announcad each
yeai Dy the Government.

£000
33,288

{5.867)
(19
{420y
26,980

10
2,241

lsl

3,409,660
33,258,234

8,680,920
4,555,335
6,819,895
£,59G 495

L: it

Page 17



Page 149

A 2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
SBUe  coNSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 28 at 3t March 2001
COUNCIL
1999/2000 200001
£000 £'000
Fixac) Ansats
Operational Assets
62,364 - Council Dweliings 63,230
152,155 - Other Land and Buitdings 156,013
4233 + Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 3,988
59,384 - Infrastuciure Assets 50,868
28 - Community Assets £0
Non-operational Assets
10279 - Non-oparationat Land and Builiings 15,494
289,043 208113
43561 Deferred Charges .
1,347 Long Term Debiars 5,085
33195 Total Long Tarm Assets o
Current Asasls
1158 - Stock and Work in Progress 1,178
14,8358 - Debtors 9546
795 - Cashat Bank &nd in Hand 1,885 13,000
350,729 20,787
Current Liabllitias
{29,765) - Shart Term Borrowing {1,095)
(15,289) - Creditors {21,352)
{2,318 - Bank Dverdratt (2.891) {31,338}
0320 Total Assats lexs Current Liabiities 289,449
{184,996} Long Term Bomowing (207 858)
(479)  Deferred Covenant Liabity {399)
(11,215)  Deferred Govemmeni Giants (11,113) {219,171)
108,580 Total Aswets less Liabllities 70,278
60,836 Fixed Asset Restatement Resesve 74,895
39,748 Capital Financing Reserve {9.218)
3369 Earmarked Reserves 2895
Balances
332 - General Fund B5
2,192 - Housing Revenue Acoount 1,573
103 - DS0s 108
108,580 Total Equity 70278
MeGragor
Director of Financa
20 September, 2001

Page 18



AYOYH 20002001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 150

wOULS  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANGH SHEET as at 31 March 2001

1.1 Movement of Fixed Agsets

Operational Assets
Otheriand  Vehicles . Non-
Council and Plant&  Infrastructure Community Operational Total
Dwellings Buildings  Equipment Assets Assets Assats Total 1995/2000
£000 £'080 £'000 £090 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1/4/00 £2.364 152,755 4,233 £9,384 28 10,279 289,043 290,588
Expenditure in year 2965 4,357 1,000 3582 32 236 12473 13,492
Revaluations 4,160 9,092 6,803 20,055 (485)
Disposals {1,156) (38} (18 {483} {1,688 {2,072
Transfers 1,341 {1,341} {359)
Depreciation (2,078} (3823 (1,207} (2.772) {%,980) (4,056)
Impaimant (6,582) (B,582)
Wiite off to FARR (2,966) {1027} {307) (4.300) {8,085)
Balance at 31/3/0% 63,290 156,013 3988 59,868 60 15,494 298,713 289,043
1.2 Valuation of Fixed Assets
OtherLand  Vehicles Noti-
Council and Plantd  Infragtructure Community Cperational
Dwelings  Buildings  Equipment Assets Assels Ansefs Tolal

£000's £000's E000's 000 £D00's £000's £000's -
Valued at histoncal cost 3,988 58,868 60 63916
Vzlued at current vaiue in;
2000/2601 63,290 35,648 4868 107,806
198572000 B4,773 3416 88,189
189811993 .
1997/1898 ..
1896/1887 -
Vaiuations inherited at 1 April 1996 35,092 3,210 38,802
Total 63,290 156,012 1868 50,968 60 15454 298,713

In accordance with the Capital Accounting Code of Practice, fixed assets are shown at valuation. The basis on which each category of fixed asset is vaired
is a5 foliows:

Council Dwellings
The basis of valuation is Existing Use Value for Spcial Housing as defined in Practice Statement 4.1 of the Royal institute of Chartered Surveyars (RICS)
Appraisal ant Valuztion Manual, the definifion of which is as foliows:

*Exisiing Use Valye for Social Housing is definaq as an opinion of the hest prica at whlch the sale of an interest in property would have been completed
ynconditonally for cash consideration on the date of the valustion.”

The valuations were carmied out as at 31 March 2001 by an independent valuer, the District Vaiuer, on the aforementionsd basis.
Other Land and Buildings
The basis of valuation is Qpen Marke! Value for Existing Uise, assessed on either 2 comparative or deprediated repiacement cost basis.

During the current year, revaluations wefe carmied out by ihe Estates Section of Transportation and Property in accomtance with their rolling programme of
revaluations. This ingluded revaluations of all schools not revalued during 1989/2000. This programme will continue during 20012002,
Vehicles, Plant and Equtpment

These asseis have been valued using historical cost as a proxy for cument replacement cost,

Infrastructure and Community Assets
These assels are valued at depreciated historic cost.

Non Operational Assets
These have been valued on the basis of open market value taking account of existing and altemative uses.

During the ctrent year, revaluations were camied out by the Estates Section of Transportation and Property, on 80 non-operational properties, n
accordance with their roliing programme of revaluations. This programme wili continue during 2001/2002.

Page 19



Argyll 20002001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 151

GBULE  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALEEE SHEET 5 at 31 March 2001

1.3 Fized Assats Information on Assets Held at 31/

2000104 2000104
OPERATIONAL BUILDINGS No. OPERATIONAL EQUIPMENT _ No.
Administrative Buildings 3B Vehicles and Heavy Plant M7
Uepols 32
Social Work Homes for the Elderly 6 INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS
Social Worx Childran's Homes 4 Highways (miles) 1,408
Social Work Hostels 3 Bridges G54
Primary Schoals 81
Secondary Schodis 10 COMMUNITY ASSETS
Special Schoals 3 Play Areas 52
Norsery Schools 3 Parks 25
Halls 10 Civic Regaiia (Provosts’ Chains) 4
Spons Centres 1 Civic Regalia (Bailies® Chains) i
Swimming Fools 3 Cemeleries &6
Museums and Libraries 10
Community Centres 8 COUNCIL DWELLINGS 6,748
Crematoria 1
Public Canveniencas 89
Travelling Persong Sites 3
2. Deferrett Charges Balance at Write off Expenditure  Receipis Capital Baiance at
1)4/00 Opening Bal during year during year Discharged IR0t
EM0 £'a00 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Improvement {rants 34,789 (34,789) -
Slum Clearance 389 (389) -
Other B33 (8,383) -
Total 43,561 {43,564) - . - .
Totai 1992/2000 42,18 - 2942 - {1,599) 43,564

3. Spending on Capital Projects During the Year

Capital expenditure involves the creation of assats, the benefit of which will be avaifable to future rae and council taxpayers, 1 is financed from boitowing
and therefore the cost of the assets is effectively bome over a pefiod of years. In 2000/21 gross capital expanditure tofaked £16.012m, offset by capital
inceme of £3.516m, as follows:

M March 31 March

2001 2000

£'000 £a00
Ecucation Services ’ 2574 3406
Development and Environment Services 1,976 2043
Social and Housing Services 3,485 3,244
Housing Revenue Account 37 4178
Transportaticn and Froperty Services 3,459 2448
Central Support 1,343 1,078
Total Expenditurs 16,012 16,487
Financed hy:
$Sale of Councit Houses 689 743
Sale of Other Asseis 612 5
Grants 1,203 1,128
Other Capital Receipts 178 414
Capia! from Current Revenue 434 2,343
Borrowing 12,496 11,553
Total Financing 16,012 18,4E7

Pape 20



ATYSVIl  2000.2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Page 152

PBULC  NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEET as at 31 March 2001

COUNCIL

4, Assets Held Under Finance Leases

Therg were no assets held under finance ‘eases during the year.

2000/2001 1999/2000
5, Debtors £000 £000
Arrears of Local Taxation Counail Tax 11,324 10,221
less: provision for bad debis (9,258) {7840
2.068 2370
Community Charge §,080 B.270
less: pravision for bad debts (8,016) (8,228)
4 44
Non-domestic Rates 2434 25%6
less: provision for bad debls (1,972) (1,853}
462 663
House Rents I 202
fess: provision for bad debts (272) (144)
1™ 58
Debtor Acoounts 3,866 4,228
less: provision for bad debis AR i1,015)
3,053 33
Government Grants 3.805
VAT Recoverable 1417 1,789
Other Cebtors 2801 2794
Total Debiors 9,946 14,835
6. Analysis of Bomowing
- 6.1 Source of Loan 31 March 31 March
2001 2000
£000 £000
Public Works Loan Board 187,819 185,910
Money Market 18,500 25,026
EB 2184 2,580
Other Loans 7 235
Total Qutstanding Loans 208,754 14761
6.2 Maturity of Loans M March 31 March
2001 2000
£'000 £000
Borrowings repayable on demand 1,095 29765
or within 12 months
Baorrowings repayable on demand or within
12 months 1,085 29,765
1-2years 1,202 1,048
2-5vears 2714 3,959
§ - 10 years 1,400 15,201
Over 10 years 202,244 163,698
Total Long and Medium Term Loans 207,654 184,996
Tolal Qutstanding Loans 208,754 214,761

Page 21



Aégyll 2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 153
$Bute NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALAMEE SHEET as at 31 March 2001

COUNCIL

7. Deferred Government Grants £'000
Balance at 1 April 2000 11,215
Granls received during the year 1o finance capital projects 385
Credit ta revenue agcount during the year ' (488)
Balance at 31 March 2001 11,13
8. Analysis of Net Assets Employed As at 31 March 2001

General Fund HRA DSOMDLO's Yotal

£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Assets
Fixed Assets 235423 63,280 - 298,713
Deferred Charges - - - -
Long Term Debtors 9,085 . - 9,088
Stock and Work in Progress 199 . 979 1,178
Debtors 8,700 183 53 9,946
Cash at Bank and in Hand 1,885 - - 1,885
Liabilities
Short Term Bomowing (1.139) 25 19 {1,085)
Creditors (23.491) {1595) {2.266)  [(27,352)
Bank Overdraft (2.881) - - (2,891}
Long Term Bomowng {161,534) (43,652 73 (207.659)
Deferrad Covenant Liability {399) - - {399
Government Grants Deferred (11,113) - - (11,113)
Total Het Assets Employed 55,305 16,261 {1,268) 70,278

9, Insurance Fund

An Insurarce Fund has been established in accordance with the Local Government {Scotiand) Act 1994, The balance at 31 March 2001 was £1.234m
(1999/2000 - £1.178m). The fund represents contributions made from the General Fund and doss not yet cover specific uninsured risks.

10. Contingent Gains and Liabilities -

The Cauncil has inherited 2 rumber of applications for equal pay at various stages of completion al industriaf Tribunals. The final outcome of these
applications is unknown at this time, although there is the passibility that the Council may Iose at least some of these cases. No financial provision has been
made in the 2000/2001 Accounts given the uncerainties which surmround bath the final ouicomes and the setiiement levels,

The: Council has entered into a Public Private Partnership with Shanks Group PLG for the waste maragement of landfll sites. Under this agreement, the
Courcil retains an element of residual responsibility in respect of specific environmensal rectification which may be necessary in ceriain Grcumstances. The
Coungi! is of the view that any future liabilities ariging from these circurstances should be covered by grants funding,

11. Provisions

Liabifilies have continued to arise in respect of the former Strathclyde Regional Council's cperations. Cest sharing amangements are in place with the other
eleven authoriies which make up the former Strathelyde Region. Argyll and Bute Council's share of liabilities which malenalise in the future will be
approximately 4%. At present, potentia? liabifities in respect of insurance claims and various legal actions could cost the Council £0.332m. Full provision
for this amount has been made.

A provision in respec of insurance ¢laims and various legal arfions from the former Strathalyde Regional Council was set up during the 1995/2000 financial
year, this was adjusted during 2000/01 to refiect the overall movement in the claims position during the year, This provision complies with the requirements
of FRS 12 {Financial Reporting Standard 12 - Provigions, Contingent Liabiliies and Contingent Assets} and meets the following criteria:

- There is a present obligation {lagal or constructive) as a rasult of a past event;
- It is probable that 2 transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation; and
- A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation,

£000
Opening Batance (364}
Movement in the Year 3z
Ciosing Balance {332)

Page 22



_ Page 154
< ras y sl JH-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
Bt

€ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BAL%E SHEET as at 31 March 2001
COUNCIL

12. Commitments Under Capital Contracts
Al 31 March 2001, the Couneil had commitments on capits) conteacts of £8.272m. This expenditure will be funded from a combinalion of govemment
capital consent (borrowing), income from selling assets and contributions from Revenue Accounts.

£'000
Administration Buildings and Equipment 494
information Technology 124
Development and Environment Services 584
Education 2475
Social Work 279
Roads 1,080
Housing 2436
Flood Prevention iy
Miscellaenous 107

—am

13. The Castle Trust

Argyll and Bute Coungll, East Renfrewshire Council and Gliasgow City Councll have entered a joint venture to operate the twn educational outdoor centres
at Ardentinny and Castie Toward.

14, Trust Funds and Other Third Party Funds

The Council acts as sole or custodian tustes for 76 trust Junds and 6 common good funds. i nefther case do the funds represent assets of the Counil,
and as such have not been included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Tie funds have not been subject to an independent sudit,

Funds fer which Argyll and Bute Council act as sole fustee:
Income Expenditure Assels  Liabllities

£000 £'000 £'00% £°000

Campbeitown Cemmon Good Fund 33 19 426 426
Qban Cemmon Good Fund 58 44 T30 T30

" Inveraray Common Good Fund - - 1 1
Lochgitphead Common Good Fund - - 5 5
Dunoon Common Good Fund - - B 8
Rothesay Common Good Fund ‘ 7 2 88 98
Argyll Zducation Trust 18 9 191 193
GM Duncan Trust 4 5 72 T2
McDougall Trust . 8 426 426
Moore's Mortificaion Fund : 5 - 100 100

* Various Other Trust Funds ) 3 357 357
Total Trust Funds 17 90 2,416 2415

Purpose of Commen Geod Funds:
These funds are held for the benefit of residents of the former Burghs within Argyll and Bute.

Purpose of Trust Funds:

GM Duncan Trust: for the peovision of fuel, clothing and foodstuifs for the needy of Campbeltown. McDougah Trust: for the provision of sheltered housing
on the Ross of Mull. Meore's Mortification Fund: to provide benefits to the needy of that part of the Parish of Candress lying between Auchentroe and
Keppoch. Argyll Education Trust: this is made up of a number of small trusts to award prizes, bursaries, efc. to pupils and ex pupils of schools within the
former Argyll County Council area. Further information on the Common Good and Trust Funds, administerad by Argyll and Bute Council, Gan be obtained
from the Treasury Section of the Finanoa Department.

15. European Moneatary Union

As at 31 March 2001, the Council had incumed no expenditure and had made no commitments in respect of the costs associated with ths infroduction of the
Euro. Prior to entry into full Eure trading, a significant review of all systems will require to be undertaken. Consequently an estimate of cosls is not
available at this stage.

Page 23



s yu  2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 155
SBUe  sYATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON RESERVES for the year ended 31 March 2001

COUNCIL
CAPITAL RESERVES REVENUE RESERVES
Fixed Asset Capital Earmarked Genenl Housing DLO/MDSO Total
Reststement  Financing  Reserves Fund Revenue
Reserve Resarve Account
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'o0d 000
Balance at 1 April 2000 60,336 39,748 3,369 332 2,182 103 106,580
Net surplusfdeficit) for year 811y {383 89 (605)
;J:er:a;;ss? ts(gauns.‘)d'lo:ss, from revaluation of 20,055 20,055
Interast 184 128 5 37
Contribution (to) / from General Fund {9.614) B89 364 (364) (369) {9,914)
Contributton (ko) } from HRA 700 700
Capial Discharged oh House Loans {ti1) ak}]]
Net Book Value of aggats disposed of {1,685) {1,686)
Capital Receipts Applied 3,561 3561
Expenditure {157 {150
. Wiite off Deferred Charges at 1 Apsil 2000 (43,562} {43,562)
i:;?;::m not through Fixed Asset (4.300) 14:300)
Balance at 31 March 2001 74,895 {9,278) 2,895 85 1,573 108 10,278

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT OF RESERVES

1. Fixed Asset Restatement Ragerve

This reserve reflects the difference between the book value of assets prior to the implementation of the new system of Capital Accounting and the
revalued amounts. Any subsequent revaluations are alsa recorded here, [ is not a revaluation reserve and does not reprasent resources available
fo the authority. Tt canngl be used in any way to finance revenue or capital expenditure and can only be rediced by sither writing out the book value
of assets or a downward revaiuation.

2. Capital Financing Reserve

The Capital Financing Reserve contains the amounts which aré reduired by statule to be set aside from capital receipts for the repayment of
exiermnat [pans as well as the amount of capital expenditure financed from revenue and capital receipts. |t alst contains the difierence between
amounts provided for depreciation and that required (o be charged fo revenue to repay the principal elerment of exlernal loans. As with the Fixed
Asgset Restatement Reserve it does not represant resources avaiiabie to the authority.

. 3. Earmarked Reserves

Balance at Appropriation  Balance at
1 April  Contributions Interest  tOCRA 3 March
2000 2001
. £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Education Reserves 353 89 19 {119) M2
Repairs and Renewals - Vehictes 662 R 564
Repairs and Renewals - General 1,205 70 (626) 649
Insurance Fynd 1,178 65 {12) 1,254
DLO Capital Fund B1 5 86
Total Earmarked Reserves 3,369 5 194 50 2,885

4. Revenue Reserves

Revenue reserves e made up of the anmual movements in the Consofidated Revenue Account, Housing Revenue Account ang the DSORDLD
Appropriation Account. The Housing Revenue Account reserves camied forward are ring-fenced and as such can oniy be used for the benefit of
Coungil House Tenants. Revenue reserves can be used to meet both capital and revenue axpenditre.

Page 24



zvuv-20us annuAL AGGOUNTSPage 156

i —t= ¥ ‘
?ggléf CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2001
1995/2600 2000/1
Actual REVENUE ACTIVITIES Note Actual
£000  Cashoutflows £0a0
B3 742 Cash Paid for and on Behalf of Empioyess 87,151
74076 Other Qperating Cash Payments £5,866
4,757 Housing Banefil Paid Out 6,460
1,804  National Mon-demestic Rate Payments 1o National Poal
164,319 Tetal Cask Qutflows 159477
Cash inflows
6,672 Rents (after rebates) 5,349
26,008 Coungil Tax Income 28717
25424 Non-domestic Rate Recaipts 30014
314 Community Charge 191
76,818 Revenue Support Geant 75,862
16,734 D55 Grants for Benefits 17,531
5107  Other Govemment Grants 1 6,865
19,630  Cash Received for Goods and Services 16,291
National Non-domestic Rate Recaipts from National Pool 7,393
8,058  Cther Operating Cash Receipis 5,530
181,851 Total Cash Inflows 195,335
17472 Net Cash Infiow ! (Qutflow) From Revenue Activities 2 35,862
SERVICING COF FINANGCE
Cazh otiflows
16,760  Interest paid 22,561
16,760  Total Cash Quifiows 22,561
Cash inflows
41 Interest recsived 107
41 Total Cash Inflows 107
(16,719) Net Cash inflow 7 (Outflow) From Servicing of Finance (22,454)
CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash outfiows
3814 Purchase of Fixed Assels 5,525
8800  Other Capital Cash Paymenis 5456
12,614  Total Cash Quifiows 10,931
Cash inflows
295 Sale of Fixed Assets 2,959
1025  Capilal Grants Received 1,008
878  Other Capital Cash Receipts 127
4,857  Total Cash nflows 4,004
{7757} Cash inflow (Quifiow} From Capital {6,887)
(7,004}  Net Cash inflow ! {Outfiaw} Before Financing 6,521
FINANCING
Cash outfiows
183783  Repayments of Amounts Borowed 101,470
183,783 Total Cash Quifiows 101,410
Cash inflows
190,533  New Loans Raised 85,463
160,533  Total Cash Infiows 85,463
6750  Net Cash Infiow ! {Qutfiow) From Financing {€,007)
{#54;  (Decreans)/ Incraase in Cash and Cash Equivalents k| 514

Page 25



Page 157

éﬁgﬁ.{g Z000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
131
COUNCIL NOTES TO THE CONSOL!DATEDI%A,SH FLOW STATEMENT

1, Other Government Grants

199%2000 2000101
EQ00 £'000
m Housing Suppart Grant 93
23 Rural Transpor Grant 253
2,004 Pre School Education Grants 2475
258 Gaelic Education Granis 254
2,160 Ditner Educational Grants {e.9. Excellence Fund) 3540
145 Other Grants (e.g. Civil Defence) 248
5107 Total "Other Government Grants" 6,865
2. et Cash Flow Reconciliation
1999/200( 2000f01
£1000 £000
(1.764) SurplusHDefici) for Year {511)
{1,106) Adkd back: Transfer to HRA Balance {383)
(2.870) {954)
257 Movements in Reserves {464}
22,926 Adjustments No! involving Mavement in Funds 21,786
492 {Increase)/Decrease in Stocks {20)
{774} {increase)/Decrease in Debtors 4,937
(4,259) Increasef(Detrease in Creditors) 10,622
15,772 Revenue Activities Met Cash Flow 35,862
3. Anaiysis of Net Debt
Asxt Asal
31 March 1 Apnil Cash
oM 2000 Flow
£000 £000 1]
Cash at Bank and in Hand 1,885 795 1,080
Bank Overdraft (2,801) {2,315) {576)
Increase in Cash and Cazh Equivalents {1,006) (1,526) 514
Debt due within one year {1,095) {29,764) 28670
Deht due after one year [207659) {184,996 [22,663)
Totat Dabt (208754)  (214.7%1) 6,007
Total (208,760}  (216,281) 6,521
4. Reconciliation of Movament in Cash to Net Debt
19992000 2000101
£'000 E£'008
{254) increase / {Decrease) in Gash in Period 514
{6,750} tncrease / {Decrease) in Delyt Financing 6,007
(7.004) Movement in Debt in Pariod 6,521
(209.277) Net Debt s at 1 April 2000 (216,281)
(216,281) Net Debt as at 1 April 2001 {209,760}

Page 26



Page 158

PRICEMATERHOUSE COPERS

PricewaierhouseCagpers
Kintyre House

20% West Oeorge Strect
Glasgow G2 2LW

Telephone +44 {0} 14] 248 2644
Facsimite +44 (0) 141 242 7481

AUDIT CERTIFICATE TO THE MEMBERS OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL AND
THE ACCOUNTS COMMISSION FOR SCOTLAND

1. As auditors, appointed under statute by the Accounts Commission for Scotland, we have
audited the accounts of Argyll and Bute Council for the year ended 31 March 2001, an
abstract of which is set out on pages 5 to 26.

Respective responsibilities of management and auditors in relation to the accounts

2. As stated on page 3, the management of Argyll and Bute Council is responsible for the
preparation of the accounts. It 18 our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on the abstract of accounts and to report that opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

3. We have conducted our andit in accordance with the requirements of Part VII of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the
Commussion. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by management in the preparation of the accounts and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to Argyll and Bute Council’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

4. We planned and performed our audit of the accounts so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonabie assurance that the accounts are free from material mis-
statement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts.

Opinion

5. In our opinion, the abstract of accounts presents fairly, in accordance with the accounting
policies set out on pages 6 o 7, the financial position of Argyll and Bute Council as at 31
March 2001 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

f

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Glasgow

20 September 2001

FricewatemouteCoopars is the suzsesscr panership 1o the LK s of Price Walsrhouse and Coopers £ Lybvand. The prncipal placa of busingss of ProswatemauseCoopars ard
Iz associate panmatshins, and of Coopers & Lytvand, i 1 Embankment Piace, London WCZN 6NN. The pinciat clace of pusness of Pros Waterhouse is Souhwark Towers, 32
London Bitge Suest. Lonton BET 95Y. Ligis of the parners' names are avaiabia for inspection et thoss Dlaces.

Al parners 1 e assocaie parnerships ard Authonsed to conouct business &S agents of, and all Contracts foe senices 1o chents an with. PricowaterhouseCoopars.
PricewatemousaCogoers is authonisad by the institute of Chanssed Aceourtants r Engiang and Wakes t cary on wwestmen business.




Page 159
159

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Argyll

Bute

'COUNCIL

FINAL REPORT TO MEMBERS 2000/2001

PRICEAATERHOUSE(QOPERS



Page 160

PRICEVWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Kintyre House

209 West George Street
Glasgow GZ 2LW

Telephone +44 (0} 141 248 2644
Fagsimile +44 (0% 141 242 731%

The Members The Controiler of Audit

Argyll & Bute Council Accounts Commission for Scotland

Kilmory 18 George Street

Lochgilphead EDINBURGH

Argyll EH2 2QU

PA31 BRT

20 September 2001

Ladies and Gentlemen .

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

We have completed our audit of Argyll & Bute Council (the “Council”) accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2001.

The Final Report is primarily designed to direct your attention to matters of significance that
have arisen out of the 2000/2001 audit process and to confirm what action has been agreed
with management to address the areas of concern which have been identified.

Our statutory duties as your external auditor are contained within the Local Government

{Scotland) Act 1973 as amended by the NHS and Community Care Act 1990. These duties

and the responsibilities which are derived from them are contained in greater detail within the

Code of Aundit Practice which has been approved and issued by the Accounts Commission for
Scotland. Section | and Appendix 2 of the report outline our key responsibilities and the
responsibilities of management in this regard. .

The matters dealt with in this Final Report came to our notice during the conduct of our
normal audit procedures, which we carried out in accordance with the framework and
principles embodied within the Code. It is.emphasised that the Final Report should not be
interpreted as providing legal or other advice to the Council or any other party.

We would like to take this opportunity to offer our thanks to those members of management
and staff who have assisted us during the course of the audit.

Yours faithfully

PricewaterhouseCoopers i

Prfcmterhmsecmpers is the suctessor partnership ta the UK firms of Price Waterhouse and Coopers & Lyhrand. The principai place of business of
PricewateryouseCnopen and its associote partrersiips, and of Coopars B tybrand, & 1 Embankment Piace, London WEIN M. The principal place of business af Frice
waterhouse is Southwark Towers, 32 London @ridge Street, Lomdon SE1 95Y. Lists of the partners' names are available for inspection at those places.

All partners in the associate partnerships are authorised 19 conduct business as Agents of, and all contracts & services to Clignts are with, PricewsterhoussCoopers.
Pricewaterhouse( sopers it authorised by the Institute of Charteced Accountants in England and Wales v carry on investmant basiness.



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 161
161

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

CONTENTS
Section Page
Executive Summary 1-4
I Public Sector Audit 5
II Audit Opinions 6
It Financial Statements 7-15
v Financial Systems and Internal Control Environment 16-21
v Best Value 22-24
Y1 Value for Money 25-29
vii Performance Indicators 30-31
VI Legal Matters 32-35
Appendix 1 - Action Plan
Appendix 2 - Responsibilities of Management and the Auditor
Appendix 3 - Other reports submitted during the 2000/2001 process
Appendix 4 - Audit Certificate placed on the Council’s Annual Accounts
September 2001

PRICWATERHOUSE COPERS @



Page 162

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 162

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Final Report is designed to direct your aftention to matters of significance that have arisen
out of the 2000/2001 audit process and to confirm action agreed with management (o address
any areas of concern which have been identified. It is important that members consider the
detailed comments within the Report and do not rely solely on the Executive Summary.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY PAGE

Audit Opinions
o  Our certificate on the Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31 6

March 2001 is ungualified.

. We note that ail DLO/DSO operations have achieved the financial objective of 6
break even.

Financial Statements

. The outturn on the Consolidated Revenue Account was a deficit for the yvear of 7
£611,000 and, in addition, the Council transferred £364,000 from the Housing
Revenue Account Reserves and utilised a substantial proportion of brought
forward General Fund Reserves to cover the deficit. As a result, an
accumulated surplus of £83,000 is being carried forward to 2001/02.

. We note that a number of variances arising were not evident unti] fairly late in 8
the financial year and we understand that the Council is currently undertaking
an overall review of the mdividual service department budget setting and
budget monitoring processes. Effective budgetary control procedures will
beceme even more important in 2001/02 in view of the small level of general .
fund surplus carried forward and available {0 offset against any potential
future overspends.

. The financial statements and supporting schedules were presented to us for 10
audit within the agreed timetable and were appropriate in terms of ¢larity and
completeness. As in previous years, we have continued {o note an
improvement in the working papers provided to us by the Council during the
course of the audit. This year we are particularly pleased to note that detailed
plans were prepared by the finance department which assisted in the timely
preparation of the accounts and our audit.

September 2001 ' 1 PreenATeRoUs{CoPERs B



Page 163

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
163

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PAGE

Financial Statements (Continued)

The Council identified two asset impairments, in accordance with FRS 11
“Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill”. These related to:

-~ Hermitage Academy, where the carrying value was reduced by £6.1
million; and

—  Campbeltown Swimming Pool, where the carrying value was reduced by
£0.5 miilion.

We are satisfied that these reductions in value are in compliance with
accounting standards.

In 1999/2000 we reported that the Council had appointed Enviros Aspinwall
to perform a specialist valuation of the waste management landfill sites as part
of the Public Private Partnership (“PPP”) proposal. At that time they identified
that significant costs would be required to be incurred to bring the sites up to
required environmental standards. While the current estimate of these
environmental improvement costs remain significant, the liability for the costs
has largely been transferred to the PPP contractor who will assume
responsibility for these sites, under the terms of an agreement signed in
September 2001. As the liability 1s no longer likely to be met by the Council,
no provision for these environmental clean up costs has been made in the
Council’s accounts. Under the PPP arrangement, the Council retains an
element of residual responsibility in respect of specific environmental
rectification which may be necessary in certain circumnstances. Management
believe that such costs as may arise will be met by grant funding and the
matter is disclosed as a contingent liability in the notes to the accounts.

Further details of our findings arising from work on the financial statements
are included within Section LII.

Financial Systems and Internal Control Environment

During 2000/2001 we have issued two Interim Management Letters which
contained a number of control matters for attention of management.

In addition to these letters, we have specifically reviewed the Council’s
arrangements in respect of internal audit, budget setting and control and
reconciliation arrangements during the year. Further details arising from our
work on systems are detailed in Section IV,

10

11

16

September 2001 ' 2 PREAAEROUSE(COPERS @




Page 164

AR L & BUTE COUNCIL
GYL 164

Fina! Report to Members 2000/2001

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY {CONTINUED)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

arrangemenits for collecting and reporting statutory performance indicators. A
number of indicators in the following areas did not meet the specified
reguirements:

—  Benefits administration - Gross administration costs;

- Benefits administration - Applicants processed within required time;
—  Housing - Response repairs;

- Libraries - Stock turnover;

- Libraries - Use of libraries;

—  Roads and Lighting -Traffic light repairs response;

—  Roads and Lighting - Street light repairs response;

—  Social Work - Respite Care;

—  Social Work - Criminal Justice - Social inquiry reports;
- Social Work - Criminal Justice - Probation; and

—  Social Work - Criminal Justice - Community Service,

» Management should take corrective action to ensure that these indicators meet
the specified requirements in future years.

* Our overall findings are included in Section VII.

PAGE
Best Value
»  Our Best Value programme comprised reviewing the Performance
Management and Planning framework of the following services : 22
—  Personnel Department - Health and Safety;
—  Transportation and Property Services Department - Transport Services;
and,
—  Corporate and Legal - Registration Services.
. Findings relating to these reviews are included in Section V.
Value for Money
e«  The following value for money studies were undertaken during the year 25
—  Review of internal audit, and;
—  Education Property Risk Management
»  Findings relating to these reviews are included in Section VI.
Performance Endicators
» We have considered and reported upon the general standard of the Council’s 30

September 2001 3 PRCEWATERHOUSEC0PERS @




Page 165

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

165

Final Report to Members 2004{/2001

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

the role of the Monitoring Officer, we have endeavoured to keep undet review
the legality of transactions or events that have a significant financial
consequence.

The Council’s Public Private Partnership with Shanks Group ple for waste
management within Argyll and Bute was signed in September 2001. The
Council has received an opinion from independent financial advisers that the
PPP transaction can be accounted for off balance sheet. As part of our audit
work we have reviewed this opinion and concur that it appears appropriate.

Findings relating to our review of legal matters are included in Section VILI,

Conclusion

Matters ratsed in this Final Report have been discussed previously with
executive management. Qur two Interim Management Letters and this Final
Report to Members are supported with management action plans and we
recommend that these should be monitored formally by Management and by
Members throngh the new Audit Committee process to ensure that agreed
action will be implemented within the agreed timescales.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY PAGE
Legal Matters
. Through discussions with management, reviewing Council minutes and noting 32

September 2001 ' 4 PROWAERHOUSE(COPERS 8




Page 166

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
166

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION I - PUBLIC SECTOR AUDIT

The Nature of Public Sector Audit

1.01 It is generally acknowledged that Public Sector Audit involves a wider public
interest dimension to the audit of public funds. There is therefore a reasonable
public expectation that the Council expends its funds only for duly authorised
purposes, there 15 a high standard of probity and resources are applied to best effect.

1.02 .

These matters are reflected in the areas of audit focus which are outlined in the
Accounts Commission’s Code of Audit Practice (The Code). This includes the
need for a public sector audifor to place an audit certificate on the financial
statements (Section II of this report) and to consider the adequacy of the
Council’s internal financial contrels (Section 11}, as well as considering the
arrangements the Council has in place for:

The implementation of a Best Value ethos throughout the Council’s operations
(Section I'V); ‘

The collection, recording and publishing of prescribed performance data
(Section V);

Securing economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources
(Section VI); and

Ensuring the legality of significant transactions or events with a financial
consequence.

1.03 Within Appendix 2, we have noted in greater detail the respective duties of
management and external audit in relation to the areas of audit focus noted above.

September 2001 ' 5 PRICEAARRHOUSE(COPERS B



Page 167

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
GYLL 167

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTTON IT - AUDIT OPINIONS

Accounting Code of Practice

2.01 Under the terms of our appointment as auditors to the Council we are required to issue
two specific audit opinions.

Aundit Certificate on the Annual Accounts

2.02 The Local Government {Scotland) Act 1973 requires that, following the completion of
an audit, the auditors shall place on the ahstract of accounts a certificate which sets out
the basis on which they have formed their audit opinion.

2.03  This is our opinion on the accounts which states :

. that the audit has been conducted in accordance with the requirements of the
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the Code of Audit Practice;

. the respective responsibility of management and auditors in relation to the
accounts; and

° whether, in our opinion, the accounts present fairly the financial position of the
Council as at 31 March 2001,

2.04

Audit Certificate on the Anpual Accounts of the DLOs/DSOs

205 We are required to provide an opinion on the statements contained within the Annual
Repert for the Council’s Direct Labour and Direct Service Organtsations. Scoftish
Office Circular (8/96) issued in March 1996 amended the required financial objective
from a 6% rate of retun on capital employed to the achievement of a break even
posttion.

206 We note that all DLO/DSO operations have achieved the required financial objective of
break even and, as a result, our andit opinions are unqualified.

September 2001 | 6 W 8



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 168
168

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION III - FINANCEAL STATEMENTS

3.01

3.02

3.03

Basis of Preparation of Annual Accounts/Financial Statements

The Council’s financial statements need to comply with the Code of Practice on Local
Authonty Accounting in Great Britzin, a Statement of Recommended Practice (“the
SORP™). This is in accordance with the Scottish Office circular 5/1985 which indicates
that local authorities should follow recommendations made by LASAAC regarding the
form of accounts and accounting practice.

Audit Adjustments to the Financial Statements

As a result of our audit work, adjustments to the format of and figures within the
financial statements were made in respect of the following principal items :

e  Movement of £162,000 between the bank and creditors’ balances per the
Council’s year end reconcilation (paragraph 4.09);

. Adjustment of £700,000 to the housing revenue account (HRA) disclosure for
“capital funded from current revenue”. The SORP requires that capital funded
from current revenue should be included under expenditure in the HRA with the
corresponding entry being made through the General Fund capital financing
reserve; and

. Adjustment of £757,000 to the consolidated revenue account to include the gross
income and gross expenditure for approved projects financed by funds and
earmarked reserves,

These adjustments reclassify items within the accounts and do not impact the results of
the CRA and HRA.

Financial Performance 2000/2061

The outturn on the Consolidated Revenue Account was a deficit for the year of
£611,000 and, in addition, the Council transferred £364,000 from the Housing Revenue
Account reserves and utilised a substantial proportion of brought forward General Fund
Reserves to cover the deficit. As aresult, an accumulated surplus of £85,000 is being
carried forward to 2001/02.

September 2001 ’ 7 PRCEVATRHOUSE S0PERS @



Page 169
ARGYLL & BUTE CQUNCIL 169

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION III — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial Performance 2000/2001 (Continued)

3.04 The movements from original budget are analysed as follows:

£000  £000
Original forecast budget deficit

{to be funded from brought forward surplus) (351)
Supplementary estimate re: feasibility study for Education project (110}
Revised forecast budget {401)
Increased income from:
Savings in loan charges 800
Collection of Council tax and community charge 150
Contribution by DLO/DSOs 389
Underspend on projects funded by Special Islands Needs Award 468
Other 39
1.846
Increased expenditure from:
Education services 1,164
Transport and property services 529
Foot and mouth precautionary measures 132
Reduction in central support allocation to HRA 171
1,996 (150)
Actual reporied deficit (611)

3.05 The unbudgeted expenditure incurred by both the Education Department and Transport
and Property Services was not fully anticipated until relatively late in the financial
year. At February 2001 the Education service had forecast a projecied variance of
£518,000 compared to a final outturn of £1,161,000 for the year. This eventual
overspend has been reported to the Strategic Policy Committee as being attributabie to
the following principal headings:

£°000
Catering, cleaning and janitorial costs 272
New opportunities funds 112
School transport 376
Anticipated savings not achieved 417
Other EOE)

1,164

September 2001 8 PRICEVWAERHOUSE(COPERS @



Page 170

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
170

Final Report to Members 200072001

SECTION III - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.06

3.07

3.09

Financial Performance 2000/2001 (Continued)

At February 2001, the Transportation and Property Service had forecast a projected
overspend of £446,000, compared to a final outturn of £529,000 for the year. This
eventual overspend has been reported as being attributable to the following:

£7000

Roads: salt and grit charges 122
Property services: employee costs and underbudgeting 154
Contract services: underbudgeting, operational deficits and unrecovered costs 253
529

The extent of the adverse variances reporied at the year end, and the significant
increase in these variances between the February reporting cycle and the year end
suggests that improvements in budgetary control are required. The need for these
improvements is particularly important given the small level of General Fund sutplus
camed forward at 31 March 2001 which may be available for offset against any
potential future deficits.

In cur 1999/2000 report to members we made a number of recommendations on the
council’s budgetary control arrangements. In particular we recommended that:

e Management should seek to improve budget phasing for all areas of income and
expenditure.

e Management should impilement budget reporting variance analysis at a service level

for cost inputs.

o Members and management should consider requesting a regular monitoring report
from each of the service departments reporting their progress in implementing
material savings initiatives.

We consider that limited progress has been made in 2ﬂ00f01 in implementing these
recommendations.

We note that the Council is currently undertaking an overall review of the individual
service department budgets and budget monitoring processes. Members should
monitor management’s progress in achieving imprevements in the current
budgeting system and consider recommendations arising from the review.

Submission of Accounts

The Council was required to submit a copy of the Abstract of the Accounts to the
Controller of Audit by 30 June 2001 and we were pleased to note that this target was
achieved.

September 20601 9 PRCWAERHOUSEEOPERS B



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 171
171

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION HI - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

310

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

Aundit Process

The financial statements and supporting schedules were presented to us for audit within
the agreed timetable. While a small number of areas within the statements did not
originally comply fully with the requirements of the SORP, these were discussed with
the Director of Finance and the majority amended. Areas of detailed non-compliance
will be reported in our final management letter.

The target date set by the Accounts Commussion for the completion of the andit was 30
September 2041 which was achieved.

As n previous years, we have continued to note an improvement in the working papers
provided to us by the Council during the course of the audit. This year we are
particularly pleased to report that detailed plans were prepared by the finance
department which assisted in the timely preparation of the accounts and our andit.

We are grateful for the time and assistance made avaiiable by the Director of Finance
and his staff during the audit process.

Application of FRS 11 - Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill

Financial Reporting Standard “FRS 11 — Impairment of Fixed Asscts and Goodwill” is
mtended to ensure that fixed assets are recorded in the balance sheet at no more than
their recoverable amount. An impatrment of a fixed asset occurs due to an event which
reduces the value of the {ixed asset.

During 200072001 the Council has identified two asset impairments during the
financial year. These relate to0 Hermitage Academy (£6.071,112), and Campbeltown
swimming pool (£511,326).

Both of these impairments were deemed fo reflect a general fall in the economic benefit
of the asset. Hermitage Academy was identified as impaired after an independent
structural survey which followed complaints from concerned parents and staff, and
Campbeltown swimming pool was clesed following the identification of structural
defects and the presence of asbestos materials within the building,

In accordance with FRS 11 these impairments have been recogmsed as an expense in
the service revenue accounts, and have also been reflected in the asset management
revenue account to avoid the need for the impairment costs to be met by council tax
pavers.

In 1999/2000 an asset revaluation was undertaken by the Council’s Estates department.
This resulted in an uplift of £1.9 million to the valuation of Hermitage Academy. This
year, following the independent structural survey and revaluation, an impairment of
£6.1 million has been recognised. Management should reconsider the procedures
for obtaining rolling revaluations and identifying impairments, with a view to
minimising fluctuations in asset values from one year to the next.

September 2001 ' 10 PRCEASERHOUSE TOPERS ©



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 172
172

Final Report to Members 2604/2001

SECTION IH - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.19

3.20

3.21

Application of FRS 12 — Provisions, contingent liahilities and continpgent assets

Financial Reporting Standard “ERS 12 — Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets requires that appropriate recognition criteria are applied to provisions
and contingent assets and liabilities and that the disclosure enables users of the
accounts to understand the nature, timing and amount of such items. A provision
should only be recognised when there 15

. a present obligation ansing from a past event;

*  probability that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; and

. probability that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
FRS12 tightens the rules for the creation of provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets by applying more rigorous criteria.

The Council has made provision in 1999/2000 in respect of insurance claims and legal
actions relating back to the former Strathclyde Regional Council. Glasgow City
Council advised the Council during 1999/2000 of these liabilities, and have provided
supporting details for expenditure against the provision arising during 2000/2001. The
value of the closing provision is £0.33m and we are satisfied that this provision
complies with FRS 12.

In 1999/2000 we reported that the Council had appointed Enviros Aspinwall to perform
a specialist valuation of the waste management landfill sites as part of the Public
Private Partnership (PPP) proposal. At that time they identified that significant costs
would need to be incurred to bring the land up to the required environmental standards.
Following the signature of the waste management PPP contract with Shanks Group ple
in September 2001, the potential hiability for the environmental costs has been largely
assumed by the PPP contractor. The Council has assumed that the estimate of costs not
covered by the contractor will be funded by the Council. This has been disclosed as a
contingent liability in the accounts.

September 2001 ' 11 PrcepiERHOUS(COPERS @



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 173
173

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION III - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.22

3.23

324

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

Application of FRS15 — Tangible Fixed Assets

“FRS 15- Tangible Fixed Assets™ has a significant impact on the way that the Council
accounts for its fixed assets and results in the Council’s accounts moving more into line
with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (“GAAP”).

The main difference between GAAP and previous practice related to the treatment of
depreciation. The most immediate impact is that Local Authorities are no longer able to
use the argument that, as fixed assets are regularly repaired and maintained, no
depreciation needs to be charged on fixed assets.

We have noted that the Council has applied depreciation acress their Building Assets
for the first time during 2000/01, the in-house valuer having attributed wseful economic
lives to these assets to comply with the standard. Building depreciation recorded in the
consolidated revenue account has increased by £3.6 million. While the introduction of
FRS 15 will increase the total depreciation charge in a local authorities accounts, the
accounting is such that charges do not result in higher expenditure that has to be met by
council taxpayers.

Revaluation of Assets

The current system of 1ocal authority capital accounting was implemented from 1 April
1994. As part of this process all assets included on the balance sheet are required to be
formally revalued at least every five years.

In recognition of this, the Council has commenced a rolling programme of revaluations
during 1999/2000 continuing this exercise through the financial year 2000/2001 and
forward into 2001/2002.

During 1999/2000 the Council revalued 82% by value of its fixed asset balance as at 1
April 1999. This consisted of two main exercises performed by the District Valuer and
the Council’s own estates department, both in accordance with the Statement of Asset
Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.

This exercise has been extended during the 2000/2001 financial year, to date the
District Valuer has valued the Council housing stock, and the Council’s ¢states
department has revalued other properties including non-operational properties. Of
these, the Council opted to revalue those classified as ‘major’ properties, i.e. those with
a book value in excess of £1 million during 1999/2000, extending this to include
primary schools and other non-operational properties during 2000/2001. This has
resulted in £44.5 million (125 properties) being subject to valuation during thé year,

September 2001 ' 12 Priceiiire0LsE CoPERS B



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 174
174

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION III - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.29

3.30

3.31

3.32

3.33

3.34

Revaluation of Assets (Continued)

As a result, there remains approximately £38.8 million of the Council’s property and
land (401 properties) which have not been revalued within the last five years. While
the Council has not yet achieved full compliance with local authority capital
accounting guidance, we understand that formal plans are in place to address the
outstanding revaluations during 2001/02. Management and Members should ensure
that the rolling programme of fixed asset revaluations is completed as soon as
practical and that, in future, all assets are revalned at least every five years.

Fixed Asset Register

Our audit tests have identified a number of assets in the fixed asset register with nil
book value, which are not in the Council’s ownership. An exercise to identify and
remove these assets from the register should be undertaken as soon as possible.

Non-operational assets are disclosed in the March 2001 accounts at a carrying value of
£15.5 million. This figure includes £6.8 million in respect of two outdoor centres
leased to independent operators. We consider these assets should be included as
operational assets subject to depreciation and an adjustment should be made to
correct this classification next year.

FRS 17 — Retirement Benefits

The Accounting Standards Board published FRS 17 - Retirement Benefits on 30
November 2000. The standard introduces a completely different methodology of
accounting for pension costs and obligations for employers that operate defined benefit
pension schemes. Up 1o and including 2000/2001 the SORP has required pension
benefits to be accounted for in revenue accounts on the basis of contributions payable
to pension schemes for that year, plus the amounts of benefits payable to pensicners in
the year in relation to pay as you go elements.

The new accounting model for defined benefit schemes in FRS 17 approaches pension
cost accounting from a balance sheet perspective. It works on the premise that a surplus
or deficit in a pension scheme (measured with reference to the fair values of the scheme
assets and liabilities) should be shown on the employer’s balance sheet. The overall
figures in the performance statements reflect the changes in those fair values year on
year. For many organisations this is expected to make material difference to reported
surpluses.

The Council make contributions on behalf of employees into the former Strathelyde
Pension Fund which is administered by Glasgow City Council, and also the Teachers
Pension Fund administered by the Scottish Public Pensions Agency. Both of these
funds provide members of the fund with defined benefits related to pay and service.
The Council will therefore be required to comply with the requirements of FRS 17.

September 2001 ' 13 PrOWIERHOUSE(COPERS §



- Page¥rss

BUTE COUNCIL
ARGYLL & U 175

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION I1I - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FRS 17 — Retirement Benefits {Continued)

3.35 The publication of FRS 17 has given a new impetus to resolving the differences
between the SORP and UK GAAP for pension cost accounting. The standard has a
long implementation period and the new figures do not need to be recognised in the
financial statements until the year ending 31 March 2004. However for organisations
that defer implementing FRS 17 until it becomes mandatory, progressive footnote
disclosures are required for the following:

e For the amounts ended 31 March 2002 — disclosure relating to the closing balance
sheet amounts that would be recognised under the accounting requirements of the
FRS; and
. e For the year ended 31 March 2003 - disclosure relating to opening and closing
balance sheet amounts, together with profit and loss and statement of total
recognised gains and losses amoumnts that would be recognised under the accounting
requirements of the FRS.

3.36 Management should ensure that procedures are implemented in readiness for the
application of the Financial Reporting Standard 17 — Retirement Benefits in
future vears.

Best Value Accounting

3.37 The 200072001 SORP adopts best value accounting, through the implementation of
Section 2 of the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice. The Best Value regime
should have a substantial andl direct impact cn anthorities, with consequent changes in
the way in which the statement of accounts is complied with, and the additional
information that should be included therein.

. 3.38 The most notable changes to the abstract of accounts are as follows:

» Net cost of services to mclude Specific Grant Income;
¢ New line of “Unapportioned Central Overheads™; and
¢ New line of “Corporate and Democratic Core”.

3.39 Tt would appear from our testing that the Council has complied with the revised
requirements arising from the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice. The 2000/2001
consolidated revenne account has adopted the revised disclosure requirements, with the
exception of disclesing a line relating to “unapportioned central pverhead’. The Council
undertook a review of the basis of their overhead charges during 2000/2001, revising
the basis of their charges. They have therefore assessed that there are no unapportioned
overheads within the 2000/2001 abstract of accounts.

September 2001 14 Wm 8




Page 176

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 176

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION III — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.40

341

3.42

Central Support Recharges

The Council apportions the central administration costs to individual service
departments in an effort to reflect the full cost of providing the service, We reported in
1999/2000 that the structure of both service and central administration departments had
changed significantly during the pasl few years and we recommended that
management, in light of these changes, should reconsider the basis of allocating central
administration costs.

This exercise was commenced through 1999/2000, and work continued on the basis of
apportionment through 2000/2001, with the model being applied to the 2000/2001
abstract of accounts.

Our review of the new allocation process, which is based on a number of spreadshests,
concludes that it appears to be labour intensive to apportion the service department
costs in line with the agreed service level agreements. Consideration should be given
to automating this process further, improving the timely allocation of overhead
charges through the 2001/2002 financial year.

September 2001 15 PWOU@PERS g



Page 177

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 177

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION IV - FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

4,01

4.62

4.03

4.04

4.05

4.06

4.07

Overview
We have discharged our audit responsibility in this area, principally by reviewing the

monitoring, application and certain computer controls in the main financial systems
and assessing the effectiveness of internal audit .

Interim Management Letters and Follow Up of Previgns Final Report

As part of our normal audit process for 2000/2001, we have submitted previously two
Management Letters. These letters identified recommendations for improvements in
financial controls and accounting and processing systems which were operating
within the Council. Only the more significant of these recommendations require to be
brought to the attention of Members and these are detailed in the following
paragraphs.

We also identified that management had not yet fully implemented all of the agreed
recommendations made in our 199972000 Final Report to Members. Of the 19
recommendations, 14 had been actioned for implementation at the year end, with the
remaining 5 due to be addressed during 2001/2002.

Budget Setting and Budgetary Control

In order to properly review and manage the operations of the Council, 1t 1s essential
that a comprehensive budgetary control system is in place. This system should ensure
that timely reporting of financial performance takes place at all levels and action is
taken to investigate and act on variations from budget. Budget holders shouid receive
timely and accurate information to allow this. As part of our andit, we ascertain and
assess the operation of the Council’s budget setting and budgetary control
arrangements. Our comments below relate to our findings prior to the year end.

As in 1999/2000 we noted that the Council’s monthly budgetary control reports
included a comparison between the actual expenditure to date and budgeted
expenditure to date. In our Interim Management Letier we made a number of
recommendations that could be further developed and may improve current budget
monitoring.

In particular, at the time of our review (November 2000) we noted that the Transport
and Property DSO had only reported on unfavourable vanances, and that the
Education Departrment’s committee finance report had only explained the total
variance when this appeared to relate to variances across a number of budget lines.

In addition we also noted that there was no formal reporting of the variances arising
from the Corporate and Democratic Core. Members should monitor management’s
progress in impiementing the recommendations made to improve both the level
of financial information provided to members, and the formai documentation of
actions arising from financial investigations.

September 2001 16 Mwm 9



Page 178

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 178

Final Report to Members 20002001

SECTION IV — FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
(CONTINUCED)

4.08

4.09

4.10

411

Bank Reconciliations

Since 1998/99 the Finance Department has made considerable efforts to improve
monthly bank reconciliation processes. This was noted in cur 1999/2000 Final Report
to Members, and during 2000/2001 we have continued to observe an improvement in
the reconciliation process with guidance notes on the reconciliations and a
reconciliation pro-forma being rolled out during December 2000.

However, we noted the following in respect of the year end reconciliations of the
Income and Housing Benefit bank accounts:

° an audit adjustment totalling £162,622, representing a movement between bank
and creditor balances, was required at 31 March 2001. The impact of
reconciling items on year end cut off should be formally monitored in future
years;

o elements of the Housing benefit bank reconciliation were not supported with
detailed back up until after audit enquiries. It was not initially clear, therefore,
whether reconciliation had been achieved.

We acknowiedge the improvements made this year in the overall bank
recoaciliation processes and recommend that the issues identified above are
addressed for 2001/2002.

Financial Systems

We have evaluated significant systems and associated internal controls operating
within the Couneil to help form our opinion on the statement of accounts and have
provided management with our comments on these systems and controls in our
Management Letters. In practice we cannot examine every financial activity and
accounting procedure, and we cannot substitute for management's responsibility to
maintain adequate systems of internal control. It therefore needs to be recognised that
we may not have identified all control weaknesses that may exist.

September 2001 ' 17 PRICEAAERHOL @DPERS |



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 179
179

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION IV — FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
(CONTINUED}

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

Financial Systems (Continued)

The main findings from our review were as follows :

A number of key control weaknesses have been identified from our review of
the Council’s general computer controls, principally relating to the absence of
documented procedures at a departmental level, the absence of a disaster
recovery plan and weaknesses in the physical security of The Graham
Williamson IT Centre. In addition we noted that formal change control
procedures were not being followed, and recomunended that the controls
surrounding the security administration of Windows NT and Unix required to
be strengthened.

A number of routine control weaknesses have been identified from our review
of the purchases and payables system, principally the absence of sufficient
evidence of key reconciliations being performed, and limited formal review of
reconciliations currently being undertaken.

Controls sarrounding security administration procedures need to be
strengthened for the Roads and Transport costing system.

Arrangements designed to prevent Fraud and Corruption

To ensure proper stewardship of funds, it is essential that the Council has adequate
arrangements in place to minimise the risk of fraud and corruption. These
arrangements should include corporate policies in respect of the prevention of fraud
and corruption on a Council wide basis as well as detailed controls at an operational

level.

On a cyclical basis we seek assurance that certain policies and procedures exist within
the Council relating to the prevention of fraud and corruption. We also rely on the
detailed work performed by internal audit on the control environment. Specifically,
during 2000/2001, we reviewed the work of internal audit and followed up
recommendations made in previous year’s management letters.

It is not our policy to repeat the findings of intemal audit, but rather to raise with
management additional matters that have come to our attention during the conduct of
the andit.

September 2001 ' 18 PricendieryousE(CoPers @



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 180
180

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION 1V - FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
(CONTINUED) '

4.16

4.17

418

4.19

4.20

4.21

Arrangements designed to prevent Fraud and Corruption (Continued)

We must emphasise, however, that the responsibility for the prevention and detection
of fraud or corruption lies with management and our work does not remove the
possibility that fraud or corruption may have occurred and remained undetected.

The Council does not have formal arrangements in place to enable staff to raise
concerns through a defined channel with assured confidentiality (“A Whistleblowing
Policy”). The abgence of such policies and procedures increases the risk of matters of
fraud and corruption coming to light and not being properly dealt with, increasing the
Council’s exposure to adverse publicity and potential litigation. We recommend
that consideration should be given to implementing formal procedures for staff
to raise their concerns over potential fraud and irregularity.

In addition as part of our audit, we have submitted to the Accounts Commission fraud
and corruption returns detailing instances of fraud during the year as notified to us by
the Couneil. There were no matters reported on this return which we require to bring
to the attention of Members,

Audit Committee

“Local Government Reorganisation and the Stewardship of Public Funds” published
by the Accounts Commission encouraged councils to establish a mechanism
incorporating the principles of Audit Committees. In a document published around
the same time {“Corporate Governance A Framework for Public Service Bodies™),
CIPFA also recommended that public service bodies should establish Audit
Committees. A report of the Commission on Lecal Government and The Scottish
Parliament has also commented on the advantages of an Audit Committee as a means
of providing independent reassurance to councils and their electorate that resources
are used properly and cost effectively.

We are pleased to note that the Audit Committee was established at the Council
meeting of 29 June 2000 and met for the first time on 13 November 2000. Tt appears
to us that the Audit Committee has addressed the appropriate areas in its first cycle of
meetings.

Audit Committee Members should continue to develop the role of the Aundit
Committee within the Council, monitoring Management’s progress in the
implementation of internal and external audit recommendations,

Septemiber 2001 ' 19 PRCEWATERHOUSE(EOPERS 8



Page 181

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 181

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION IV - FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

{CONTINUED)
Internal Audit
422 As part of our normal audit approach, we have reviewed the work performed by the

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

Council’s Internal Audit fitnction which is provided by the Council’s in-house team.
We considered this function from the main perspectives of audit planning, approach,
execution and reporting.

Early in 2000/01, it was recognised that internal audit resources within the Council
were likely to be insufficient to provide adequate coverage of financial systems and
controls, sufficient to meet external audit expectations. With the agreement of the
Council and Audit Scotland, we were asked to undertake additional audit work on
systems and controls, both to provide assurance to the Council and for external audit
reliance. As a result of the combined efforts of internal audit and ourselves, we
consider that appropriate audit coverage of financial systems has heen achieved in
2000/01.

We have carnied out a review of Internal Audit under our value for money work
conducted in the financial year, concentrating on the Council’s arrangements for
internal audit. The summary of our findings from this review are set out in Section
VI — Value for Money.

In view of the value for money study findings and the temporary staffing
arrangements during 2000/01, the Finance Department are currently undertaking a
strategic review of Internal Audit service, and how they can deliver their annual
operationzal plan on an ongoing basis. Professor Arthur Midwinter of Strathclyde
University has conducted an independent review of the internal audit service and has
presented his findings to the full Council.

We understand that Members and Officers have already considered the options
available to provide a sustainable Internal Audit Service. A partaership with a
private sector provider has been identified as the preferred option and Members
should monitor the early implementation of these arrangements.

Section 19 of the Social Security Administration (Frand} Act 1997

Section 19 of the Social Security Administration (Fraud) Act 1997, which requires
claimants to supply National Insurance Numbers (NINOs) and evidence that these
numbers were properly allocated to them was applied to Housing Benefit/Council Tax
Benefit on 6 September 1999,

However, in order to ease authorities’ application of Section 19, the DSS made
provision for authorities to phase in the application of Section 19 for renewal cases
only over a two year period. All new cases still had to comply with the requirements
of Section 19 from 6 September 1999,

September 2001 ' 20 PRICEVATRRHOUSE COPERS B



Page 182

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
182

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION IV — FINANCIAL SYSTEMS AND INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
(CONTINUED)

4.29

4.30

Section 19 of the Socjal Security Administration {Fraud) Act 1997 (Continued)

The responsibility for ensuring that the correct Section 19 procedures are In place
rests with local authority Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit management. Any
benefit paid on claims made on or afier 6 Sepiember 1999, where the necessary NINO
information has not been collected, 1s an unlawfuf payment and therefore not eligible
for subsidy,

In 1999/2000 we reported that the Council’s compliance with Section 19 of the Social
Security Administration (Fraud) Act 1997 would be reviewed through our detailed
testing of the 1999/2000 Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit grant claim. This
sample testing indicated that the Section 19 provisions had been applied to Council
Tax Benefit, and we were advised that the Council would introduce compliance with
the Act to Housing Benefit during 2000/2001. Sample testing of the 2000/2001
Benefit grant claim indicates that this has now been implemented.

September 2001 ' 21 PUCMNEM{OUS!@DPERS o



Page 183

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
183

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION V¥ - BEST VALUE

5.01

5.02

5.03

5.04

5.05

Introduction

Best Value was introduced in Scotland in 1997, and a Best Value Task Force was
established to develop the framework and timetable for implementing Best Value in
Scottish councils. The Best Value Task Force included representatives of The
Scottish Executive, the Convention of Scottish Local Authorities (“CoSLA”) and the
Accounts Commission.

As part of the auditor’s statutory responsibilities, we are required to satisfy ourselves
whether a local authority has in place appropriate management arrangements (o

secure value for money in its use of resources. With the introduction of the Best
Value regime for councils, the Performance Management and Planning (“PMP”) audit
has been used to review the progress that councils are making in implementing the
framework set out by the Best Value Task Force.

Performance Management and Planning Andit

In 2000/01, the PMP audit (“PMP2”) has heen carried out in accordance with
guidance issued by Audit Scotland and has been applied at corporate level and within
three services selected for review through agreement between the Council and
ourselves. Separate reports have been prepared in respect of these corporate and
SErvice Teviews.

A number of factors were considered in deciding on the service areas for review,
including the organisaticnal structure of the Council, the existence of a distinct
service plan, clear management and reporting structures, the size of the service area
and the scope of completed Best Value reviews, The following service areas were
reviewed :

° Personmnel Services - Health and Safety;
° Transportation and Property Services - Transport Services; and
. Corporate and Legal - Registration Services.

Each service area selected for audit was required to prepare a written submission that
covered ten criteria grouped under the four PMP gquestions. This formed the basis for
the audit.

September 2001 22 PRCYWHRHOUSE(COPERS ©



Page 184

ARGYLL & BUTE COQUNCIL 184

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION V - BEST VALUE (CONTINUED)

Performance Management and Planning Audit (Continued)

5.06 The results of each service review are summarised below :

Overall Assessment of Status

Health
And Transport | Registration

Safety Services Services
Clear leadership for a Best Value approach is A B B
provided by clected members, the Service
Head and the senior management team.
We understand the needs, expectations and A B B
priorities of all our stakeholders.
We carry out effective Best Value reviews. B B B
We have detailed and realistic plans for A B B
achieving our goals.
We make best use of our people. A C B
We make best use of our assets. A C B
We have sound financial control and A B B
reporting,
We actively support continnous improvement. B B B
We tnonitor and control our overal B B B
performance.
We have an effective approach to public A B C
performance reporting,
Key :
A Sound approaches are largely in place in line with Best Value expectations.
B Many elements of a sound approach are in place, but with scope for some improvements.
C  Asignificant level of improvement is required and this is adequately recognised in the

improvement actions.

D A significant level of improvement is required and this is not adequately recognised in

the improverment actions. '

5.07  Thekey issues identified from these reports are summarised below. The Council

should :

o  develop a more structured framework for reporting to stakeholders and

the public;

. develop a system of performance indicators to enable the Services’

performance to be monitored;

» involve stakeholders in future Best Value reviews;
»  develop and formalise benchmarking information with similar providers;

and

»  develop effective monitoring arrangements to enable management to
progress Best Value within the Services.

September 2001 ' 23

PrIcesiERHOUSE( COPERS @



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 185
185

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION V - BEST VALUE

5.08

5.09

5.10

5.11

5.12

313

Performance Management and Planning Audit {(Continued)

Members should make themselves aware of those areas categorised C and seek
regular updates to ensure management undertake the required corrective action
to meet Best Value expectations.

Prior Year Performance Management and Planning Audits

In 1999/2000, three service areas were selected for PMP audit (“PMP1”) and each
was required to prepare a written submisston covering the PMP criteria. The written
submissions focused primarily on the extent to which the services met the PMP
criteria in 1999/2000 and resulted in the production of a list of planned improvements
to the services’ PMP framework.

One of the core criteria for Best Value is the achievement of continuous improvement
and, as part of the PMP2 review, each service’s progress in achieving the
improvements agreed in PMP! has been reviewed.

The PMP follow up review is intended to assess :

. the extent to which a PMP framework is in place; and

° whether improvement actions have been identified to address areas of weakness
and what progress has been made in implementing planned improvement
actions.

Separate reports have been produced in respect of the implementation of agreed
improvement actions for Non-Domestic Rates, Sheltered Housing and Estates
Management. The key findings from these reporis are as follows :

develop and formalise benchmarking information with similar providers;
implement a Performance Development Review programme for all staff;
develop and report performance indicators to members; and

arrange the development of clear evalnation criteria for assessing results of
consultation exercises, identifying the required resources in advance and
introducing SMART objectives to measure the success of each exercise.

Members should ensure that those actions agreed by Management in relation to
our Best Value reviews are implemented.

September 2001 ' 24 PRCEWATRHOLSE(COPERS @



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 186
186

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION V1 - VALUE FOR MONEY

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

Introduction

As part of cur responsibilities under the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, we
consider the overall arranpements that have been made by the Council for securing
value for money (economy, efficiency and effectiveness) from its resources.

In terms of this responsibility, the following studies have been undertaken in
relation to 2000/2001:

. Schools Property Risk Management;
s Review of Internal Audit; and
. Administration in Schools.

In addition, the following two studies from previous years are in the final stages of
completion:

. Rent Arrears management; and
. Refuse Collection,

2000/2001 VFM Studies

Schools Property Risk Management

In January 1997, the Accounts Commission published “a safer place: property risk
management in schools” (' a safer place™), reporting the findings of a national
value for money study of property risks in schools. That report:

. Identified that crime 1s the major risk to school property; at that time, councils
were losing some £12 million a year from property crime in schools;

. Encouraged councils to adopt a corporate commitment to risk management,
and

o Set out a framework for action, making specific recommendations on how

councils should reduce avoidable losses by taking steps to protect schools
most vulnerable to property crime.

The study carried out in 2000/2001 follows up the 1997 study for Argyl! and Bute
Council, using the Accounts Commission template, providing an up to date picture
of schools property crime, and reviewing the council’s progress in implementing the
recommendations from “a safer place”.

September 2001 25 PRICEWARHOUSHEOPERS @



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 187
187

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION VI - VALUE FOR MONEY (CONTINUED)

6.06

6.07

6.08

6.09

6.10

Schools Property Risk Management {continued

It was identified that Argyll and Bute Council has clearly implemented a significant
proportion of the 1997 study’s recommendations, and this may have contributed to
the Council’s suceess in reducing the level of property related crime. The national
report indicates that the Council lies within the lowest 10 councils for vandalism
costs per school.

However, many of the approaches and actions recommended in "« safer place”
remain valid, In particular, 1t was identified that the Council should:

o Strengthen its organisational commitment to risk management, giving
consideration to reporting to counciliors the progress made in reducing property
related nisks.

e Decvelop their corporate support for local solutions, in particular encouraging all
its schools and local commumities to develop a shared understanding of the need
to protect schools frony property crime, and support any tocal action that is
taken.

A draft report that provides detailed audit findings and recommendations will be
issned in the near future.

Review of Internal Audit

In conducting this study, the Commission wished to help councils achieve Best
Value from their internal audit arrangements. The main objectives were to:

e Assess the extent to which the council’s internal andit services meet the
standards of good practice set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice for internal
audit in local government (“the Code™),

Promote best practice in internal andit; and
Make recommendations that will help the council to develop a Best Value
internal audit service.

Based on the results of the study, the Commission has classified each council in one
of the following 4 bands, according io their level of compliance with the Code:

Band 1: Councils that most fully comply with the Code;
Band 2: Councils that generally comply with the Code;

Band 3: Councils that partially comply with the Code; and
Band 4: Councils that generally do not comply with the Code.

September 2001 ' 26 PRCWAERICUSE(COPERS @



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 188
188

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION VI - VALUE FOR MONEY (CONTINUED)

6.11 Argyll and Bute Council was classified as band 4, the main findings being as
follows:

Internal Audit’s strategic plan does not establish a clear link between the
Council’s corporate aims and objectives and those of internal audit.

Internal Audit does not have up to date documentation of the Council’s main
systems.

The lack of internal audit experience amongst the internal audit staff is a major
source of difficultics. The staff often lack understanding of the objectives of the
work they are undertaking and as a result, the audit work completed is
inadequate to address the control objectives.

From our review of Internal Audit working papers, we noted that they do not
contain adequate details to support findings, conclusions and recommendations.
In particular, there is no clear link between the work recorded on working papers
and the points raised in reports.

The Internal Audit Manager does not 1ssue a formal report to the responsible
finance officer on the basis for demonstrating compliance with Section 95 of the
Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

6.12  These findings were relayed to Audit Scotland, who produced a national report in
August 2001 that summarises the findings of the studies carried out at all other
Scottish local authoritics. No council complied fully with the Code, although four
counciis were found to comply most fully with over 85% compliance,

6.13  The key findings identified in the national report are summarised as follows:

Internal andit units comply most fully with the Code with regard to maintaining
independence, managing the controlling their work and prometing and
maintaining professional standards;

Areas of the Code where many councils need to improve include clarifying
terms of reference, basing internal audit work on a comprehensive risk
assessment, reporting and follow up arrangements and meeting staff training and
development needs;

Further opportunities for improvement of internal audit services exist in areas
such as the introduction of andit committecs, expansion in the use of information
technology and more effective management of resources, and

All internal audit services should embrace a culture of continuous improvement.

6.14 A draft report which provides detailed audit findings and recommengations will be
issued separately.

September 2001 ' 27 PRCBAAERHOUSH D0PERS



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 189
189

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION VI - VALUE FOR MONEY (CONTINUED)

0.15

6.16

6.17

Administration in Schools

Good administration is essential to the smooth running of Scotland’s schools. If
administration is not handled efficiently and effectively, teachers may be diverted
unnecessarily from tasks which are central to teaching and to raising attainment.
This study was based on “Time for Teaching” which was carried out jointly by the
Accounts Commission for Scotland and HM Inspectors of Schools. It looked at the
ways in which administration is handied in schools, using the three questions below
as a focus for the study :

Question Tmplications
1. Are there administrative tasks Could simply doing the tasks in a different
currently done by teachers and other staff way save time or increase its effectiveness?
which could give better value for money by | An aspect of this question is whether a task
using different methods? or part of a task is needed at all,
2. Are there administrative tasks which | Could task be handled more efficiently or
could give better VFM with the use of effectively by using 1CT more or
information and communication differently? Is there enough equipment of
technology? the right type?
3. Are there administration tasks which | Do teachers need to be involved or could
could give better VFM if done by other other staff carry out the work as effectively
people? and at lower cost?

Improving administration in schools was identified by the Accounts Commission as
a study followimg consultation with councils in Scotland. The study aims to
encourage and assist councils to look at the ways in which administration is handled
in schools. It focused on administration, in particular, the time it requires from
teachers - time that could be spent developing matenals, planning for lessons and
other initiatives aimed at increasing attainment.

The report recommends that councils tackle at cach of three levels:
¢ Working with schools;

s Reviewing education department policies and practices; and
» Working with other Council departments and external agencies.

September 2001 ‘ 28 PROGWARHOUSETOPERS B



Page 190

GYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
AR 190

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION VI - VALUE FOR MONEY (CONTINUED)

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

Administration in Schopls (Continued)

The Accounts Cormmession provided the Council with a choice of how to approach
the self-assessment process. Either to use the methodology contained in the
Agceounts Commission’s guide on Time for Teaching — Improving Administration in
Scottish Schools or to develop its own methodology to address the Time for
Teaching recommendations. The Council chose to use the self-assessment process
material contained in the guide and use the results to develop an action plan.

The audit consisted of reviewing the Council’s arrangements for developing an
action plan which addresses the report’s recommendations. The purpose of our
review was to :

¢ Discuss with key personnel their duties and responsibilities with respect to the
self assessment process and the development of an action plan.

s Review a sample of evidence provided by the Council in support of their self
assessment and assess whether the evidence supparts the Council’s self
assessment.

Our key findings were that :.

o The self assessment had been performed in accordance with Audit Scotland
guidance;

s Each action identified had been assessed against SMART criteria (specific,
measurable, actionable, realistic and time based).

1999/2000 Value for Money Reviews

In our Final report to Members for 1999/2000, we advised Members of progress in
respect of the reviews carried out. The cutrent status of each review is as follows:

e Rent Arrears Management — Draft report submitted to the Council; and
¢ Refuse Collection — Draft report submitted to the Council.

Members should ensure that those actions agreed by Management in relation
to our Value for Money reviews are implemented.

September 2001 29 PROWAERHOUSE(COPERS @



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 191
191

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTJON VII - PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that, as far as practicable, the
information which is published is complete and accurate.

There are 65 performance indicators in total, all of which have been graded by us as
either ‘A’ or ‘X’ as follows:

A - The daia appears to be reliable in material respects

X - The lack of available systems, and/or rcliable data, and/or decision rules has
resulted in the authority producing information which, in the auditor’s view
is unreliable.

A number of X’ gradings were allocated to the following indicators:

Benefits administration — Gross administration costs
Benefits administration — Applicants processed within required time
Housing — Response Repairs

Libraries — Stock turnover

Libraries — Use of iibraries

Roads & Lighting — Traffic light repairs response
Roads & Lighting — Street light repairs response

Social Work — Respite care

Social Work — Criminal Justice — Social inquiry reports
Social Work — Criminal Justice — Probation

Social Work — Criminal Justice — Community Service

The main reasons for these ‘X’ gradings may be summarised as follows:

. The system could not provide an adequate audit trail; or
Council staff could not provide back up details; or
Supporting documentation was not always retained; or
Council staff failed to compile the mdicator in accordance with the Accounts
Commission defimitions.

In 1999/2000 and 1998/99 we reported a number of qualified perforrance
indicators and made a number of recommendations in our Performance Indicator
Management Letters.

These letters highlighted that there was a need to raise the profile of the performance
indicator process through g greater emphasis on improved co-ordination
arrangements, better quality supporting docurnentation, improved monitoring'and a
greater commitment at a departmental level.

The results of the 2000/01 process highlights that 11 indicators were graded as “X”,
of which 4 were indicators previously graded “X”, four were new indicators and one
changed from “A” in the previous year to “X”. Our recommendations for
improvements in this process are still valid this year.

September 2001 ' 30 PRICEVATERHOUSR(GOPERS B



Page 192

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
192

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION VII - PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (CONTINUED)

7.08  We have been informed that the Council Management Team has developed a
Performance Management and Planning Framework that will be rolied out across
the Council during 2001/2002. This framework will encourage departments to
incorporate both statutory and local performance indicators within their service
plans and report upon how well the service is performing against these on a
quarterly basis.

7.09 Members should review the arrangements within individual departments for
ensuring that gunalifications on performance indicators are removed for
2001/2002.

September 2001 ' 3 PRCWAERIOUSE(COPERS @



Page 193

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL
193

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION VIII - LEGAL MATTERS

8.01

8.02

8.03

5.04

8.05

Introduction

We plan and perform our audit procedures recognising that non-compliance by the
Council with statute or regulations may materially affect the financial statements. In
addition, as part of our normal audit process we are alert to the legality of certain
significant transactions and events with a financial consequence.

In considering the arrangements put in place by the Council with reference to legality,
we have focused our attention on significant areas of decision making within the
Council which may involve unlawful expenditure or courses of action which may be
illegal and which might lead to a loss or deficiency.

Ii is emphasised that the responsibility for assessing the legality of such matters rests
with management and that by reporting in this Section, we do not purport to offer
advice to the Council or any other party.

During 2000/2001, we have assessed the Council’s arrangements as they relate to
legality by :

) reviewing general arrangements in place for ensuring the legality of
transactions, eg, the role of the monitoring officer;

o  reviewing the minutes of the Council’s principal committees;

»  holding discussions with officers;

o having regard to the Council’s implementation of significant new legislation or
statutory requirements;

e taking account of advice issned by the Accounts Commission and Audit
Scotland; and

. reviewing statutory requirements concerning the accounts.

In addition, specific national issues which we considered during 2000/2001 related to:

DLO/DSO statutory targets;
Termination payments;

Debt restructuring;

PPP; and

Electors” Questions/Objections.

September 2001 ' 32 PROAAERHOUSECOPERS B



ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 194
194

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION VIII - LEGAL MATTERS (CONTINUED)

8.06

8.07

8.09

8.10

8.11

8.12

R.13

DLO/DSO Statutory Targets

We reviewed all the Council’s DLOs/DSOs for the achievement of their statutory
financial objective, ie, to break even. This is detailed in Section I1I.

Fermination Payments

Our review included testing of a sample of individuals who had lefi the Ceouncil
during 2000/2001 to identify if such payments existed. In addition, we also reviewed
certain individual redundancy packages to ensure that these complied with standard
conditions. This sample testing did not identify any specific termination payments
which were outwith standard level authority redundancy packages.

Debt Restructuring

During the 1999/2000 and 2000/0] financial years the Council refinanced a number
of their long term loans to take advantage of lower interest rates. The Council takes
professional advice from their brokers in respect of these transactions.

The restructuring of debt often incurs either a premium or discount on the repayment
of the original principal. We can confirm that the Council has complied with
CIPFA’s guidance on the accounting treatment of premiums, which states that the
premium should be amortised over the term of the new loan.

Public Private Partnerships

In 1999/2000 we reported that the Department of Development and Environmental
Services was at an advanced stage of negotiating the Council’s public private
partnership proposal for wasle management within Argyll & Bute.

[n recent years the Government has undertaken a fundamental reappraisal of waste
management policy in an effort to ensure that waste is treated in an environmentally
sustainable manner. This policy has sigmficant cost implications for the Council,
which until recently used landfill as the cheapest and easiest method of waste
disposal. From October 1996 the government imposed a landfill tax on all waste
currently taken to landfill sites and stricter regulatory standards have been introduced
in relation to the landfill of waste.

The Council estimated that to meet future environmental targets a significant amount
of capital investment would be required and submitted an outline business case to the
Scottish Office in June 1998,

September 2001 33 PRICEWARHOUSE(COPERS B



Page 195

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 195

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION VIII - LEGAL MATTERS (CONTINUED)

8.14

8.15

8.16

817

8.18

8.19

Public Private Partnerships (Continued)

The last two vears have seen a number of important developments with regard to the
accounting treatment of private finance initiative (“PFI”) transactions. In May 1997,
the “Bates” report on PFI acknowledged that uncertainty surrounding the accounting
treatment was a barier to progress and recommended that the Treasury should issue

interim accounting guidance, pending the deliberations of the Accounting Standards

Board (“ASB"). The Treasury obliged and published PF1 Technical Note No 1 on 29
September 1997 (the “Interim Guidance™).

Subsequently, following the publication of the ASB Application Note in September
1998 the Treasury has developed new accounting guidance, in the form of PFI
Technical Note 1 (Revised) “How to Account for PFI Transactions” (the “*TN"). The
objective of the TN is to complement the Application Note by providing additional
practical guidance for certain public sector bodies on key aspects of the Application
Note. The TN was issued in final form on 24 June 1999.

The introduction of the Application Note and the TN has meant that we have had to
consider the separability of the contract, whether SSAP 21 or FRS 5 applies and
assess certain Treasury determined quantitative, qualitative and other indicators of
risk transfer. We have reviewed details of the Council’s preferred option and have
been able to concur with view taken by the Council’s independent financial advisers
that the project should not be capitalised on the Council’s balance sheet.

Data Protection Act

The main provision of the Data Protection Act 1998 came into force on 1 March
2000. The Act implements the proposals of the EU Data Protection Directive
(95/46/EC) and establishes a single overall data protection framework based on the
existing data protection laws. It aims to achieve a balance between an individual’s
rights to privacy in the handling of information about them, and information users’
needs in processing information to provide the services which individuals require.

As part of our audit testing we assessed the Council’s arrangements to assess whether
arrangements appeared 10 be in place for:

o Staff dealing with personal information should be aware of the need for
compliance with the Act; and

o A specific officer should have been designated responsible for data protection
within the Council and should ensure that all data processing within the
organisation is in compliance with the terms of the Act.

QOur review 1ndicated that the Council has appointed a data protection officer who has
taken a number of steps to address the implications arising from the Act. In particular
we have noted that a series of seminars have been held within each department, with
leaflets being distributed to employees to notify them of their responsibilities under
the Act. In addition we have been imformed that staff induction has been revised to
include detals of the Act.

September 2001 34 PRCWAERHOUST COPERS @



Page 196
ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL 196

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

SECTION VIII - LEGAL MATTERS (CONTINUED}

Electors’ Questions/Objections

8.20 We did not receive any electors’ questions or objections during 2000/2001 that
required external audit investigation.

September 2001 35 D ” RoreRs @



B SO

1007 J3quaydag

‘uoneordde s uo pansst 9oUepIng
Iay)iny Jo Junossr Jurye; pue ‘pung ‘s1ead aInry u sjysuag
Fununosoy uolsusJ apAPYIens s uonatnfuos WawRINAy — £ 1 prepueig Suniodey reroweur
Jo pesy ul L1 s £[dwos o) pannbaa 3y jo uoneadde ay Jof ssautpeal Ui pajuswapdun
Suodup) 1594 20n1g] | SUOIOR A1) 0) USAIT 2q [ UONBISPISUO)) ale samnpasold jer)) SISUS PINoYs JUSISZeuey 0¢'¢
"TB3A 1XaU UOIBIISSE[D
IoIBUIpIo-07) SIY} 1931102 0] apBW 3( pinoys wsunsnipe
Foug dep ue pue uonern21dap o) 10a{gns sasse euoneado se
ZO/E/1€ | nowry Aumuo] | ZoOZ/1007 SULIND N0 PLLED 3q [[IA SIYL | PSPNIOUI 3¢ P[NOYS Sa1j1ad I00PINO0 7 JG} ISPISUOD I€E
lotpurpio ‘a1q1ssod 52 Uoos
-0 Boag den TOOZ/T00T | 8¢ uayeMspuUn aq PINOYS 13151331 AY) WI0L] anjeA }00q
N Z0/5/1€ |  moury Auruo] Juump N0 PILLIED 3( [[iM MIIASI SI[], [TU Jim §)9SSE DAOWIAI PUB AJNUSPI 0] 2SEIIIX UV 0f'E
§31815g
UV YOIN "SIB3A JAL} AIIAD JSEI] | Pan[RASI 211 §)3S5E
- Fumumonoy Qep | e vy w ey pue [eonjoeld se ucos se pajoidwod
o & Jo peay] 01 dn 1g3no1q 31e SUOEN[EAI 2I05UD O} S1 SUOTIENIRASI Jasse pax[] Jo swiueiFord Jurjos
Q™  3wodugy 1sapm sonag | enupuo? [ix awaeidord uonenjeass sy 3Y) Jey) 2INSUS PNOYS SISqUIS[A PUe JUSTIZeuey 6Z'¢c
"paimbai
3 AW £9AMS [RINJONIIS B 213YyMm §)asse
ATLUAPL 0) padSe aq [[14 SISNBA “ISAMOH
sape)sy "IN PALLIED ST UONENJEA B ST DB
U YN AQAINS [RIN)>0S B e Lued 0] eonoerd "JXSU 91f) 0} 1234 SUO WY SIN[BA JOSSE UL
dununcody | jousiyp uonenpea sjduns e o) pasoddo se | suonemon[ JUISTUHUILL 0) MATA B 1M ‘SjuamIRdU
SuOnEnpeAal JO peay | SALAMS [RINIONDS P3[IR)AP SIOW WOTJ JNSal BUIATNUapI pue suoneneaal sulfjo: Surum)go
Z00Z/100T7 101 1Sap, @onIg 100Z/0007 W1 paynuapt siusuredun oy 10] sampasold ay) 1apIsu0sas pnoys JustuaSeue 8¢
Japlunuo’y "MAIAD] A1) WOy Suisie
UpnY Bununoxy ANNWUIO)) NIPAY 91} 0) PORIGHS SUONEPUSLILIIOIS] IDPISUOD pUe WAsASs Surioymont
0} dunodaa Jo puay aq [im ssacoxd Surzoyuour 323png 193pnq uaamd 2y 0} sjuswascrdur Butaamoe
Burodu 1S3 Sorug A uT syuouraaoadwit uo sypodar ssexdord | ur ssarfoud s yuawaFeurm Jopuow pnoys SISqHISA LO'E
nonejuaurapday ANUAIIIY
Aueqgang | J0) pqiswodsay] uony parady ANSS] uoday
UElJ uohoy 100Z/000 s13quiapy] 03 proday] [emy
1 xipuaddy TIONNOQD ALNG ® TIADHV




Page 198

© SO hsnoHIMDR

1007 Joquyydag
pajou A1e pastel sutod Jaaamop] ‘I
juatafeue[y] | unpAM Gonow [RINSNpUI AU} jo 2duanbasuos
Buisnof] jo pesy € 5B AJUIBl 95018 JUNOIIE UE]
v/N | TBOIABIA] pIeuo(] Hysuag 3ursnoy a3 Funoagye ansst Ay,
"T0/100T 10J passalppe
3upunodoy 1B 2A0QE PI[IBIOP STUIOdIOYS S T8N PUSHUOIL
pua Ieak Jo peay "PUS JeaK JXE JUNoIde swedut 10y ased puE £3$53301d UOTIBIIOUODAI YURY [[BIDA0 3}
Z00T/100Z 10 15940 2onIg] 2Yel s ampa2oad JJo-Imd JO MAIASI 7 | UT Jeak SIy) peu sjuauwaaoldiul o) 3papmotnoe o 01'¥
“Jusunedap
gora ul pajusw|dwr 3q 03 21mbox
SULIO) IO saBueyd asay] 'Juuoyrrow 128png Jo
1208pnq 10§ yed se paonpoxd uopeIIPUNIOP 0 paimbar
JIRISWI} Im 3 [[14 s2Tueyd JO JaqUNY & SULIO)UOW
muum_?ouum uj 1019211(] Yoes] 1afpng Jo moaraal s woiy Fursiry
‘suopednsoAu| feroueUl] woy Susie
SUCLOE JO UONBJUSLIMO0P [EWLIO) L)) pue ‘SIaqUIDIE
SN0, ) fupunmoooy 0} pap1aoid UCTIRELIONHI [BIDUBUI} JO [2A2] A1j} PO
upny o1 JopeoH L0 € ered 01 asuodsar ut pauIno sUonoe | aAoxduil 0] SpEI SUONEPUATIWODT oY) Sunuowajdu
wodax Fuiodupy 189 2oy Aq paraA0a aq J[wm ssaadord jo Buipodoy | w ssarfoad s justunTeuew 10IU0W PIOYS SIS LOF
"Iea A [BIOURUY TOOT/100T
Fununoooy ‘padofaaap | sy y3noxy) ssFieys pealjias0 Jo UOTIEOO[[E Afaun) 3}
Jo pesy duroq st waisAs pazuandwoo e oo | Soraordw ‘rayymy ssasoxd s8reyosy woddng znuan
TO0T/E/1E 159 2onIg suoneso[[e poddns [enuad daour 0} ueld aly) BUnBWIOINE 0] USATT 3g PIROYS UOTRIIPISUOY we
uopwyudmapdury UIIIIY
Neqang | J10) qqrsuodsay uondy padidy INSS| uoday

ug[] wol)oy
1 xipuaddy

100Z/0007 S52quIdTy ©) poday eurg
TIDNNOD A1N9 ¥ TIADUY




B SEJ0TNOHIMDR ]

1007 Jaquaydag

Page 199
199

digsioued
Jo uonemp
Jeadk ¢ pue
wowdoaaap
Jo pouad
10y 3uodu

guro3ug

VI'N

uR|J WOV
1 xipuaddy

aosueui,|
Jo 10132313
10331001
uemalg

20IUIWO) NpNY

§301A12§ [e827]
2 aezodio]
Jo 1010311(]
Memalg 1981N

*SOPNWIUO.) NPy YL 0] papIgns aq
11 Juawrdojasap o) uo spodar ssasfor ]

21T

npny o) o) papodar Areuruns e )im
Hpny [ewaauy Aq ss200ad dn-mof[oy sy jo
ured se pamalAal aq [[Im SUONEPUSWIINDD]
Jo vonmuawadi]  -ssNIUIC)) IIPNY AU}
01 pouodal 3a [[IM paatdda spodal yipne
Teurs)xa pue paiajdwod supne Jo s[rer

A[AeIpawil

"I9TQ TULIGLIUON Se Memaig N I
“1030911(] S221A12G [Eda7] pue serodio)) Aq
UOISSILINS J)Je 39U’y Aq paaoidde
sem pue A91[0J SMSOSI(] 1S2521U]

al[qug ‘[1eunos) Yy Jo ywed se pasnponu|
33( SBY 2mpadotd Fumolgapsm v

‘SJuawafuRie a53Y) Jo uonpuswsdun A[Tes

3 JOHUOW PINOYS SIAqUIdRY pue uonido panstaid agy
SE paynuapl naaq seq 1apiacid 10988 seatid £ yita
diysisuped v '221A195 1PNY [BUISUL J[JBUIRISNS

v ap1aoid 03 s1qeiear suondo ay} paispisuco Apeaije
SABY SIRDIFI() PUE SIOQUIJA] 1B PUBISIIPUN Ay

"SUOEPUITNT022]

JPNE [BUIX3 pUe Jeursul Jo uopemaunidun

a1 ug ssardoad s JuawaFeury JULCIHIUOW ‘[1I5UN0))
U1 UTEIM 22 IUITIO.) PNy iy JO 2ol atfy dojaasp
0} SNURUOD PIROYS SISQUIDIA 3PIUWO.D PRy

anpasol UMOIQRPISIYA ¥V

9Ty

12y

LT'Y

100Z/000T s33qmaly 03 Joday peury
. TIDNNOD HLOAY ® TIADIY




B 3400 5SNOoH N ]

1007 1quaydog

mgsionpnessuaajamodarosiy

22RO HpNY 211 ©) modar
pue ‘suejd uonoe jejusunredsp Surpnydur

200Z/€/1€ JuawaFeuepy ‘s101R0IpUL @duruLIofIad JO uonO3|[02
Aq yodaz 35114 NpnY [PWLlu] | S U0 $531F03d mIIAR3 [Im NIpNY [BLIUT
-
o 2dPIUUIe))
N M NpPNY/DdS S O} 1pNE [RUINXS '20/100Z 10] PIAOWIRI 378 SIORIpUI 2oueiIojad
o Aq pagnuapt sanssi AU ssa1ppe 0) pasodord uo suoneayirenb 1ey) Surinsua o] syuaunedap
g 100Z/21/15 101221(] yoey | wonoe ayy uo podar [ preunsedap yoey | [enprapur ug sjuswafoeiie MATA] PINOYS SIQUILA 60'L
SINIUOT PNy 213 0} Hodar
PUE JOJIPNE [BLIAX2 £ SUOIRPUITILLIONS] ‘fusttafeue]y £q paaudwa|dur T22q ALY $MATARI
Z00T/E/ 1€ s1a3euEy AauojA] I0] anfea jo vonepuswspdur AQUON 10] 9N[EA INO 0] UONR]DI Ul JISWIFeue
Aq podarisng Mpny [ewiau] | 3yl Uo ss2IF01d MALAAI [[IM)IpNY [eWRIu] | £q peciSe SUONOR 3SOL) JBY) SINSUS PINOYS SIGQUISA 179
2pIuIIo.) Ipny aY) 03 podax
pUE I0JIpNE [BLIS}XS AQ SUOREPUIWITIOIAL uatiaSeuely Aq pajusmapdurn usaq saey
Z00T/E/1E JuauraBemey MATADY SN[EA 159¢ JO UonRIUSES[dWN SMITADI N A 1S9 INO 0} UOTE[AI Ul JuamzaFeuey
Ag yoda1jsay NPOY [eWod] | 23U uo ssardosd maiadil [[im pny @] | Aq paarie suopoe 950Y) 18] JINSUD PINOYS SIS A
aopepuawmajdury eHDERETEM |
aeqang | JoJ afqisuodsay uonoy paaady JNSS poday

aelg uondy
[ xipoaddy

1007/0007 S12qWATA 03 J10day [eury
TIONNOD ALNI ¥ TTADAV




ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

Page 201

Final Report to Members 2000/2001

201

Appendix 2

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THE AUDITOR

General Accountable for the way it has  Provides an independent and
Stewardship discharged its stewardship of  objective consideration of the \
public funds. stewardship function.
Controls It is the responsibility of We assess certain control features of
Framework Members and officers to the Council’s main financial systems
decide the extent of the and report on any significant control
intemal control systems which  weaknesses that come to our
ar¢ appropriate to the Council.  attention from this normal andit
In this regard, a strong internal  process.
audit function is an important
feature of an effective intermal
control system.
Fraud and The primary responsibility for ~ Our responsibility is to give
Corruption the prevention and detection of consideration to the arrangements
fraud and corruption rests with made by management in this regard.
management.
Financial The possibility for ensuring We need to be satisfied that evidence
Statements the preparation of financial from our audit testing is sufficient to
‘ statements which present a fair  give us a reasonable basis for our
statement of the financial opinion that the financial statements
position of the Council rests present fairly the financial position
with management. of the Council at the year end and its
‘ income and expenditure for the year.
Value for Money It is management’s We consider by examination of the
responsibility to ensure that accounts or otherwise certain of the
arrangements are in place that  Council’s management arrangements
are designed to achieve for securing economy, efficiency and
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
effectiveness in the use of
resources.
Legality The responsibility for ensuring  As part of our normal audit process,
the legality of all activities and  we consider the Council’s
\ {ransactions rests with arrangements for ensuring the
| management. legality of transactions or events
with a significant financial
consequence.
September 2001 39

PrROWATERHOUSH COPERS @



Page 202

202
Final Report tc Members 2000/2001 Appendix 3

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

OTHER REPORTS SUBMITTED BY US RELATING TO 2000/2001

e First Interim Management Letter

» Second Intenm Management Letter

» Personnel (Health and Safety) — Best Value Report

e Corporate and Legal (Registration Services) — Best Value Report

¢ Transportation and Property Services: Transport Services — Best Value Report

e Finance (Non-Domestic Rates) — Best Value Follow Up Report

¢ Housing (Sheltered Housing) — Best Value Follow Up Repont

e Transport and Property Services (Estates Management) — Best Value Follow Up Report
e Performance Indicaiors

e Various correspondence, principally with the Director of Finance, mainly relating to
technical and accounting matters

September 2001 ' 40 PrcBAsERHOLSH COPERS @



Page 203

203
Final Report to Members 20002001 Appendix 4

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL

AUDIT CERTIFICATE TO THE MEMBERS OF ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL
AND THE ACCOUNTS COMMISSION FOR SCOTLAND

As auditors, appointed under statute by the Accounts Commission for Scotland, we have
audited the accounts of Argyll and Bute Council for the vear ended 31 March 2001, an abstract
of which is set out on pages 5 to 26.

Respective responsibilities of management and anditors in relation to the acconnts

As stated on page 5, the management of Argyll and Bute Council is respensible for the
preparation of the accounts. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on the abstract of accounts and to report that opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We have conducted our audit in accordance with the requirements of Part VII of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the
Commission. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by management in the preparation of the accounts and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to Argyl! and Bute Council’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our andit of the accounts 50 as to obtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary m order to provide us with sufficient evidence fo
give reasonable assurance that the accounts are free from matenal mis-statement, whether
caused by fraud or other irregularity or eror. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts.

Opinion
In our opinton, the abstract of accounts presents fairly, in accordance with the accounting

policies set out on pages 6 to 7, the financial position of Argyll and Bute Council as at 31
March 2001 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Glasgow

20 September 2001

September 2001 41 PrIcWATERHOUSHQOPERS B



Page 204

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 205 Agenda Item 11

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 8" November 2001

PROGRESS REPORT on EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO COUNCIL FROM
1999/00 TQ PRESENT

1. SUMMARY

A progress review regarding the implementation of recommendations raised in both the
PricewaterhouseCoopers (Pw() finalised Interim Management Letter 2000/2001 and
Second [nterim Management Letter 2000/2001 has been performed by Intermal Audit and
two exception reports produced. {See Appendix 1, 2 & 3).

E

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted and followed up by Internal Audit.

3. DETAILS

3.1 Appendix | details the reports that have been received by the Council from Pw(
since the Final Report to Members 1999/2000. The list uses the following
headings, title of report, the menth it was received, whether management
comments have been collected and the date when the implementation plan was
sent back to PwC.

3.2 Appendix 2 details the 10 remaining action points still to be implemented from the
original 22 action points detailed in the Finalised Interim Management Letter
2000/2001. Two of the ten remaming action potnts relate to an implementation
date of the 31* QOctober whilst the remaining § are still ongoing.

3.3 Appendix 3 detaiis the 14 remaining action points still to be implemented from the
original 41 action points identified by PwC in their Second Interim Management
Letter 2000/200101 July 2001, Sound progress has been made by the Infermation
Technology Department to implement the external audit recommendations.

3.4  With regard to the above management letters, Internal Audit has accepted
management assurances that implementation has taken place. No testing has been
carried out to confirm their assurances. Testing to ensure implementation has
taken place will be done in quarter 4. No testing has yet been performed on the
Draft Audit Management Letter 2000/2001 as it is vet to be finalised.

4. CONCLUSIONS

Implementation of recommendations will continue te be monitored by Internal
Audit.



Page 206

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Policy: None
5.2  Financial: Nome
5.3  Personnel: None
54  Legal None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Tan Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager 8 Octeber 2001.
Boctprogreport8nov



APPENDIX 1

Pﬂﬁe 207

L002/000Z 1ou2] Jusllebeueyy upny Yeiq

paLNiay 124 10N A L0400

- A Lo-dos [BUIS - LO/ODOZ JonaT] Juolwabeuepy wueu)

- A Lg-nr LO/000Z 18NS luewiabeue WiSIU| puooes
Lo-inp A Lo-ge= LO/000Z 19aT wewalbeuel wus|
Lo-unr A 00-AON 000Z/6661 JoNa7 uswabeuely ypny [@uld
Lo~ A 0010 0002/666 | Jone Juswsbeuely 1PNy WS
00-09Q A 00-Bny 000Z/6681 Jaye wawalieuey Jpny sweisAs

jaeq Juas uejd N/A Siuapuodsay wody paAlRsay
uonejuawydw| MoK POUIR) SISO yiuow awep Bodsy gmd
S1HOd3Y 11ANY TvNY3 1 X3




Page 208



B Y3400 HSNOHI NN ]

APPENDIN. 2.

Rage 209

1007 HIIIWALJAS
10/000C HALLAT INFWIIVNVYIA INTHHLNI

TIINDOD ALY ¥ TIADYV



Page 210

SATH00 JFSNOHITNVER] ®

0007 1990330)

210

Furodup

10T
Yore W 7g

laanyoly qdasor

"SI2QUIaW 0)

SALBULIOJUT JEOT 3 [[[A ATEWIUNS B JT SA0TATOS
Jo msquunn e 1o szopeuejdxe tejuns Suneadar
5131 AqeSRUMm UONBIS ¢ PLOAE 0) YSIM PIiom
[IOUNGy) ST, SISUINIU 0] 2]qEPUERSISPUR

PUE 3S[U0D “JUEAI[AT SI Y24 “UONETLIONU
uipraoid pue yorordde sy Sundope uoaaaq
JOUE[E(] B 3q ({14 3157) I2a8moy Juatyredap
B HIL}IAL SISE( 2D1A19S [BOPIALPUL UR O
saomenea uo unaodal 0] $9512a% FUTIGNTO
198png sImny ur uaAld ag [JIM UOHBIAPISUC)
uaurredap ayy Jo uonsod £1ejaSpng oy

Jo Smpuejsiapun fleA0 311 paaoidun 24y 0}
Apasyum st gora suoneue(dxa Jo Jaqumu sy ur
3SBAIZUL UE 0) P3] 2ABY PITOM UOQEIMPH UTRIM
sodar sup jo gopdope ‘uaunuedsp e ur 3014198
YJED HIJTA SIOUREIEA TTRTH 91f) 10 1adar

2173 51 53ouRLRA Jo Sutpodai to sjueuntedap

o] goeoldde pue souepms [BIauaE IS
Tuaunreda( uoneanpy 2yl WA 90IAI2S

3ud UEL 330 G0 19udiil U PRy SUDHELIRA 24}
Jo laquunu yuesyuis € YBE) SISeq ot Uo uayr)
SEM UOISEDRD SIQJ, [9A3] [B1O) [REawledap

B ¥ Sunojmotu 128png 3of UoEINP

0 UCTRTIFCFuT 120dat o) USYE] Sem UOISINp

UV} g

0] UOLDE DATINSTI0D AUR JunIR)sp
uepd wonoe ue Ag paloddns pue
pameydxa ag pmoys s2aueLeA [V

"S30UBLIEA

Funoedur $10108) TERPIAIPY] JO
dulpuE]SIapUN Uk MO[[E 0} Pa[IZap
ADUSIDIIINS 3G P[NOTYS SHAPIULELGT)
01 parddns moneunoul

Tydiey

U35( 2ALY Phom STUIPES)] UDNEINPI
2] 550178 SAOUBLIEA [ETPLAIPTI

a0t e Surpeap ATejUsIoD

Iayung "QIUoW oY) Ioj Juauniedap
UOT)EONPO M) 10J 30URIEA [€}0} I1p
surefdxa Ao AIEJISUIION PANE)E
a1 g ‘s potad 1Y 530WLLIMA
(LRI JO Faquuinu ¥ pigaysg
MmIAaL () “pannbar st em

UOTIOE 347193102 AIBS53090 AUE [I2jop
OS|E PUE S3DUELIRA J1[) 10] SUCSE I}
PUBISIIPUI 0) STHQUUATT S)ILIG )
2] QB 0] PAPUIITL 5T WOT}RULEO I
SU{], "3QNIINO.) UOKEINDT

atp o) Apootr papiaold st ussuae
24T 16T SOOURLIZA UO AIEJUSLILIOD
PUE UONEWLIOTT [ETOUBU]]

JuIPInsuU Sf AANJILLS])
uoneInpy 0} UHERLIOJUT

Surrodyuom pue Sunadpng

SNOILVANTWINOD A ATIVLAA - T NOLLDAS

100Z/0007 YALLAT INAWHDVNVIN INFHHLNI

TIDONNOD 4109 2 TIADHV

10e



SUIIO) JHSNOHAMWIRY]

0002 1240120

Page 211
211

BuroBup

“S[00YIE

) 5128phq
Jo uopedaEp
ayp o1

anp nopuda e
JEE}SUOD
aznbar ra
g ajapduwos

Aradre] manapy ydesor

TISUnoTy Ak 1o suupedsp Isyio
WO $AFOATE ) JO Fupdln) 51) To
UANEIIOPUN 5q [[IA4 ANSST ) “2[GEIS
aIot auI0daq saunueidord )

sy ‘pojuswydr srom suepd azojaq
s1ouped Jim UonEnsu0d panmbar
s1aafoxd atuos ‘momppe U smedal
10 sjeLe ‘Juagges ‘Sa ‘pusds

ap uodn sprasp o slapjoy 128png
10y pasrxa 5doos aqerspisug))

"SI9Y0E3) PEIY 07 1231p

Surpuny Jo worstaoxd s pue pung
Q0URN[A0XH B WM s103f0ad mau
Jo uorsuedys o) Usaq PEL SANSST
Butseyd awy jo Luew jo asned AL
‘Aparol ast213xa 1olEun ¢ usyelspun
2ARY JJE1S UOHEIMPH ple a0ueuL

K31anoe amypuaduxa

pue atwoeo Jeyusuniedap

Jo uonaspal opsifeas € apraoxd

0} Jno PILLIED ag UBD 5}123pnq

Jo 3wpyord 2A1193]]5 JBG) AINSUS
0] 221AIS% JO S2UT} JO[BWI U] S50LIE
swaned ammypusdxa pue avroaur
MATARI pInoys jEeunIedap AL,

“none)ard i) s Jo

Y511 € saLued pue Surnodar aoueiiea pue
Sunopuow [pruautedap jo Axodwos
211 sasEArW S1Y |, Jeak i InoyFnoays
stronimon] aImipiadia pue sweoul

a1} 10alF2I 2102121 Jou s20p Ja3pnag Ay,

~1zad 2t moysnonp Leudoidde paseyd
U3a() 10T per] 198png oY) 8NBIIq UISIIE
SEY SIURLIEA [RITSIRWI JO IDGUINT & Jery
pan[Enysty spedar Souosuow 1adpng
AJIUOTI TOTIE3NP 311 JO ASIASI ()

-paseqd Leridoadde
23] you sey 1a8png uoneampq

duzzopmom pue Junadpnyg

(AANNILNOD) SNOLLVANAWNOOTH A TIVLAA - Z NOLLDJS

H0Z00T HALLA' T INAWADYNYIA WIHALNI

"HONNOD dL0d ¥ TIADUY

e



Page 212

212

SAFIOQ HSNOHEIMDR] ®

000T 139010

L00T
140100 [ €

1002
qoIER | €

qanorg ue[y

‘OL/Q T 282 WOl pUs JEIA
a3 103 suopratoxd saald gyorym saandy

JOYEILIO] PIRpURIS 2 WRuoo suodaz s
aouts prjea jou st ydeidered puooass ay],

PUR 1234 1)) 10] 3q Jfrm Jodar

1xauw 2y, “Suruodas aammy w syl Apawar
[[14s T pue paurejdys aq os[2 pInoYS
SIDUELIEA A[QBINOAR, 'S}121SP Teguajod
Furae] MIEN 4501 WO AJUHO SIENUHIUOD O}
g0 0 Bunodar ay) uy {30pus) v U3aq
set] azapy ‘yderdered 3oy o Jo swary up

*AIBSS209U J1 IYE] UOTIIE

PUE PallIe3] 3q 0] SU0SSI] U
0} "J|YEINOAE] 10 SSIAADPE AIL
520UBLIBA 2L Japaam ‘pattodar
3 PNOYS 12 TPNg WIOI] SIITLLITA
¥ U0 ATRJUSLINeD Parelad]

patoadus

$9850[ anyny qLm uonieod W) poys

® ATuo seam paprodar snjding s zaatym
10 s3300d Burpes 193phg ag w wagqord
® O 1jnsal B SB H3sLIE pey snjdms s
1239y 51I0d21 59U IO JEI[OUN SBM 1]

“pauoda1 jou aIr SasURLIEA

Jo sucneue|dxa ‘papodar Suraq s1 sngdins
& arata gy sonaead nounuos aq 01
sizadde 1] (S sA01AIDE SMIARY ‘OSQ
$301AI3G Jadsmes], 2y 10f papiacid uasg
peif ALRJUIUNISD O 321} PFYSy 000z
raquisdag gg papie porzad s 107 Smsaw
ST} JO SANULNE U] JO MITASL Y "SIOUBIIRA
ammpuadxa oe papiaoid st Ligjustuinon
‘2emnuoes SuLIo)IUoN [RIoUEm)
OSA/OTd 21 Jo Fubiasw A[puo ay) 1y

*08T0TA
J0] IUBLIEA U0 LIEJUIUINOI JO IIUISYY

Suproyzow pue Sunadpng

(QAIANLINOD) SNOILVANIWINOD T A TIVLAA - Z NOLLD IS

100Z/0007 HALLAT INHIWADVNYIA WIHALNI

"HIONNOD HLNG ¥ TIADYV

0z



SEJO) HNOHEIDR]

9 006¢ 1240120

B0y MERMEA
pue serodion 10f rapioy 198png

Page 213

ST Pajeunuou uasq sey Lorog “pammthol JI HONAE 2ATIDLI0 DM
ae1odion Jo PESE S ‘I9ASMO[{ 01 ayqeun ag) Aet Jusura Feuw ‘poutefdxa
‘moneLEA I[N A[[e1susd -Kpemdss ANUAISIING 10U 337 SAIUBLIEA I M,
SL 23U} (1M 10T §)800 sasuadxa MSIAGY DU Depi0aT
o [SIaquiaw Apurent sasndwos snp pome] nm pap "SAOUE[BQ 2SI} OF UCIIESI UT SUHT)
H 2107 spenowWwa(] pre ajeiodion) St UOLsod [BIOUETL] 3T w jurod Aug 1e J01eurpIo-0 193png agt 0)
0] WONE[RI U] “AIBA 10U Op PiE JE2A JeU) 2INSUD 03 UORBWHCIWL | 55004 01d are Md1ASY JO 20USPIAG 10 SIOULLIEA
[BIOUBIR 211 JO 1115 DIf 18 PIXY Fupoyuow jadpnq qum 30 suoneue[dxa OU I9AIMOY] "SPIEog]
are yomm ‘suonsinbar 21 spreoy PapiacId a1e SjuatIIEdsp JTLof pUE 3107y JNRINOWS(T djriodion
TUTO[ TIOI) §1500 Y], "SpPIEag Julof Su1proy 123png [1¢ ey 311 o womsod [RISUENE 2y S[IElap
SwofuQ | [H0T YMEW € pIreACd JBISI[Y J0J s1aproy 1a3png ou age ey, | INSUI PhoYs Toune’ agL ywoday] A1eumung sansaliqey Apenaens) 2y,
2PIM

[uno’) payydurcs jou unojmon 3payg 0T

Suproyuom pue Junapng

(@ANNLLNOD) SNOLLVANAWHWODTY QA TIVLAJ - T NOLLDAS

100Z/000 AHLLAT INFIWIDVNVIA WIEHLNI

. . TIDNNOD HLNF P TIADAV



Page 214

214

B SH3I00 SNOHEMD] ®

HO0T RGORO

1002
199010 |

L00E 1290190

qInoig we[y

IHNAY ) T Sy e,y

0] podal B yilw 70Oz JO Jaunans

2 Jurnp as1o1a%a te asedord
pinom [ pue 1834 s1ip) 10f paIsa3Sns
AaaIng zarsuayardwos gt Mo Adze)
1 2] 00} ApEI[E SIT ‘Afalewaogur)
‘s1siq jeawaald B yiim B3P Uq
SEY Y2035 M2{0sqo Jo uonsHib ay

"$15Eq [EhUUR UE U Y2018
@lajosqo IJ0 alm oy [paoxdde
JO} SONTMINN,) 0) paasald are
Yorya ‘s1I0dar FuLro)iuou yools
Q)ajosqo [enuue JAlsioyaituos
aonpoxd pinoys jraumosy sYL

“aouEjeq Joois
1) FugEysIaA0 ST MM 00)5 MI0sGe
BuAIres 5q ARUI [19UNO7) SY) JRTj YSII

e s1 a1ay “Bunredar yons Jo 2oudsqe i U)

‘g6 T nolesmeSIcol JuauraA0d

[BAC] 3TULS SUOP U JOT SEY SKp
‘1onamol “pasnidde aq [Jim Homs Jo o
AL SIS [IN0)) 3t 01 08 vay) ppnogs
oI “YoIs 9397050 10 uedal [knuue

TR ATOO3X PINGIS 3LAISE JO PRAH a1,

“paanpeid uzaq jou saer] spodar yoogs
313050 SJ 1 1B PATBIYSIY MoTA1 Ingy

‘paanpaad
dugq 100 podoy Hams Majosqo

S3I01G 7P SHI0IG

SNOLLVANIWNODHH (TATIV.LUM - £ NOLLDES

10070007 HALLA T INTFIWADVNVYIA WIMALNI

TIONAQOD 109 2 TIADYUV

L0°E



SHTJO0 HSNOHAMIIR]

8

0002 1940130

Page 215

215

Smodugy

ERNIER el
Ajuawry
JopEsH

Smoduey ‘ME] MATPUY

0) PUNOJ 3I3m $AI0NS wasojaqdure)
pue AWy C[iE 1e WasAs Y08

Aue Sorpeiado 2q o] 10U pUNQy aam
521035 YTINGSUS[aH PIpaU FEM
WA AOKAUN [BIOEISqUS 213M seale
[eraass papyiySy 3 st woday Yooy
STf) PALIION]2M IS TeURUE ‘T3 AaMO]]

LA TeTe A

amste] 01 513721 £0°¢ 124

PUR S3I[IIE] U FRUEy 2Uns1a]
0] DRI 2134 $1IS1A OU “HONIPPE U]

“TOTRULIGIT WIS ERURIT

S[gENJEA PUR SPIDISE HOOIE

alqeral saptaord mIasAs ST CFRels
aIms Aq 2oepd w md waag pey waysAs
Turdasy prodar MEINI0T e eyl

1w pood 2q o] pUnoj aIsm saonoerd
“‘paleso] AIE S2101Y UK TRUE

2)Se AL PR OMIEUAIIREY SPUNOIn
1p0q araym roda(g yred|i veqQ,,

azodar ap menb m
“uoday Yo018 aw 19afjal A[91RIN20E
10T S90P €0 { I8 JUILIEIS QU

"Kp1oa1ro:

paiesado pue panmswapdun
Apradord sre sompasord mau
asap 1811 amsu3 o djay pmoys
SHYQ, "¥o0ls Jurnsst pue SmAla0nx
“Swnapio 10 smpadord ayy ur
pauren AfTiy 34 pinois [Jeis oms

-aovfd SuryR) SiUnos

Yoo rendas it usunredaq
SAAMATIS JRIUNUTONALY

pue prowdo[2A2(T Off) UF Paonpoesi
aq p[oots wajsAs FULIoNIou! ple
Fp10221 ¥904s sarsuayardmon

"aslIe[eq o018

SN[ U SJUSLIBIBISSIUT 1O SI0.LED [ELIajew
‘501038 UT Swa)r Jo uoyeridoiddug iy
P10313PUL FO Y51 ) ISEIDE] S[IAD JOOIS
A1 IPAQ S[ONUCD [OTS JO 20UAsSqe ],

e

1 SpIoal §o0ls Aue SurAet 10U 58 1007
Averuqa,f UT yIpny [eIaquy Aq payiuap
Buam [dINGSUR[SH Ul S010)5 0M ] “SPICIaX
[220] [EUIICIUT TRI) IO PIUTEIERL

818 SUINSAS 3001s op "Surdsamg

1200 §/MONA[0]) IS PUR ATUBUIULETA
PUNOIN USaSentiy aInsta| 10] S31018
OS] pue TeluatLeda(] SapRfRUE SIqL
MHUIBda(] SI01AIAE [BIEAUNIONALE]

P Jnamdalasaad] Y Ag Py §I01S A0
151X3 5700003 SUII0JECN JUSDEPNST]

HI0]s
SH( 4940 S[000]) FULIOIUOA] o)

$31015 7 SYI0)5

(QENNLINOD) SNOLLVANIIWIWODEY I TIV.LAA - € NOLLDES

100Z/000C HALLAT INAWIDVNVIN IWTHH.LNI

TIDNAQOD LN 2 TIADHY



B SUIJCQ SNOHEMMIN ®

216

Page 216

*$3108 S20TAIAG AEAUY IS0 I[B

0] WASAS STy} Smpuaixs Jo a8e)s ISI)
ami se jodap AIoWIIy Ay Ul pafjesur
8uraq Apuazino ST UIDISAS Paseq
TRQEY PASIAAL B PUE PIOUSMMNGOS
Apeame sey sunueiSold sopy

'S31015 [[B 01 pansst
saurapng jempascad yim ne
PILLIED ST MalAQ] IOIS R IRLL T
‘sjodap saoralag
AJTUIUEY (& Ino3nory) pasn
9 0} pRiyIpoLl 3 poys Ueq()
ur Afjngssasons Supelado wysis
32018 pasurzndnos e peiy, '
paosde
S1aM SUOTIEPUITLRLIOIDT A2 Om ],

“Burdaay prodar
Iood 0} anp SPIOS3I MNEINDIR 3R]

000Z 139010

100Z/0007 HHLLAT INTIWNTDVNYIN WIMALNI

TIONOOD dLNd ¥ TTADAY



SO HNOHIIMDR]

0L

0007 1390120

o B W

Page 217
- W

fuofug

Bmoduny 133

‘s1seq BuroFuo
ue uo aoe[d oyey [[ra s)rodaT asoy)
Jo yusiude[2Asp PUR UOTIEIPISUOT)

"Ry ALY W Pasn aq [ra Bodas sup
4017 YsIjqeIss o peday] J01EapU]
SOUBLLIOLIS ] JUIESSEURA AINSTal]
Appuoew 21 jo yjuawdojaaap pue asn
31 AEN[EAD PINOYS JUSLASRIR]A]

‘pa1e[dmion Uazaq vy

srodal jusnbazqns ganeipe ‘suodan )
Fumppdwies ur AZ[3p © SEA 2190 ‘0007
Jaquuasa(] o1 ;aqoi() spotiad ays 103
000z 12qore) [nun siseq AJiuour e

uo paredsid arem siodsy uoneuom
snp Suledazd m pajeroosse Jyausq pue
1502 S1[] 53858 01 SIS [BLY] B Ue 1oday
SIOYEQIPU] SIUBLILICH ] THaUIATEURTY
Amses1], Appuow v Junredaad

w2aq aAey Justpedadg asUeury sy

*spioday Jojearpag
INITUILE}IIJ JAWATEURTA £INSBIL],

Amseaaf,

SNOILVANTINHNOOTE AT TIVLAA - ¥ NOLLD)AS

100Z/0007 HELLAT INTFIWIDVNVIA INTHHINI

TIONMOD ALOE ® TIADAV

10t



Page 218

SYIJO) SNOHEMIDR] ® o

1t 0002 1390190

"PAIeIS SE 2aE SaImjuudes

1B ULITJUOD O 3es yipne o] apqrssod jon
OS[B SEAL IT PUB S2IMEBUS]S 25211 YIIA TR1jILIe)
2q 10T YT o0ffJo 21 U1 SUDMRS [uls mou
YEU S B ST 21T “1oA0mol swoydaty Ag

W 3nos 51 WONESIE[D 1qNOp B I 219L) A13YM
pue ‘sadeyd asuene AEW oM SI001} 0
UONENSIMILLDE 1} [J8 MO0 JJElS 32UeuT]

S& “UISLIE SEY SIY) 1YL POSIAPE 219M 34

"$)SIX2 JIB)S AANESTUTLOPE I0F SALI0LeudEzs
PASUOME JO ISI] OU JBY] POIOM M “12A3MO[]

218

UONOE 1Y} PAIJIISA SBI OGM IDIJO O] e

pue
‘uoneurioqu a1 ut Swkoy uossad oy @
‘S[R)3P SI0)QIP 3} .

"STUN0AsE §,J0}AP

o} saF1eyo asumpne {ew :S3pRIOI GanEM
GIEM. SI301J0 IARERSIURIPE 129ys 13400 & wirs 0} Juowannbal v st a1y
1002 J03da 29 pMoYs | <gumaooe $301q2p 24} ) soreyy Susuoyne
SmoFun goIe 1§ IBADIN "PRUOTIOE 3G [|IM PUE PJON IS A1oeuis pastrone oy 37E Je15 UCTIENSTITUIPE J01J0 €aIE UM

"SILLOJBUSIS PAsLIRNE JO IS ON | 106

SIOA(|

SNOLLVUNIWHNOOTT dA'TIVIAA — § NOLLDES

LHZ/OMT HALLAT INAWIDVNY W NTd TLNI

TIONNOD LAY % TTADIY



Page 219
219

8 S¥3400 HSOHMDR]

4 |

0007 124030

fuodup

Fren

000z judy

TEANAIA W

SIATIS

®3a] Aq pensind aq c1 apqeun s1qap
FUIPUEIEINO 199]|07 G} A1RA00AouRER
UO1)037[00 192p Aojdus?

01 % q JO UrlHleq? o) woll

WEnos Julaq JEXRUSIIFR TUONIPPE uf

Juacupedagg o jouq uanE Ay, sieded
dn y2eq ou sey juaumredacT aus axaym
10 pansmd Jursq are waouejeg oy,

"3]qEIaR][OsUN S8 JJO §JUNOWE
ssaip Funum o usAL3 aq pnoys
UbIEIpIsU0s ‘apqissed jou 1 s1q)
aIN A "possaIdold Uonsafoo pue
PAIRSNSAAUT 3 PINOYS SIS Sy,

‘PAa3[100 80

[T SOUE|EG U JET) POOL1] paonpal
5T 220 ‘52383 FUTPURISING SUIRTUDT
JUNOWIE e 1Bl AU JO Sus] ay) sy

"$ADUETEC J[EWS JO LW B
0} BRI 2SIY] PUR P[0 SEEIL S0IY) IRAC JTE

T 000°00SF PUNOTe Burj[elo) SIOWE[RG
101GAp JO IaqUInG 8 SBY 100003 o1 F,

"PI0 SAE34 § 5340 SIMIB|ES S101GI]

SI0)qa(]

(AANNLLNOD) SNOLLVANAWNOD T dATIVLAA - § NOLLDIS

1007/0007 YALLAT INHIWIOVNYIW WY HINI

"TIINNO0D ALNT ¥ TTADHY

s



SATJOD )FSNOHEMIR] ® ®

€1 0007 1290120

=

= . "sunrof uwoneaejdde

g ruaedaeg Apeal
sao1alag [R0] | uaym [raoidde Iof saynumuos) SpIEpUR)S A{OAIDAYLS PAICHTIOUE 3 UES STH) qof Tty e PISOISIP 3q 1S 359y)
mﬁm ajerodiosy | auy o) pajuesard aq [ " pue jusmnredag 1BY] JAPI0 UL PASNpONUE 2 PjRoys YInomI[E J521NUT JUBAM3 AR P10l
JO 10199 0¢] [e3a pue 2 H.o_.,DcU 4q patedard SISAEAJUL SI01221K(] PUB SIAgIUITL 1SN SI01291L(] PIE SIAQUUAT SANNISYS
SmoFug Furodugn remag Ewwz Fuaq Lpuaams s 1a)sr8a [enusd v | SARLIIX-LON 104 T3)SI350 [EUAI ¥ | -UOU [21Ym UL 1S1%3 12151331 [R10150 ON
‘Anrendsors)pa

A0 5153.13)0U1 JIRAIYA AUB
PHOIT JSIU JP¥)$ (IPEA T 420830y 10°8

uopdnaio)) 29 pneig

SNOTLVANAWNOTE A IV LA — 8 NOLLDTS

100Z/0007 HHLLA'T INAWHADVNVIN WNITIHLNI

TIDNNOD LN % TIADAY



Page 221
221

APPENDIX 2

100Z A'TNr
10/0007 dXLLAT INHFIWHIVNYIW WIMALNI ANODHS

"TIIN10D HLNY ¥ TIADIAV



Page 222

222

1007 Judy ‘pouaipSusIs

Suro3uQ 1007 129019() Pud A[[ouuo)y'y aq PINoYs JIomial [IDUN0.) A1} JPAO S[OIUQ))

‘s1seq 12NSal £ Uo JULUISTeURILE

SuoSu() | [00E LquIada pug 0} pauodal pue paysiqelsa 3q pnoys yuaunredap

BuroduQ) | 1007 Poquoamdag pug pAog D 1I 243 fof S10Je0IpuUl eoueLLIolad Loy [euLo I

'SISeq IE[NSaI B U0 USYRIDpUN

aq S9OIMOSAL YIoMIAU pue WASAs Jo Laenbape oy yorn

Kj2anoeosd 01 sjduaye 1By PUSTUIOIST DM ‘pajIuI]

1007 1890100y pud | 100g Jequmdag puyg w([y'y | o1 s joo) Saniodar wa)sAs jusuno jey) pasiudosad s1]]

s1seq Suro3uo Uk uo porepdn pue

Pa31sa) aq uay) pnoys wed siy] “pedoeasp 2q 0y ueyd

gurofup 1002 129012() pusl UOS[IAL ‘D) | AISA0D2I ISISESIP PI[IB)Sp B PUE 9PEUI 8Q 0) JUSUISSISSE

YSUL 1Y € 2[qRO3 PINOYS SIY], "UILISPUN 2q J5I2I9X

Sunnred oeusss pu A3usSUIII0D B 1B PAPUSLLWIOIDT

S1 1 SDUDI[ISAT UI)SAS HSEIINIT 0] JOPIO U]

007 "dn-[e1p [21u2)x2 SUIpIedal 9Sne[d B UlR)uod JUBAS[Al

Surodud | oI pud : ¢ 98BS I3y pue ‘asTe[D A[[RIUSPLU0D B ARy ‘SISBQ SU108

100T 12qua2(] -uo ue uo pajepdn aq pnoys senaed pamy) gim piay

suesup pud : ¢ % ¢ 28e)g UEDUNT Y S)ISBIIUOD S2URUSIUIBL PUE SIUIURIIZY [DADT 90IAIDG
uotejuswa|duy

10/01/50 18 se agepdn) JoaIB(] peaIsy | Iao1jj() o[qrsundsay] SUOTEPUSLILOIIY

NV'1d NOILL)Y :9 NOLLDAS

HILLET INAWADVNYIN WIHALNI ANODES




Page 223
223

senjqisuodsay pue safol i)
1IN0 ALIED 0] JJBIS 10] AIRSSID0U 2IaUMm PIAURIE 2q Ajuo
pInoys A7) Siy) pue paiusta[dul aq pIuoys $s2008

d1J SupieSor sUOTIOLISAT “‘UONIPPR U] "PaMaIAdI
3Q PINOYS SI135n 9521 61 splomssed wmsAs poFajranud
SUTIBOTUMIULLIOD JOJ POLIOUL U1 PUE PAJOLISAX A[JYST)

guro3ug 1002 1sn8ny pug aq PINoYS §S2008 100y 1M JJEIS JO IBQUINU I T,

"waysAs Sunende XN 81

0} sse00e axnbar wFuo] ou ABur oYM sIBSTL AJIUSPI 0)

pash 2q 31} , JopIse/uImIpE;/Isny,, o1) 1e1f) pue sidmoane

guroguQ 1007 A pug Aspreq (] UISO0[ PIRAUL 920} JOYE 100 Pay0] aq PINOYs $I3s)

. *Sa8uUrD WASAS [[8 Iof 01 pazoype pue paydope

guroduQ L00OT 2q0130) puy WVVY 2 p[novs saInpasold [oxuod afueyd [BULOJ

- SISBq Je[nSal

B W0 paurejuiew pue pajuaiadur aq pinoys pajepdn

SupoduQ [00Z 1990100 07 | A9[IBg' @ ¥ US[[Y'Y | SI UONEIUSWMDOP J53sN jei} SuLnsua 10y 2inpaooid

SuroluC | )pg equdag pug "suonesijdde jofew pasiyeads

BUIO3UC 1007 Apnf puy UBIUN(™ Y [Te J0] P3ilR)qo 5q PNOYS SJUDUIIAITE MOIOST]
vonemawa]dur)

10/01/50 18 se ajepdn) Joaw poaidy | 1201 9rqIsuodsey SUONEPUITIHO003Y

NVId NOLLDY -9 NOLLDIS

HALLAT INFWEDVNYIN WIHALNI ANODES




Page 224

-sauoyd
QIO BIYON J12g} uo Joquinu wid oy Surjqeus
JO aouepodl a1)) JO PapUuitilL 3 pinoys sms()

‘payesnsaiul pue papiooar Ajjeuuoy syduisie widol
PR[TE] PUR PRIOTIUOE 3 PInod ssadde dn-jeiy e

"DAPI0dRI

Aeuog oq pinoys sjsanbal ur-gip (e pue

sloeLju0d Aled pIng) ungim pepnjos 99 pnoys
Funpiomiau dn Terp Jo osn o1f) uo SUONOLSSY e

"SIUNOOE 3531} JO JOJEISIUIPR A1)

Aq papl022] 2q 10U puk SISEQ IB[NSa: ¢ uo poFueyd
‘Susurnueqd(e og pInod splomssed ureI] o

‘Fue8ugy | 1007 2qupaa( pud AJ[OUHO} "V '$5300€ 10§ 1sonbax [ewnro)

2 JOYR U0 PAYDIIMS 3q AJUO PINOM YDA ‘STHIPOIM
JO YUE( B 2ABY PIN0D siopuoa Ayled pInj], e

‘oI sapdwiex;] -apew sjusLIRA0KIT PUB HOXEHIpUN
aq pnoys §$9208 dn-[BIP J2A0 S[ONUOI JO MIIAL Y

uoneuaterduy
10/01/60 18 se ;epdn) Joee peeidy | 18010 2lqisuodsay SUOIEPUIURIOY

NVId NOLLIY 9 NOLLDAS

HALLIAT INHWADVYNVIA WITHLNI ANODIS




Page 225 Agenda Item 12

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 8" November 2001 J

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2001/2002

I. SUMMARY

An interim progress report has been prepared covering the audit work performed by
Internal Audit during the second quarter of 2001 — 02, The objective of this report is to
advise members of the progress made with the annual audit plan. (See Appendix 1).

2, RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Committee is asked to approve the progress made with the annual audit plan
for 2001 - 02.

3. BACKGROUND

31  The report contained in Appendix 1 lists the audits scheduled for the financial year
2001 -2002 and details the progress that has been achieved to date with the annual
audit plan. The report is set out under the following headings, planned audits with
audit reference, the name of the audit, percentage complete, planned, actual and
remaining audit days. The last column headed comment gives a commentary for

cach audit.

3.2 Inthe 1st quarter of the financial vear the focus for Internal Audit was external
audit work. This continued into the 2™ quarter when we were requested 1o cover
additional work for external audit. Assistance was therefore given in respect of

Performance Indicators.

3.3 Internal Audit in the 2*® quarter carried out Follow up Reviews and this lead in
some cases to addittonal work and additional reporting. Internal Audit was also
involved in a number of Special Investigations {See Appendix 1}.

3.4  As indicated in the previous report to members Core Financial Systems and
Departmental Audits were covered in the 2™ quarter. It is envisaged that for the
remainder of the financial year Internal Audit effort will be predominately focused
on Core Financia! Systems and Departmental Audits. An indication of when audits
will be covered is given in the comment column of Appendix |

4, SUMMARY OF 2nd QUARTER AUDIT ACTIVITIES FOR 2001 - 2602

41  Through the 2™ quarter Internal Audit staff numbers remained constant at 4. In
addition 3 contract auditors were employed in the 2™ quarter to help deliver the
audit plan. This gave the section a substantial boost in professional input. Their
employment was mitially for a period of two months however, 2 contract auditors
were retained for the month of September.

42  As canbe seen from the report set out in Appendix 1, the remaining audit day
requirement for quarter’s 3 & 4 wotals 569. An analysis of available audit staff days



43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

48

49

4.10

Page 226

tor quarter’s 3 & 4 revealed that after consideration for maternity leave for a
member of staff, deductions for holidays and an estimate for sickness, available
staff days totalled approximately 443 for quarter’s 3 & 4. This leaves a shortfall of
126 audit days. Two contract auditors have therefore been retained for the 3™
quarter.

A total of 212 days was set aside within the annual plan for external audit work.
Of the 212 days a total of 92 days were alloted to Stock and Year End work, 40
days to Housing Benefit Grant Claim work and 80 days to Performance Indicators.
In the 2™ quarter a further 20 days were incurred on stock in reviewing stock sheet
and shelve accuracy across Council stores. This brought the total stock audit days
used to 57 leaving a balance of 35 days for the second half of the vear. Assistance
on Performance Indicator work was provided to external audit out with the
programme of 80 days. This resulted in an extra 56 days to that originally planned.

With regard to Housing Benefit Grant Claim, audit work is now scheduled to
begin in November 2001 when the Housing & Social Work Department are
promised to have finalised the claim. External audit has already carried out some
systems testing of the grant claim and therefore this should reduce our level of
audit work to less than the 40 audit days planned.

Of the 5 Core I'inancial Systems Audits scheduled for review this financial year, 2
have been carried out. In both audits actual days expended compared favourably to
plan. The remaining 3 audits are scheduled for the 4™ quarter. (See Appendix 1).

The 2" quarter saw the commencement of Departmental Audits with a total of 87
audit days expended on 5 audits out of a total of 18 planned audits. OF the 5 audits
3 are now at draft stage with the remaining 2 due to reach draft stage by the end of
October 2001. In 2 out of the 3 audits actual days used compared favourably to
planned and the remaining audit reaching draft stage well ahead of plan. As can be
seen from Appendix 1 further audits are scheduled for the remainder of the
financial year.

A total of 120 days were set-aside in the audit plan for Contingency/Special
Investigations. The actual days incurred for the 2* quarter totalled 30 days thus
bringing the total expended to 72 days for the first half of the financial year. This
therefore leaves a balance of 48 days available for the second half of the financial
year.

Audit days were incurred in carrying out Foliow up Reviews in the 2™ quarter
with some requiring additional work and reporting. (See Appendix 1). As a result
the 50 days allocated within the audit plan was surpassed. There is no Follow up
Review work identified for the 3™ quarter.

A total of 42 days was set-aside within the plan for a risk assessment review in
partnership with the Council’s external auditors. This review was not carried out
due to year-end pressures. At present this task has been put on hold.

A small amount of staff training was delivered in the 2™ quarter. Training was
secured for 2 staff members through the Council’s own Personnel sections in
house report writing course. The staff found this rewarding. Although we are
interested to secure further professional Internal Audit training from the Institute
of Financial Professional Accountants (IPFA), they have not progressed their



59

6.
5.1
52
5.3
54
3.5

Page 227

18

training package beyond the introduction stage, which the staff attended in the 1
quarter. IPFA have said that more advanced training will be available in the near
future.

CONCLUSION

Progress is being made on audits planned for 2001 - 02,

IMPLICATIONS

Policy: Update on audit plan for 2001 — 02.

Financial: The audit plan is based on existing budgeted
provision.

Personnel: None

Legal: None

Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact lan Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Ian Nisbet

Internal Audit Manager 8 October 2001,
08octprogreportSnov



REF.

Extamal

Extamal

External

Core
Cora

Core
Core
Cora

CE15
TPS51
TPS49
CL5G2
EDOS
ED20
DESDZ
DESH
FO27
FO26
HSW14
HSWH1S
HEW0E
e
TG
TR335
TPS26
VMO

ASNE

ASI33
ASI3L
ASIZZ

ASI36
ASIZ7

AAFD1

AFID

ASING

ASI28

ASI30

ASIZ

DES19

EDLIOT

HSWR4

HSW25

HESW2T

TPS12

AUDITS

EXTERNAL ALDIT WORKS
Stack Taking Y/End TPS/ DES

Housing Benefit Grant Claim

Ferfommance Indicators

TOTAL
CORE AULMTS
Budgetary Control

Capital Contrapts

Creditors Payments
Housing & Council Tex Bensfits
General Ledger Operations

TOTAL

DEPARTMENTAL AUDITS

Car Leasing
Cemmact Veling
Confractors conditions Tendenng etc
Collectron of Fines & Fixed Penaliies
Secondary Schools
School Meals Incoma
Waste Disposal {incoms)
Refuse Collection [Income)
Fixed Asset Management
Loans Fund
Elderly Accammadation
Home Care {Income)
Linified Senefits Syslems - Housing
Rewigw oF Adhoc Systersin Front Line Depanmens
Dizaster Recovery Procedures Proposal
DLE Roads Job Planning & Manpower Allacation
Parking, Piers & FefTy Income
Stock Molding v Direct Purchase

TOTAL

CONTINGENCY ! SPECIAL INVESTIATIONS

Housing & Social Work Department investigation review.

FPhone Bills
Insurance Claim
Fuel Investgation

Materials - Islands
Revenues Investigation

TOTAL
FOLLOW UP REVIEW
Advice la Finance
Fraud & Irreguiarity - Extemnal Augit
PwiC Letters to Members
TPS Catanng IS
Registrar Funds
Schoeel Funds
DES Stock & Material Control
DMR Unit Buggsting
Spesific Grant Apphications.
Grant Menta! llinass
Sogial Work Grants
Reports & Infarmation

TOTAL

NEEUS ASSESSMENT
TOTAL DAYS

Page 228
AUDIT PLAN PROGRESS FOR 2001 - 2002

% COMPLETE

100

100

95
100

100

100
100

100

100

100

100

160

109

10

100

100

100

100

Annual Plan
Audit Days

o2 s7
40

80 138
242 183

53 41
40 LE]

104

35
hE)

A48

£

¥z

30
2
20
20
20
30
L& ] =
:
-

42 o]
1067

Used Audit Days Remaining Days

APPENDIX 1

Comment

¥iEnd signed off, Additional assurance tests of

* stock accurasy st Coungil Depots.. *

40 Due to start when the ¢laim is completed by
Housing & SBocial YWork Department in Nov.

56 Assistance with addiional Pt work for axternal
aud

40 Audif start date Jan - Mar 2002

" Draft report stage. Four separate departimental
reports will be issued

3 Fira| report issued

40 Audit start date Jan - Mar 2002

40 Audit start date Jan - Mar 2002

18 Draft report staga.

20 Audit start date Oct - Dec 2001

20 Audit start date Ctt - Dea 2001

20 Audit start date Jan - Mar 2002

£ Audit start date Oct - Dec 2001

30 Audit start date Oct - Dec 2001

20 Audit atart d=te Cct - Dz 2001 .

0 Audit start date Oct - Dec 2001

ko] Audit start date Jan - Mar 2002

30 Audit start date Jan - Mar 2002

30 Audit start date et - Dec 2001

30 Audit start date Oct - Dec 2004

-3 Draft report stage.

7 Ongoing to be finished in Oclober

20 Audit start date Jan - Mar 2002

-2 Diaft report stage.

20 Audit start date Cot - Dae 2001

22 Ongoing to be {inished in October

Complets no report required. Review of HSW
MOt

Compiete. Further work was done to establish
that recovery of personal call costs was being
carried out by Departinants,

Complete final raport iseued

Complete final report isageq

This investigation is live at present.

Complete final report issued

Adyice It Income Section

®

External report completed for Py,

Follow up review of agreed impiementation
plans ard preparaton of repons,

Follgw up ta ensure that Informatien Systems
delivery s ongoing

Follow up work for 2 Police investgation.

Foiow up of implementation plan

Follow up of implementaton plan. Fuither
report issued.

Follow up of implementation plan.
Foliow up of implementation ptan
Follow up of implermentaticn plan.
Follow up of implernentation pian,

Follow up of implemantation phan.



